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UNITED STATES
Securities and Exchange Commission
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or
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Title of each clas Name of each exchange on which registt
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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a wkelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%0B#turities Act. Yes __ No X
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes __ No X
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shorter period that the registrant was requiresbitumit and post such files). Yes X No __
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forwartboking statements within the meaning of Sectidh @flthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and @e2{A of the Securiti
Act of 1933. Any statements contained in this reffat are not statements of historical fact mayfdmvard-looking statements. When we use the w
“intends,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” “c ontinues,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “expects,” “believes,” “should,” “could,” “may,” “will" or the
negative of these terms or other comparable terfo@y we are identifying forward-looking statemerfierwarddooking statements involve risks i
uncertainties, which may cause our actual resylerformance or achievements to be materially déffiérfrom those expressed or implied by forward-
looking statements. These factors include ouraefeand development activities, distributor chdsnenarket demand for our products, compliance
regulatory impositions; and our capital needs. Aligh we believe that the expectations reflectethénforwardiooking statements are reasonable,
cannot guarantee future results, levels of actjprformance or achievements.

”ow »ou " o« LT " o« " ow " ow " ow »ou »ow ” o

Except as may be required by applicable law, wendbundertake or intend to update or revise oumfand-looking statements, and we assumu
obligation to update any forwarkboking statements contained in this report as sulieof new information or future events or deveitepts. Thus, yt
should not assume that our silence over time méaatsactual events are bearing out as expresseiinpilied in such forwardeoking statements. Y
should carefully review and consider the variouscltisures we make in this report and our other repfiled with the Securities and Exchange Comion
that attempt to advise interested parties of tk&gj uncertainties and other factors that may affec business.

For further information about these and other tisk&ertainties and factors, please review thdatisce included in this report unddpdrt |, Item 1A, Ris
Factors.”

Our Business
General

The Company (Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and its Wholned subsidiary Chembio Diagnostic Systems, Ine.callectively referred to herein as
“Company”) develops, manufactures, markets andhdies rapid point-of-care diagnostic tests (POCTa)detect infectious diseases. The Commamair
products presently commercially available are faynid tests for the detection of HIV antibodiesp tiapid tests for the detection of syphilis, andid tes
for the detection of canine leishmaniasis. Thretéhe HIV rapid tests employ in-licensed and prefary lateral flow technologies (se®ur Rapid Te:
Technologies”),can be used with all blood matrices as samples,aadnanufactured in a standard cassette forndipstick format, and a propriet:
barrel format. The tests employing the cassettepaaprietary barrel formats were approved by tB&fn 2006 and are exclusively distributed by Al
Inc. (“Alere”) in the United States and by Chembiatside the United States. Our fourth rapid HIgtteaicorporates our patented Dual Path Platfdrm
(DPP®), and does not require in-licensing. The ®RRV test, detects antibodies to HIV 1 & 2 in oralifl samples as well as in all blood matrices.
received United States FDA regulatory approvatiiis product on December 19, 2012 and we anticilpateching it under Chembio’s brand in 2013.

Our new product pipeline, which currently includepid tests for Syphilis and Hepatitis-as well as a multiplex test that detects HIV 8gghilis specifi
antibodies, is based on this DPR®hnology for which we were issued a United Stptgent in 2007 and for which additional patentigection has issut
or is pending worldwide. With the DPP® proprietgiatform, we can participate in the estimated 88blllion point-ofcare market segment of
estimated nearly $50 billion global uitro diagnostic market that has an overall grovete of approximately 7% per annum. POCTS, by iding promp
and early diagnosis, can reduce patient stays,rlowerall costs, improve therapeutic interventiansl improve patient outcomes as a result of prang
early diagnosis. They can also prevent needlesgitab admissions, simplify testing procedures,iéndelays from central lab batching, and elimintue
need for return visits.




In the areas of infectious and sexually transmittesgtases (such as HIV and syphilis for exampled,utility of a rapid point—o€are test, particularly
identifying patients unaware of their disease stahas been well established. Large and growinetehave been established for these kinds o,
initially in high prevalence regions where they ardispensable for large scale prevention andrreat programs. More recently introduced in theté&h
States in 2004, rapid HIV tests now also presesigaificant segment of the U.S. market for HIV @ testing, which is still dominated by laboraf
tests. We have focused our product developmentitstctvithin areas where the availability of rapiplpint-of-care screening, diagnostic, or confirma
results can improve health outcomes.

PRODUCTS

Lateral Flow Rapid HIV Tests

All three of our lateral flow rapid HIV tests arealitative “yes/no"tests for the detection of antibodies to HIV 1 &h visually interpreted results (o
line “negative”; two lines “positive”available within approximately 15 minutes. Thetdesre simple to use, have a shelf life of 24 mgn#md do n
require refrigeration. The tests differ principatigly in the method of test procedure, conveniemacost. One of our FDApproved lateral flow HIV tes
incorporates a proprietary plastic “barrelévice that houses the lateral flow strip. Thisrddlaformat enables collection of samples dire¢tyr exampli
directly from a finger-stick whole blood sample)drihe barrek capillary tip. A sealed unitized buffer vialsambled onto the top of the barrel, is remc
and seated into a stand; the seal is then piergéoebbarrel’'s capillary tip, thereby initiatingettupward flow of the resulting sampbedfer solution throug
a filter, up into the vertical device’chamber and onto the lateral flow strip. Thsuhes in a unique unitized and closed device systeahcan reduce t
chance of exposure to potentially infectious saspe believe that this format may be an ideadwlate as an over-thesunter HIV test and we ¢
participating in certain studies that should helfbétter ascertain this. Our other FpAproved lateral flow HIV test uses a more conwerati rectangul
plastic cassette format that houses the lateral $lwip. In this case, a sample is transferredisy of a separately provided transfer device (“lpamo &
sample well or port of the cassette that housekatbeal flow strip, which is positioned horizonyabr flat.

Both of the above-described products are markexetugvely in the United States by Alere as Cleanw® Complete HIV 1/2 (the barrel format) ¢
Clearview® HIV 1/2 STAT PAK® (the cassette formathd by Chembio in all other markets under the sa@teembio Sure Check®V 1/2 and Chembi
HIV 1/2 STAT PAK®. Alere has non-exclusive rightsthe barrel product outside the United States.

Our third lateral flow HIV test, HIV 1/2 STAT PAK®ipstick is our most cost competitive and compaciiat. It does not have any plastic housing st
30 test strips can be packaged into a small v i ideal for transporting into remote settinghie test procedure is similar to the cassette dtirar
adhesive backing is provided as a more cost-effeetnd compact “housing” on which to run the test.

Regulatory Status of the lateral flow HIV tests

The FDA approved our Pre-Market Applications (heaftier “PMA”; see “Governmental Regulatiorafid Glossary) in April 2006 for our SURE CHE
HIV 1/2 (and also now Alere Clearview® Complete HI¥2) and for our HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK (now Alere’ Cleaew® HIV 1/2 STATPAK in the Unite
States only) products. Waivers under the Clinicgboratory Improvement Act (hereinafter “CLIASee Governmental Regulations) were granted t
FDA for the two FDA approved products in 2006 and 2007, respectivEhe CLIA waiver is required in order for health egroviders to administer the
tests in the settings where they are most suitdcharded, such as public health testing clinicspit@l emergency rooms and physiciaof§ices. Our HI\
1/2 STAT-PAK Dipstick, although not FDApproved, qualifies under FDA export regulationset to customers outside the United States stiljeany
required approval by the importing country.

All three of our lateral flow HIV tests have quaifl for procurement under the President's Emergé&tay for AIDS Relief (“PEPFAR”)Both the cassel
and dipstick versions of the STAT-PAK@re also qualified by the World Health Organizati®HO) for procurements by the second largest d
program, known as the Global Fund, as well as othkted programs funded by agencies affiliatechwiite United Nations, such as UNICEF

UNITAIDS (see Glossary), through qualification witre WHO bulk procurement scheme.




DPP® HIV Test

As in the case of our lateral flow HIV tests, oUPB® HIV test is also a qualitative “yes/n@&st for the detection of antibodies to HIV 1 &dglivers visue
results within as little as 15 minutes, is simfeuse, has a shelf life of 24 months, and doésequire refrigeration. This product, which isr dirst
product incorporating our patented DPR®hnology, can be used with oral fluid samplesyels as with all blood matrices. This productcaiscorporate
our patentending oral fluid collection and storage systeat #mables samples to be fully extracted in bugtdution before application to the test de\
and also enables the extracted sample to be shmctdetested or potentially tested for multipleditans. Clinical and laboratory studies, whichiquely
included test subjects down to two years of ageetsown this product to have improved performasm@pared with all of the current FDépprove!
CLIA-waived rapid tests, even including our owrelat flow tests. FDA -approved label claims in@wknsitivity/specificity on oral fluid and fingstick
whole blood of 98.9%/99.9% and 99.9%/100% respelstivOral fluid sensitivity was 100% amongst HIVsitive patients not taking amtétrovira
medication. Due to the low HIV prevalence in th&l)clinical trials are performed on known Hpésitive patients, more of whom are on more effe
medications, and for longer periods than when cditagpe performed their trials. We believe that tligect, combined with our produst’ superic
performance in a direct comparative evaluation, eaxtier detection than our main competitors orl elehracterized serum samples, combine to prov
with a significant market opportunity with this pitct.

Regulatory Status: In April 2012 we completed a 3,000 patient clatistudy with our DPP@HIV test in the United States which we had begt
2010. In June 2012 we submitted the third of tmeelules required for a modular PMA applicatiorite FDA. On December 19, 2012 we received
approval of our Prédarketing Approval. During the first quarter of2%) we plan to commence the additional testing &g in order to complete a CL
waiver application for this product. We anticipétat we will be able to complete this testing anchplete this application in order to launch thedorct ir
the third or fourth quarter of 2013.

The DPP® HIV test product is qualified for procummh under the President’'s Emergency Plan for AlDsieR (“PEPFAR”) for use with all samp
matrices, and we are pursuing WHO qualificatiorider to enable procurement of this product byGlebal Fund and United Nations agencies, inclu
programs underwritten by them.

In June 2010, ANVISA approved the DPP® HIV test flkabeing marketed in Brazil through our collakimma with the Oswaldo Cruz Foundation, Brazil’
leading public health institute. Given the oralidl feature, we believe this product can be matkete a premiunpriced product that will address th:
market segments in the U.S. and globally that esgpeepreference for a less invasive testing expegie

OTHER DPP® PRODUCTS

Our product pipeline currently includes a multipl8yphilis Screen & Confirm test, a multiplex test the separate detection of antibodies to HIV
Syphilis, and a rapid test for the detection of &t@js-C antibodies and antigens. We anticipate commatiimical and other requirements in order to n
submissions to the FDA for the Syphilis Screen &fa test and the multiplex HI\&yphilis test in 2013 for U.S. market clearanc@0d4. This timetab
is subject to the FDA' confirming the regulatory requirements that wikebe will be applicable to these products, of whibere can be no assurance
mentioned below (“Our Rapid Test Technologies”),algo are considering development of so-called HfoGeneration'tests that are able to detect dis:
prior to seroconversion to antibodies. This woalldw earlier detection of diseases at an acutgest&Ve have completed initial feasibility studieish
technologies (owned by other parties) that compigrnar DPP®technology and that will further enable even loliits of analyte detection, which i
capability we believe is essential to have in otdeatevelop new products and markets over the terrg.

Our strategy with respect to our DPP® technology éeolved as the Company has evolved. Initiatylofving the issuance of our DPP&tent in th
United States in 2007, our strategy was necessimiijed to developing third-partfunded OEM research and development contracts eematsy Thi
strategy enabled us to conserve capital resoundgle at the same time acquiring know-how and eepee with the platform and developing thperty
references and implicit endorsements of the tedgyol As our capabilities to develop and manufactiDPP®products expanded, and as our finar
position has improved, so have our strategic optierpanded and improved. While we may continuesthetegy of seeking OEM development
manufacturing agreements as a way to participateairkets that we cannot and/or choose not to sexwéelieve that we can also develop our own brd
line of products, and we plan to do this in theljgubealth area. We plan to launch this brand witih DPP®HIV Screening Assay in the United Ste
market in 2013, to be followed by our Syphilis testl potentially other related products.

Following is a discussion of the DPR®oducts for which we have completed our develofraetivity pursuant to OEM agreements with FIOCR&ft
Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc. The statuses of praltiwt are still under development are describé®hin Il Item 7 of this report.




PARTNERS INVOLVED IN MARKETING OUR PRODUCTS

On September 29, 2006, we executed marketing aedde agreements with Alere. The marketing agnetsmiene for each of the two FDdpprove:
products) provide Alere with a 10-year exclusivghti(until September 2016) to market our rapid H&gts in the United States under Alsrbtand. Th
agreements provide Chembio a rexelusive license to certain Alere lateral flowegydts that may be applicable to our lateral flowdmets, including fc
the HIV tests in the United States should Aleresetite U.S. market with a competitive rapid HIVttesoduct and we choose to market our productsiij
as provided in the agreements. Simultaneous Wwéhekecution of the agreements, we also settligdtiion with StatSure Diagnostics, Inc. (SDS) that
been ongoing relating to the proprietary barrelickewhich is incorporated into one of our two FAproved rapid HIV tests (See Lateral Flow HIV §
above). As aresult, it is through the agreemeitts Alere that we have been participating in thevgth of the rapid HIV test market in the Unitec®s.

We have appointed distributors internationally dor lateral flow HIV tests. Our largest marketdside the U.S. for our lateral flow HIV rapid tests
certain countries in Africa, Asia, and South Amarias well as Mexico. Internationally, most of tremand for our products is based on government
non-governmental prevention and treatment efforts.e@ithis, these programs can and do often resuirge orders, but also can result in perioc
relatively lower demand, based on the variatiosseated with this kind of demand.

Our DPP® HIV test was approved by ANVISA, Bragifegulatory authority, in June 2010. This apprewes granted to our Brazilian partner, the Osw
Cruz Foundation (“FIOCRUZ")pursuant to one of five technology transfer, supgiyl license agreements that we entered into Withgublic healt
organization in 2008 and 2010. See “OEM DPP® Prtgjubelow.

OEM DPP® Products
Oswaldo Cruz Foundation OEM DPP® Agreements

During 2008-2010 we signed five agreements with @swaldo Cruz Foundation (FIOCRUZ) in Brazil riglgtto products based on our D®P
technology. FIOCRUZ is the leading public healtbamization in Brazil, and it is affiliated with &zil's Ministry of Health which is its principal clientt
has extensive research, educational and manufiagtiatilities for drugs and vaccines, as well asdfagnostic products.

During 2010 and 2011 all of the initial productsitemplated under the five agreements were apprioretiarketing by the applicable regulatory ager
in Brazil. As a result, during 2011, we shippegragimately $4.25 million of products to FIOCRUZrpuant to the agreements, and approximately $
million for fiscal year 2012. The agreements betwéhe Company and FIOCRUZ are unique examplesatinblogy transfer collaborations betwet
private sector rapid test manufacturer and a putdedth organization. The five products under egrent with FIOCRUZ are for DPP@roducts for HI\
screening, HIV confirmatory, Leishmaniasis, Lepfosgis and Syphilis. All of the agreements withORIRUZ contemplate a technology transfer
license to FIOCRUZ for the manufacture of the scbproducts over stipulated periods of time. Thesténology transfers, and the provision by Chel
of the information and training that is required fiois to occur, are subject to Chembio receivirdees from FIOCRUZ for a minimum amount of prod
for manufacture by Chembio, which is approximatk®3 million in the aggregate under the five agregsie The actual demand for these products m
more or less than this amount. The actual amouihtdepend on the demand for the products by trecifip programs for each product funded by
Brazilian Ministry of Health for its programs as Was whether and when FIOCRUZ is able to implenthet technology transfer steps including,
example, the readiness of new production facilitiesently under construction that are scheduledet@ompleted in mi@013; thereafter Chembio
continue to supply certain product components oeiwe royalty payments under some of the agreenfenta defined period based on product sol
FIOCRUZ to the public health programs in Brazil.

Our Rapid Test Technologies

All of our commercially available current produamploy either in-licensed lateral flow technologyaur own patented Dual Path Platform® (DBHP®
technology and are visually read. We can alschaselheld and desktop readers with our DRIR@lucts to objectively measure, quantify, record eepor
DPP®test results. Certain of the products we haveaarate developing incorporate some of these readatswe are developing other products that
be used with or will require use of a reader.

Both lateral flow technology and DPP® allow the elepment of accurate, low cost, easy-to-performglsiuse diagnostic tests for rapid, visual detec
of specific antigerantibody complexes on a test strip. These forpaiside a test that is simple (requires neithectelgty nor expensive equipment
test execution or reading, nor skilled personneltést interpretation), rapid (turnaround time apgmately 15 minutes), safe (minimizes handlin
potentially infected specimens), non-invasive (ieep1520 micro liters of whole blood easily obtained wihfinger prick, or alternatively, serum
plasma,), stable (24 months at room temperaturaggdn the case of our HIV tests), and highly edprcible.




We believe that products developed using DR&@nology can provide superior diagnostic perferoeaas compared with products that use lateral
technology. The reason for this is that one ofrttegor differences between the two platforms ig thaDPP®samples are allowed to incubate with
target analyte in the test zone before introductibthe labeling reagent/conjugate, whereas imdafow, samples are combined with the labelinggent t
form a complex before coming in contact with theyéd analyte. We believe that this complex canpmmise test performance. Also, because of thge
in DPP® of a separately connected sample strip, the coamindl delivery of sample material is substantiathypioved. This feature is critical in 1
development of multiplex tests, as well as tes#s itvolve viscous sample material (such as otadiflthat can be impeded when forced to combiné
labeling reagents before migration on the tegp $trithe test zone area.

Multiplexing is significantly improved as a resoltthe design of DPP@&nd this provides a significant advantage. The Etbwfirmatory test we develop
for Bio-Rad employs six different markers. We have a emttdevelopment program that involves the use gffitdbands, and we have another fur
multiplex product program that is pending. Oueillgctual property also extends to the use of ipleltiest membranes that through a common samjgh
utilize a single sample. Employing this featureca@ develop so-called “Fourth Generatitests that are able to detect antigens prior toceenersion t
antibodies, as well as antibodies. If developedcassfully, this would allow earlier detection asehses at an acute stage, which improves |
outcomes. We have completed initial feasibilitydsés with technologies (owned by others) that uelg complement our DPP@&chnology and that w
assist in these efforts by enabling even lowertirof analyte detection. This is a capability whige believe is essential to have in order to dgvelev
products and market opportunities over the longnter

Target Markets
Rapid HIV Test:

A large percentage of individuals that are HIVipes worldwide are unaware of their status. Rdrthe reason for this is that even those thatetdeste
in public health settings will often not return aall back for their test results when samples havee sent out to a laboratory which can take ugeicere
days to process. However, the increased avatlpbgreater efficacy and reduced costs for egttioviral treatments (ARVs) for HIV has increasbd
demand for testing, as the stigma associated Wwéhdisease is lessened, and the ability to reswomaah activities is substantially improved, providic
positive message to those potentially infected.

There are approximately 53,000 new diagnoses of idfection in the United States each year, accgrdinthe CDC. In time, most of these infecti
progress to AIDS. The CDC estimates that approvéind.2 million individuals in the U.S. are livingith HIV, with an estimated 250,000 Americans
more than 20%, unaware that they are infectet thtese 250,000 infected people that are repootadcount for 54% of all new infections per yeRart o
the reason for this is that even those that daegéed in public health settings will often nouretor call back for their test results from sarspleat have
be sent out to a laboratory and that can take wgeveral days to process. Making more people aofatlecir HIV status at the point-a@fare reduces tl
number of HIV transmissions.

Rapid HIV testing in the United States has now tmped into an estimated 7.5 million test markehisTis from zero in 2003 when Orasure Technolo
Inc. received the first FDA approval for a rapidvHest. We believe that the US professional Hiyidaest market (not including the OTC market) tree
potential to increase to 15-18 million tests over hext several years, which would represens@- of all HIV tests done today in the United Stafte
clinical purposes. Assuming an average price éatnufacturers of $8.00 per test, a total potedta. market of nearly $120-$150 million is impulie

In 2006, the outlook for HIV testing was given @ lioost with the release by the CDC of new reconuiatons for HIV testing. These new C
recommendations are that an HIV test should bengagea routine test like any other for all paticoesveen 13 and 64 years of age, regardless ofwitth
an opt-out screening option and focused testingguhoral (pre- and postst counseling) guidelines. Though not mandagmagual adoption in whole or
part of the 2006 CDC recommendations by a numbestaiés continues to have an increasing impagboitantly, in November 2012 the United St
Preventive Services Task Force (“USPSTiially fully embraced these CDC routine HIV tegtirecommendations. This USPSTF draft recommen
which was given an A grade under their recommendajiading system based on the benefits of thigtipeaand the nearly 600,000 AlD€lated deaths
the United States, requires insurance coveragieruthe Affordable Care Act (the “ACA”) If finalized as anticipated, we expect this to tesu ar
increase in HIV testing in the United States in ttming years, which we believe will include poafteare HIV testing utilizing the Comparsy’
products. Currently most public health testinghie United States is funded by grants allocatddgb prevalence areas by the CDC, but we belieigenhi
shift to an insurance-funded model under the AC#myears to come.




In the international marketwe sell our products directly and through distrdratto large screening programs overseen by migsstf health and NGC
most but not all of which are funded by large betal and multi-lateral AIDS relief programs, tlaedest of which is the U.S. PresidenEmergency Pl:
for AIDS Relief (PEPFAR). PEPFAR directly supportél)/ testing and counseling for more than 11 milljgregnant women in fiscal year 2012 and te
and counseling for more than 49 million people. ThS. is the first and largest donor to the Gldbahd to Fight AIDS, Tuberculosis and Malaria. Tade
the U.S. has provided more than $7 billion to thad:

For FY 2012, President Obama requested $7.2 hiliimiuding $5.6 billion for bilateral HIV/AIDS pgrams, $1.3 billion for the Global Fund, and $
million for bilateral TB programs. For FY 2013, Bident Obama is requesting $6.4 billion, includmgre than $4.5 billion for bilateral HIV/AIC
programs, $1.6 billion for the Global Fund, and %28illion for bilateral TB programs. The U.S. deficit crisis is likely to impact fundirg these larg
programs, and the eligibility of lower quality, rdhS. sourced products make these markets chatigngi

Chembio, is unique with four U.S.-manufactured dagiV tests, three FDMApproved, and is recognized as a reputable anchdabke supplier of hig
quality products that are available at reasonabigpetitive prices. As a result certain of our prad have been selected in the testing protocalsuntrie:
(national algorithms) that are large beneficianédPEPFAR and the Global Fund. As mentioned abthese programs can and do often result in
orders, but also can result in periods of relayivelver demand, based on the variations assocwitedhis kind of demand.

Oral fluid testing is an established alternativébtood testing for diagnostic tests, including HBéts. It is also often patient preferred, pringda mor:
comfortable, less invasive test. In certain pubkalth clinics, staffs choose not to handle blspdcimens; thus, oral sample collection provideshble
alternative. The most well-established marketfad fluid HIV testing is the United States.

There is also now an over-the-counter market fov KHelf-testing and we are uniquely positioned to partigipa this market, should we believe
investment is justified. So far one company, Omastiechnologies Inc., received FDA approval for @rer-the-counter (setesting) version of i
previously professional-markepproved HIV test. The FDA approval was granteduty 2012, the product was launched in Octobed, @rasure |
investing heavily in developing this market, wittetinitial results modest though with some pronaigen if not nearly for the levels speculated by som

Based on the fact that FDA requires that any olreicbunter HIV test to have first been approved fer phofessional market, we believe that Chemt
the only other company that can participate in thawket opportunity if it chooses to. Althoughrihés a third company, Trinity Biotech, that metital
condition, they have stated that they do not intenglursue this market. Therefore Chembio is célsemonitoring developments in this market, whioly
be significant during 2013. Currently we couldtimte the over-theounter approval process with either of our twoobldests. We have complete
preliminary self-study for our Sure Check “barreélévice as the final component to our preparing sulgmitting an Investigational Device Exemp
(“IDE”) application to the FDA during the first quarter2@f13. Provided we submit this application and igianted, that would enable us to begin clil
trials by the time we gather better informationt@$how the Orasure product is doing in the marlkéetid now that we have received approval of our pre-
marketing application for our DPP® oral fluid HI¥dt, we could additionally, or alternatively, puesaver-thecounter approval for that product once
receive the CLIA waiver grant for that product. Welieve that we will wait at least some additionenths before commencing these clinical t
because (1) the costs for such over¢benter approval, including primarily the assodaténical trials, are estimated to be at leastrition and they ma
take two to three years to complete; (2) Orasuirgtial results are not convincing of a large ket though this possibility remains and Orasurékay to
spend heavily on this for some time and (3) wenaet positioned versus any other competitors.

Rapid Syphilis Tes

Recent data indicate that approximately 70,000;000 new cases of syphilis are occurring anpiraithe U.S. Syphilis can be treated with antilogtbu
untreated it can cause pelvic inflammatory diseasertility, ectopic pregnancy and can infect newis. Treatment cannot be provided witho
confirmed diagnosis of an active case of syphilisirrent testing algorithms in the United Stategpuie two different tests (called nareponemal ar
treponemal markers), each requiring trained pemsianriaboratory settings and several days to weckack results, in order to confirm an active vjmesly
untreated case. The screening test still emplayéide United States is known as RPR; it utilizasold technology that has a high degree of falsstipe
results.

Development of the POC market for syphilis testingexpected to be comparable to the developmettheoPOC market for HIV testing, as there
significant public health value to being able toypde results at the point-afare. There are several ways to assess the nwgogettunity for this uniqt
rapid test, although we believe the U.S. rapidneatket opportunity may exceed 8 million tests,ahhis approximately 20% of the total number of sk
tests performed in the United States for clinicsd today. Unlike HIV testing, where a positiveutefirst requires a confirmatory test, and thertHar test
to measure viral load before expensive treatmeaisibms are made, an individual with a confirmetliveccase of syphilis can be prescribed antibi
immediately.




We believe the opportunity for our recently develdpcombination HIVSyphilis test is significant in the U.S. and gldpabnd we anticipate maki
significant progress in 2013 in order to capitalizethese opportunities.

Marketing Strategy
Our marketing strategy is to:

e Support, review and assess the marketing andhlison efforts of our rapid HIV tests by Alere imetU.S., as well as our distributors worldw
and to engage in sales and marketing activitiesalt@av us to engage with our target markets arsdaruers. Alere, which is a leading markete
point-of-care diagnostic products, has significantly expdritie distribution footprint since we signed ouregment with them, and although
believe that this will enhance opportunities foesd to market our rapid HIV tests, the product Isa very small one for them, notwithstanding
strong growth they have enjoyed with respect topsaducts.

e Leverage our DPP@itellectual property and regulated product develept and manufacturing experience to continue icgeaiew collaboratior
where Chembio can be the exclusive developmentrentifacturing partner supporting leading marketirganizations.

e Establish strong distribution relationships for @hembiobranded products in the U.S and abroad and edtadlidirect sales and market
organization that is focused in the public healtérket segment, and that utilizes distributors fitreo market segments, primarily the acute
market which, together with public health, are thain market segments for rapid HIV tests in theteéthiStates. We believe that creation
Chembio public health brand and marketing orgaiuras fundamental to the creation of shareholddue over the long term

Competition

The diagnostics industry is a multifion dollar international industry and is intexhg competitive. Many of our competitors are sahsally larger an
have greater financial, research, manufacturingnaaiketing resources.

Industry competition in general is based on thi¥ahg:
e Scientific and technological capability;
e Proprietary know-how;
e The ability to develop and market products andgsses;
e The ability to obtain FDA or other required redgatg approvals ;

e The ability to manufacture products that meetiapple FDA requirements, (i.e. FDAQuality System Regulations) (see GovernmentatliRégr
section);

e The ability to manufacture products cost-effedtive
e Access to adequate capital;

e The ability to attract and retain qualified pensel and
e The availability of patent protection.

We believe our scientific and technological captied and our proprietary know-how relating to andlicensed lateral flow technology rapid tests ar
our proprietary know-how related to our patentedl ghath platform@&echnology, particularly for the development anchaofacture of tests for the detect
of antibodies to infectious diseases such as Hi& yary strong.

Our ability to develop and market other productsitarge measure dependent on our having additi@saurces and/or collaborative relationshipsmé
of our product development efforts have been furmed project or milestone basis. We believe thatproprietary knowhow in lateral flow technolog
and in our Dual Path Platform® (DPP&Jchnology has been instrumental in our obtainirggdollaborations we have and that we continueutsye. W
believe that the patent protection that we havéh witir Dual Path Platform® (DPP®&nhances our ability to develop more profitablelatmirative
relationships and to license out the technologpwever there are a number of competitive technekgised and/or seeking to be used in poirtaod-
settings. These technologies may be based on iwassay principles such as the Company’s productstt@r technologies such as moleculase!
technologies.




Research and Development

During 2012 and 2011, $4.5 million and $4.9 milliacespectively, were spent on research and dewelop (including regulatory activities). Th
expenses were in part underwritten by funding fR&D and milestones revenues of $1.3 million in 2@h2l $1.8 million in 2011. All of our new prod
development activities involve employment of ouradD®ath Platform® (DPP®jechnology. These activities include completingaelepment of certa
products and making significant progress towarddéneelopment of additional products.

Employees

At December 31, 2012, we employed 174 people.hé&e entered into employment contracts with ousiBemt, Lawrence Siebert, and our Senior
President of Research and Development, Javan EafanBue to the specific knowledge and experienéghese executives regarding the indu
technology and market, the loss of the servicesitber one of them would likely have a material @de effect on the Company. The contract with
Siebert provides that Mr. Siebert will serve as @faef Executive Officer and President of the Comp¢hrough May 11, 2013. The contract with
Esfandiari has a term of three years ending Ma@d62 We have obtained a key man insurance padicif. Esfandiari.

Governmental Regulation

The manufacturing and marketing of the Compangxisting and proposed diagnostic products arelatgd by the United States Food and [
Administration (“FDA”), United States Department Africulture (“USDA”), certain state and local agencies, and/or comparapldatory bodies in oth
countries. These regulations govern almost alketspof development, production and marketing,uidicly product testing, authorizations to ma
labeling, promotion, manufacturing and record kegpiThe Compang’' FDA and USDA regulated products require some fofraction by each agen
before they can be marketed in the United States, after approval or clearance, the Company maostimue to comply with other FDA requireme
applicable to marketed products, e.g. Quality Systéfor medical devices). Failure to comply witle FDA’s requirements can lead to significant pena
both before and after approval or clearance.

There are two review procedures by which medicalags can receive FDA clearance or approval. Sproducts may qualify for clearance under Se«
510(k) of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Actyvhich the manufacturer provides a pnerket notification that it intends to begin mamkgtthe
product, and shows that the product is substaypt|livalent to another legally marketed produet (ithat it has the same intended use and isfasse
effective as a legally marketed device and doegaise different questions of safety and effectags). In some cases, the submission must inclati
from human clinical studies. Marketing may commendien the FDA issues a clearance letter findirap swbstantial equivalence. FDA clearance o
DPP® Syphilis Screen & Confirm test will be by meanf a 510(k) submission.

If the medical device does not qualify for the K)Qfrocedure (either because it is not substaptejuivalent to a legally marketed device or beeatiE
required by statute and the FDA's implementing tatjons have an approved application), the FDA naygirove a Pre-Marketing Application (“PMA”
before marketing can begin. PMA'must demonstrate, among other matters, that tdical device provides a reasonable assurance fety sanc
effectiveness. A PMA application is typically angplex submission, including the results of radimical and clinical studies. Preparing a PMA laggiion
is a much more expensive, detailed and time-consyimiocess as compared with a 510(K) ket notification. The Company has approved PNbk
the two rapid HIV tests now marketed by Alere Medligs Clearview® Complete HIV 1-2 and Clearview®/HI-2 STAT PAK®.

FDA approval of our DPP@&IV screening assay for use with oral fluid or ldlosamples was achieved by means of a PMA applicafithe Clinice
Laboratory Improvement Act of 1988 (“CLIA") prohilsi laboratories from performing witro tests for the purpose of providing informatifor the
diagnosis, prevention or treatment of any diseasinpairment of, or the assessment of, the hedithuman beings unless there is in effect for :
laboratories a certificate issued by the UnitedeSt®epartment of Health and Human Services (\aaFBA) applicable to the category of examinatio
procedure performed. Although a certificate is regjuired for the Company, it considers the appllig of the requirements of CLIA in the designd
development of its products. The statutory definitof “laboratory”is very broad, and many of our customers are censitllabs. A CLIA waiver wi
remove certain quality control and other requiretmeghat must be met for certain customers to useGbmpanys products and this is critical to
marketability of a product into the point-oére diagnostics market. The Company has recevetdlA waiver for each of the two rapid HIV testew
marketed by Alere Medical as Clearview® Complet® HI2 and Clearview® HIV 1/2 STAT PAK®The CLIA waiver was granted by the FDA for F
1/2 STAT-PAK on November 20, 2006 and for the Gleawr® Complete HIV 1/2 on October 22, 2007. In 2008 HigA revised its CLIA waive
requirements so that an additional prospectivé tréged be conducted in order to demonstrate clinitifity by showing that the device is capable
identifying new infections. Given the low prevatenof HIV, the FDA will require 30 new HIV caseslie identified, supplemented by additional data
this is the study the Company will perform durir@f 3.
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In addition, the FDA regulates the export of medaavices that have not been approved for marketirntge United States. The Federal Food, Drug
Cosmetic Act contains general requirements for meglical device that may not be sold in the Unit¢ates and is intended for export. Specificall
medical device intended for export is not deemeaktadulterated or misbranded if the product: ¢hyglies with the specifications of the foreign thaser
(2) is not in conflict with the laws of the countiy which it is intended for export; (3) is prominily labeled on the outside of the shipping packihge it is
intended for export; and (4) is not sold or offefedsale in the United States. However, the Faldevod, Drug and Cosmetic Act does permit the bk
devices to any country in the world, if the devamamplies with the laws of the importing country amak valid marketing authorization in one of sel
“listed” countries under the theory that theseelistountries have sophisticated mechanisms faethiew of medical devices for safety and effectegEn

The Company is also subject to regulations in fpre@iountries governing products, human clinicalsrand marketing, and may need to obtain appar
evaluations by international public health agendesh as the World Health Organization, in ordesell diagnostic products in certain countriepprova
processes vary from country to country, and thegtlemf time required for approval or to obtain atlekearances may in some cases be longer tha
required for United States governmental approv@ls.the other hand, the fact that our HIV diagrossts are of value in the AIDS epidemic may &
some government process being expedited. The tegfepotentially adverse governmental regulatiofeefng Chembio that might arise from fut
legislative or administrative action cannot be jprexdi.

One or more of the Comparsytapid HIV tests are also approved or pending@mbifor marketing in several foreign jurisdictiomscluding but not limite
to Brazil, Mexico, and a number of other nationshia developing world.

Environmental Laws

To date, we have not encountered any costs rgladinompliance with any environmental laws.

Intellectual Property

Intellectual Property Strateg

Our intellectual property strategy is to: (1) budur own intellectual property portfolio aroundrddual Path Platform®echnology; (2) pursue licens
trade secrets and know-how within the area of rgpiet-of-care testing, and (3) develop and acquire propyigiasitions to reagents and new hard\
platforms for the development and manufacture picrdiagnostic tests.

The Company has obtained patent coverage on the®OiB¢hnology, including three U.S. patents, and gatém China, Malaysia, Eurasia, Mexi
Singapore, Japan and the U.K. Additional pateptiegtions on the DPP®roduct line are pending in the U.S., as well asany foreign countries such
Australia, Brazil, Canada, the European Union, dndindonesia, Israel, Korea, and South Africa.e®athave also been filed on extensions to the®PP
product line concept such as 4th generation assays.

The Company has also filed for patents and obtainedespatents in the U.S. for other inventions suchisasultiple host species veterinary TB test,
patent applications for the other inventions aredrious stages from being recently filed and reitgxamined, to already examined and allowed buyei
issued. The Company selectively and strategidallgign files its patent applications based on miner of economic and strategic factors relateché
invention.

Trademarks

The Company has filed and obtained trademarkst$oproducts including DPP®, SURE CHECK® and STAAK®. The DPP®trademark is als
registered under the European convention (ECT).

Trade Secrets and Know-How
We believe that we have developed a substant@} bbtrade secrets and know-how relating to thestigment of lateral flow and DPP&ased diagnost
tests, including but not limited to the sourcingdaptimization of materials for such tests, and Hownaximize sensitivity, speed-tesult, specificity

stability and reproducibility. The Company possssgroprietary knovirow to develop tests for multiple conditions usicgjored latex. Our buffi
formulations enable extremely long shelf lives of capid HIV and other tests and we believe thit phovides us with an important competitive adaget
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Lateral Flow Technology and Reagent Licer

As part of our agreements in 2006 with Alere fog marketing of our HIV tests, we were granted arclusive licenses to certain lateral flow techgy
for certain products manufactured and marketed lwgn@io including but not limited to our HIV testAlthough we believe our DPP® outside of th
scope of all lateral flow patents of which we anaee, we consult with patent counsel, and seekdies and/or redesigns of products that we belebe ir
the best interests of the Company and our stockheldBecause of the costs and other negative goesees of timeonsuming patent litigation, we oft
attempt to obtain a license on reasonable terneveftheless there is no assurance that the Alnaldlow patents we have licensed will not bellgmgec
or that other patents containing claims relevanh&éoCompany’s lateral flow or DPP@oducts will not be granted to third parties ahalt ticenses to su
patents, will be available on reasonable termanyf. In the past Alere has aggressively enfortethieral flow intellectual property, although sowf the
main patents will expire within the next coupleyefars and we are not aware of any patent enfordglitigation that is ongoing with respect to theefe
lateral flow intellectual property.

Regardless, the DPP@chnology provides us with our own intellectuabgerty. We believe it provides us with a freedamoperate, and that it a
enables tests to be developed with improved seitgitas compared with comparable tests on latdmt fplatforms. The Company has signed
anticipates signing new development projects baged the DPP®&echnology that will provide new manufacturing andrketing opportunities. We he
filed other patents that we believe will strengtliea DPP® intellectual property and have also filed patent protection for certain other pointeaire
technologies or applications thereof.

The peptides used in our rapid HIV tests were piateby Adaltis Inc. and were licensed to us unded-gear norexclusive license agreement dated Au
30, 2002. However, in connection with Adaltls®inkruptcy, during the third quarter of 2009 we diduout all of our remaining obligations under
agreement. We also have licensed the antigensinsgtier tests including our Syphilis, Tubercuspdieptospirosis, Leishmaniasis and Chagas tas
we may enter other license agreements. In priarsye concluded license agreements related tbeictigal property rights owned by the United St
associated with HIV- 1, and during the first quadE2008 we entered into a sub-license agreeneeni V-2 with Bio-Rad Laboratories N.A., the exclus
licensee of the Pasteur Institute’s HIV-2 intelledtproperty estate.

Corporate History

On May 5, 2004, we completed a merger with TradBautions, Inc. through which Chembio Diagnosticst8yns Inc. became our wholbwnec
subsidiary, and through which the management asthéss of Chembio Diagnostic Systems Inc. becamenamagement and business. As part of
transaction, we changed our name to Chembio Diagspsnc. In 2003, we had sold our prior businessd as a result, we had no specific bus
immediately prior to the merger.

Since the formation of Chembio Diagnostic Systems in 1985, it has been involved in developingnafacturing, selling and distributing iritro
diagnostic tests, including rapid tests beginnm995, for a number of conditions in humans arichals.

On March 12, 2004, we implemented a 1-for-17 reveysit of our common stock. All references irstRlorm 10K to shares of our common stock h
been adjusted to reflect this reverse split.

In February 2010, Crestview Capital Master, L.L{Crestview Master”)a Delaware limited liability company that held 187931 shares of Chembi
common stock, spun off all these shares, constgusipproximately 30.5% of Chembio's outstandingeshato its three equity holders. One of the 1
equity holders of Crestview Master immediately spiiip to its approximately 126 equity holders, aflthe 12,990,569 shares of Chembio stock tt
received in this distribution. As a result, asFebruary 24, 2010, Crestview Master no longer owaieyl shares. The former direct and indirect e
holders of Crestview Master owned all these shamith, none of these individual stockholders havbeneficial ownership of more than 5.61% of
outstanding common stock of Chembio.

On May 30, 2012, the Company effected a 1&aeverse split of its common stock. This was dmonallow the Company to move to the NASDAQ tra
market from the OTCQB market, which occurred oneJdn2012. As a result of the stock split, thestautding 63,967,263 common shares were redus
7,995,918 outstanding common shares on May 30,.20h2 effect of the reverse stock split has beémactively reflected for all periods in theseaficia
statements.
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Glossary

AIDS
ALGORITHM (parallel or serial)

ANTIBODY

ANTIGEN

ANVISA
ARVs

CDC

CLIA waiver

DIAGNOSTIC

EITF
FASB
FIOCRUZ
FDA
FDIC
FAS

19G

NGO

oTC

PEPFAR

PMA
PROTOCOL
REAGENT
RETROVIRUS
SAB
SENSITIVITY
SPECIFICITY

USDA
WHO

Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome. AIDS is caubgdhe Human Immunodeficiency Virus, Hl

For rapid HIV testing this refers both to methodpootocol (in developing countries to date) forngsrapic
tests from different manufacturers in combinatiors¢reen and confirm patients at the pointafe, and me
also refer to the specific tests that have beeecsml by an agency or ministry of health to be usetthis
way. A parallel algorithm uses two screening tésim different manufacturers and a bieeaker test only
there is a discrepancy between the screeningrestits. A serial algorithm only uses a second iooiaftory
test if there is a positive result from the scragrtest, meaning that the number of confirmatosysteised
equal to the positivity rate in the testing venfietie-breaker test resolves discrepancies between teer
and the confirmatory tes

A protein which is a natural part of the human inmawsystem produced by specialized cells to nemé
antigens, including viruses and bacteria that ievéite body. Each antibody producing cell manufastu
unique antibody that is directed against, bindsnd eliminates one, and only one, specific typamigen.
Any substance which, upon entering the body, stwes| the immune system leading to the formatic
antibodies. Among the more common antigens areebagcpollens, toxins, and virust

Anti-Retroviral Treatments for AIDS

The National Health Surveillance Agency of Brazil

Anti-retroviral medications developed to fight All

United States Centers for Disease Control and Rtiere

Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act designation ttladlows simple tests to be performed in pointafe
settings such as doc’s offices, wal-in clinics and emergency roon

Pertaining to the determination of the nature arseaof a disease or condition. Also refers to eatgyo
procedures used in diagnosis to measure protemslinical sample

Emerging Issues Task For

Financial Accounting Standards Bo:

The Oswaldo Cruz Foundation of Bra

United States Food and Drug Administrat

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporat

Financial Accounting Standa

IgG or Immunoglobulin are proteins found in humdaokl. This protein is called &*antibody’ and is a
important part of the bodg’'defense against disease. When the body is attégkiearmful bacteria or virus
antibodies help fight these invade

Non-Governmental Organizatic

Over-the-Counter

The Presidel's Emergency Plan for AIDS Reli

Pre-Marketing Approval FDA approval classification for a medical devicattis not substantially equivale
to a legally marketed device or is otherwise regfliiny statute to have an approved application.idRidp/
tests must have an approved PMA application befanketing of such a product can beg

A procedure pursuant to which an immunodiagnostst s performed on a particular specimen in otd
obtain the desired reactic

A chemical added to a sample under investigatioarder to cause a chemical or biological reactidrich
will enable measurement or identification of a &rgubstance

A type of virus which contains the enzyme Revensn3criptase and is capable of transforming intectls
to produce diseases in the host such as A

Staff Accounting Bulletir

Refers to the ability of an assay to detect andsomeasmall quantities of a substance of interds. greate
the sensitivity, the smaller the quantity of thédstance of interest the assay can detect. Alsrsad th
likelihood of detecting the antigen when pres

The ability of an assay to distinguish between Isinthaterials. The greater the specificity, thiédrean asse
is at identifying a substance in the presence b$taunces of similar makeu

U.S Department of Agricultur

World Health Organizatio
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider each of the followiisty factors and all of the other information prded in this Annual Report. The risks describelbw
are those we currently believe may materially aftec An investment in our Common Stock involv@gladegree of risk, and should be considered by
persons who can afford the loss of their entirestment

Risks related to our industry, business and strat

Because we may not be able to obtain or maintain ¢hnecessary regulatory approvals for some of our pducts, we may not generate revenues in t
amounts we expect, or in the amounts necessary tontinue our business. Our existing products as wehs our manufacturing facility must mee
quality standards and are subject to inspection by number of domestic regulatory and other governmetal and non-governmental agencies.

All of our proposed and existing products are stitie regulation in the U.S. by the U.S. Food amdgDAdministration, the U.S. Department of Agricu#
and/or other domestic and international governnieptablic health agencies, regulatory bodies or-gomernmental organizations. In particular, we
subject to strict governmental controls on the tment, manufacture, labeling, distribution andrketing of our products. The process of obtai
required approvals or clearances varies accordinthe nature of, and uses for, a specific prodlitiese processes can involve lengthy and de
laboratory testing, human or animal clinical trjadampling activities, and other costly, tim@asuming procedures. The submission of an apialicto ¢
regulatory authority does not guarantee that thbaaity will grant an approval or clearance for guat. Each authority may impose its own requireis
and can delay or refuse to grant approval or clearaeven though a product has been approved themmuntry.

The time taken to obtain approval or clearanceegadiepending on the nature of the application asyl nesult in the passage of a significant periotinoé
from the date of submission of the application.lae in the approval or clearance processes inertreesrisk that we will not succeed in introducior
selling the subject products, and we may deternairtkevote our resources to different products.

Changes in government regulations could increaseaats and could require us to undergo addititnieds or procedures, or could make it impractiox
impossible for us to market our products for certaes, in certain markets, or at all.

Changes in government regulations may adversedgiaffur financial condition and results of openasitbecause we may have to incur additional exp
if we are required to change or implement new rigstmanufacturing and control procedures. If we raquired to devote resources to develop suct
procedures, we may not have sufficient resourcegvote to research and development, marketingther activities that are critical to our business.

We can manufacture and sell our products only itemply with regulations and quality standardsldsthed by government agencies such as the FD.
the USDA as well as by nagevernmental organizations such as the ISO and WW®.have implemented a quality system that isniskéel to comply wit
applicable regulations. Although FDA approval @ nequired for the export of our products, there export regulations promulgated by the FDA
specifically relate to the export of our producsdthough we believe that we meet the regulatoangards required for the export of our productsse
regulations could change in a manner that couleé=sely impact our ability to export our products.

Our products may not be able to compete with new dgnostic products or existing products developed byell-established competitors, which woul
negatively affect our business.

The diagnostic industry is focused on the testifdiological specimens in a laboratory or at theénpof-care and is highly competitive and rap
changing. Our principal competitors often havesitderably greater financial, technical and marlgtiesources than we do. Several companies pr
diagnostic tests that compete directly with ourtibgs product line, including but not limited to, &ure Technologies, Alere and Trii
Biotech. Furthermore these and/or other compdmie®e or may have products incorporating molecutal/ax other superior technologies that over
could directly compete with our testing productlif\s new products incorporating new technologigerehe market, our products may become obsok
a competitor’'s products may be more effective oravedfectively marketed and sold than ours.
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We have granted Alere exclusive rights to marketSWRE CHECK® HIV 1/2 in the United States and rexaiusive rights in the rest of the world :
exclusive rights to market our HIV 1/2 STAT PAK® the U.S. only. Alere has no rapid HIV tests tha approved for marketing in the U.S. and Ale
obligated to inform us of any such products witbértain time frames. We believe that Alere is cotted to successfully marketing our products in
U.S.. Alere may however choose to develop or aeqgoirmpeting products for marketing in the U.S. andh an action could have at least a temp
material adverse effect on the marketing of theseyxcts until such time as alternative marketimgragements could be implemented. In particulare
manufactures and markets outside the United Saatagid HIV test product called Determine® thatihvis widely available so-called ‘8generation’test
is the leading screening product used in a largenhaof the national algorithms of countries fuetdby PEPFAR and the Global Fund, as well as |
other countries in the world. The newest Deterntithé version is the so called “# Generation’version Determine test which, according to itsrok
detects HIV antibodies and the P24 HIV antigen Whicpresent in HIV positive individual§lood samples before antibodies are, and therésaable t
detect HIV infection earlier than tests that solelly on antibody detection, such as Chenand all of the other currently FDA approved raply tests
which all require an immune response before deteatan occur. The actual performance of thiegéneration Alere product has been inconsistent
regard to meeting these and other performance slaaithough recently it has been reformulated, gholimited data has been published since
reformulation. Regardless Alere continues to maiiements that it is seeking FDA approval of grisduct which, if approval is granted, would make
competitive product to the Chembio products thardimarkets as Clearview® Complete (barrel) and@lew HIV %2 STAT PAK® €assette). Under ¢
agreements, Alere is in fact expressly permittetietloit” such a product (a “permitted competingguct”) in the United States without breaching
agreement, though there are defined alternativeezprences that would follow in such case: for #iesette product, Chembio may at any time aftere
begins to “exploit” the Determine product in theitéd States either terminate the agreement witheAde make the agreement with Alere relusive; fo
the barrel product, Chembio and StatSure Diagregtie other party to the Alerevy agreement pertaining to the barrel product) mekd to jointh
agree to either continue the agreement with Aler® anake the barrel agreement with Alere mowtusive in the United States. As part of any sieai by
Chembio to market either product, Alere would exp#me lateral flow license granted to allow Chemtmianarket the product under Chembio branc
necessary.

During 2011 Biolytical, Inc. of Vancouver, Canadzceived FDA approval and in 2012 received CLIA waiof a flowthrough rapid HIV test calle
“INSTI”. The technology used in the INSTI test is older ttaeral flow, which requires handling of multiptemponents (3 vials of solution) to perfc
the test in multiple steps. However, these stepsbe accomplished in less than ten minutes, anddtual test results occur in only one minuter dftese
steps are completed. Therefore sampleetadt time is shorter than any of the competipveducts. There are settings where that reduaéttestt time ma
be a distinct advantage. However, thus far Biofticmarket penetration has been negligible.

Although we have no specific knowledge of any otb@empetitors product that are a competitive threat to our petdor that will render our produ
obsolete, if we fail to maintain and enhance ounpetitive position or fail to introduce new prodsieind product features, our customers may decidse
products developed by our competitors, which coedullt in a loss of revenues and cash flow.

We have developed an oral fluid rapid HIV test &l @s other applications utilizing our Dual Pathtférm technology, which we believe will enhance
competitive position in HIV rapid testing and othHelds. During 2012 we made significant progrésward the commercialization of this prod
However we still have technical, manufacturing, latpry and marketing challenges to meet before wile know whether we can successft
commercialize products incorporating this techngloghere can be no assurance that we will overdbiese challenges.

We plan to introduce our recently FDA -approved BR#tal fluid HIV test, which test also can be usedhvidlood samples, in the U.S. market unc
Chembio brand once it is CLIAaiver, currently anticipated by the end of 2013, for which there can be no assurance. Unde006 Agreement wi
Alere, Alere has a right of first negotiation fdret right to market any new rapid HIV antibody dé&tat test that we develop. In accordance with
provision in our agreement, we presented this potiuAlere in 2007, and in 2007 Alere waived itght of first negotiation under the agreement. il
such waiver does not prevent Alere from reconsigetiie marketing of this product, we have no redaedselieve that they will. Also, although we lesi
that the primary market opportunity for the DPPI®/ product is for those customers that have argbeaference for an oral fluid HIV test, the protis
also likely to compete to some extent with our FB@proved rapid HIV tests being marketed by Alereer&fore this could have a material and ad
effect on our business with Alere.
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More generally, the point-of-care diagnostics induss undergoing rapid technological changes, viitquent introductions of new technolodsiver
products and services. As new technologies bedotra@luced into the point-afare diagnostic testing market, we may be requoesbmmit considerah
additional efforts, time and resources to enhameeorrent product portfolio or develop new productWe may not have the available time and ressut
accomplish this, and many of our competitors halestantially greater financial and other resoutoeisvest in technological improvements. We may
be able to effectively implement new technolairi#en products and services or be successful irketiag these products and services to our cus®
which would materially harm our operating results.

Although we own our DPP®atent, we own no issued patents covering latéral fechnology, and the field of lateral flow tedhwgy is complex ar
characterized by a substantial amount of litigatem the risk of potential patent challenges isoamg for us in spite of our DPP@atent. Moreover, v
believe that certain lateral flow patents are gamgxpire in the next couple of years which mayemally impact the competitive landscape.

Although we have been granted nexelusive licenses to the lateral flow patents aiog Alere, there is no assurance that its laféral patents will not b
challenged or that licenses from other parties n@ybe required, if available at all. In additi@ertain of the Alere patents will expire in thexneouple o
years which expiration could open the market tdatercompetitors. In the event that it is deterrditleat a license is required and it is not possibt
negotiate a license agreement under a necessanmyt,pae may be able to modify our HIV rapid tesiducts and other products such that a license \
not be necessary. However, there is no assurhateve would be able to do so, and even if accanetl, this alternative could delay or limit ourlipito
sell these products in the U.S. and other markétgh would adversely affect our results of openagi, cash flows and business.

On March 13, 2007, our Dual Path Platform Immunagpd$3evice patent application was issued as Unitate$S patent no. 7,189,522. Additional protec
for this intellectual property is pending in a nwntof other countries. This platform has shownriompd sensitivity as compared with conventi
platforms in a number of studies. However seveeldrs go into the development and performanciatés of products, and the ability of our produc
successfully compete will depend on several otaetofs including but not limited to our having dqud rapid test platform technology.

We believe that our Dual Path Platform is outsiflehe scope of currently issued patents in thedfigfl lateral flow technology, thereby offering
possibility of a greater freedom to operate. Hosvethere can be no assurance that our patentsr@roducts incorporating the patent claims will be
challenged at some time in the future.

New developments in health treatments or new non-agnostic products may reduce or eliminate the demahfor our products.

The development and commercialization of productside of the diagnostics industry could adversdfect sales of our products. For example
development of a safe and effective vaccine to Hifreatments for other diseases or conditionsdbatroducts are designed to detect, could redur
eventually eliminate the demand for our HIV or etdEgnostic products and result in a loss of reesn

We may not have sufficient resources to effectiveiptroduce and market our products, which could maerially harm our operating results.

Introducing and achieving market acceptance forrapid HIV tests and other new products will requsiubstantial marketing efforts and will requirt
and/or our contract partners, sales agents, adtibutors to make significant expenditures ofdiand money. In some instances we will be fagmitly
or totally reliant on the marketing efforts and eRrgitures of our contract partners, sales agent¥peadistributors. If they do not have or commhi¢
expertise and resources to effectively market thdycts that we manufacture, our operating resuiltde materially harmed.

The success of our business depends on, in addititmthe market success of our products, our abilitgo raise additional capital through the sale ¢
debt or equity or through borrowing, and we may notbe able to raise capital or borrow funds on attrative terms and/or in amounts necessary
continue our business, or at all.

Our revenues and gross margins have increasedicégtly in recent periods, and we have been bl for four consecutive years. Neverthelessy (e
2009 we sustained significant operating losseses?®®4, and we incurred an operating and net lseaently as the third quarter of 2012. At Decel
31, 2012, we had a stockholders’ equity of $13.9ioni and a working capital surplus of$7.6 million The Company estimates that its resource
sufficient to fund its needs through the end of28thd beyond. The Compasyliquidity and cash requirements will depend oresal factors. These factt
include (1) the level of revenues; (2) the extenwhich, if any, that revenue level improves opgamtash flows; (3) the Compamsyinvestments in resea
and development, facilities, marketing, regulatapprovals, and other investments it may deternonaake; and (4) the Compasyinvestment in capit
equipment and the extent to which it improves dash through operating efficiencies. There are seusances that the Company will remain profital
generate positive cash flow in 2013 or, in theral#ve, be successful in raising sufficient cdgiiefund its needs through 2013 and thereafter.
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The increase in revenues we experienced in 201 2ainasst entirely attributable to the distributionooir DPP®products in Brazil by the Ministry of Hea
as supplied by our contract partner, the Oswaldw Goundation (FIOCRUZ). However the agreementshase with FIOCRUZ have limited purchi
requirements remaining for most of the five produittat, in the aggregate, are less than our regeraadized from FIOCRUZ in 2012, and even tl
requirements pertain only in order to trigger atemlogy transfer right for the applicable producMoreover, we have recently been advised by FIOZ
that the scale-up of the Brazilian Ministry of Hb& programs that are utilizing our HIV and Syphitists is going more slowly than anticipated.,
together, this is likely to result in significantlgduced revenues to FIOCRUZ in 2013 versus 2012.

Therefore, in order for our 2013 revenues to b¢hefsame level as in 2012 we would need to increagenues from other customers in excess ¢
decreased 2013 sales to FIOCRUZ, which is possible.

We anticipate increased revenues from Alere in 20iBwe are attempting to increase internatiorlabsaf our products. However, a number of factar
slow or prevent these increases, or substantiaiease the cost of achieving these increases asstimey are achieved:

e economic conditions and the absence of or reduati@vailable funding sources ;

e regulatory requirements and customs regulations;

e cultural and political differences;

e foreign exchange rates, currency fluctuationstarifs ;

e dependence on and difficulties in managing intiéonal distributors or representatives ;
e the creditworthiness of foreign entities;

e difficulties in foreign accounts receivable cotieq;

e competition; and

e pricing.

If we are unable to increase our revenues from dtimand/or international sales to make up fordbereases in sales to FIOCRUZ, our operating 8
will be materially harmed.

Although we have an ethics and antcorruption policy in place, and have no knowledgeroreason to know of any practices by our employeeagent:s
or distributors that could be construed as in violgéion of such policies, our business includes salef products to countries where there is or may k
widespread corruption.

Chembio has a policy in place prohibiting its enygles, distributors and agents from engaging inupbibusiness practices, including activities prabd
by the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices (R€&PA). Nevertheless, because we work through ieégnt sales agents and distributors (and d
have any employees or subsidiaries) outside théetrbtates, we do not have control over the dajato-activities of such independent agents
distributors. In addition, in the dondnded markets in Africa where we sell our produtiisre is significant oversight from PEPFAR, tHelial Fund, an
advisory committees comprised of technical expeaiscerning the development and establishment abmedttesting protocols. This is a process
includes an overall assessment of a product whidtudes extensive product performance evaluatiowsuding five active collaborations &
manufactures quality systems, as well as price and delivényBrazil where we have had a total of six prodogliaborations with FIOCRUZ, tho
programs that our products are or may be deplayedd all funded by the Brazilian Ministry of HeaalAlthough FIOCRUZ is affiliated with the Brazik
Ministry of Health, it is not its exclusive supplitHowever because each of our collaborations R@CRUZ incorporates a technology transfer aspee
believe we have a competitive advantage versus stigpliers to the Brazilian Ministry of Health,sasning other aspects of our product offering thh
FIOCRUZ are otherwise competitive in comparison. Nsee no knowledge or reason to know of any a@s/iby our employees, distributors or sales ai
of any actions which could be in violation of th€FA, although there can be no assurance of this.

We rely on trade secret laws and agreements with okey employees and other third parties to protecbur proprietary rights, and we cannot be
sure that these laws or agreements adequately prateour rights.

We believe that factors such as the technologieel @eative skills of our personnel, strategictreteships, new product developments, frequent pot
enhancements and name recognition are essential ®uccess. All our management personnel aredobymondisclosure agreements. If personnel It
our employment, in some cases we would be requeprotect our intellectual property rights pursuém common law theories which may be
protective than provisions of employment, non-cotitip@ or non-disclosure agreements.
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We seek to protect our proprietary products unidetet secret and copyright laws, enter into liceggeements for various materials and methods erag
in our products, and enter into strategic relatiguss for distribution of the products. These stgégs afford only limited protection. We currentigve
some foreign patents issued, and we are seekingoadd patent protection in several other foreijgnsdictions for our DPP&echnology. We ha
licenses to reagents (antigens and peptides) ussevieral of our products and products under dpwedmt Despite our efforts to protect our proprig
assets, and respect the intellectual propertygighbthers, we participate in several markets weliellectual property rights protections areittfel or nc
value. This can place our products and our compaaycompetitive disadvantage.

Despite efforts we make to protect our confidentibrmation, such as entering confidentiality agnents in connection with new business opportis;
unauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspectsupfproducts or to obtain information that we relgas proprietary. We may be required to ex|
substantial resources in asserting or protectimgraellectual property rights, or in defendingtsuielated to intellectual property rights. Digmitegardin
intellectual property rights could substantiallyajeproduct development or commercialization atigi because some of our available funds wou
diverted away from our business activities. Disgutegarding intellectual property rights mightline state, federal or foreign court litigationvesll as
patent interference, patent reexamination, pagssue, or trademark opposition proceedings itJti$e Patent and Trademark Office.

To facilitate development and commercializatioragroprietary technology base, we may need to mldditional licenses to patents or other propm
rights from other parties. Obtaining and maintagnthese licenses, which may not be available, reqyire the payment of upent fees and royalties.
addition, if we are unable to obtain these typelicehses, our product development and commerei#iz efforts may be delayed or precluded.

Our continued growth depends on retaining our curret key employees and attracting additional qualifié personnel, and we may not be able to «
S0.

Our success will depend to a large extent upomskilis and experience of our executive officerspnagement and sales, marketing, operations andtiéici
staff. We may not be able to attract or retainligd employees in the future due to the intensmpetition for qualified personnel among medicaldurct:
businesses, geographic considerations, our atilibffer competitive compensation, relocation pags benefits, and/or other reasons.

If we are not able to attract and retain the nesggsersonnel to accomplish our business objectivesnay experience constraints that will adverséigc
our ability to effectively manufacture, sell and ket our products to meet the demands of our gfi@fgartners in a timely fashion, or to supporeina
research and development programs. Although weugelve will be successful in attracting and rategrgualified personnel, competition for experied
scientists and other personnel from numerous corepamd academic and other research institutionyslimé our ability to do so on acceptable terms.

We have entered into employment contracts with@hief Executive Officer and President, Lawrenceb8ig and our Senior Vice President of Rese
and Development, Javan Esfandiari. Due to theifip&nowledge and experience of these executieganding the industry, technology and market
loss of the services of either one of them woutélli have a material adverse effect on the Compding contract with Mr. Siebert provides that
Siebert will serve as the Chief Executive Officad@resident of the Company through May 11, 2008 contract with Mr. Esfandiari has a term of &
years ending March 2016. We have obtained a keyinsrance policy for Mr. Esfandiari.

We believe our success depends in part on the canied funding of and our ability to participate in large testing programs in the U.S. an
worldwide and funding may be reduced, or discontined and/or we may not be able to participate for otér reasons.

We believe it to be in our best interests to megfuily participate in large testing programs. Mworer many of these programs are funded by goverts
and other donors and there can be no assurancéuttaitg will not be reduced or completely discangd. Participation in these programs also res
alignment and engagement with the many other fgatits in these programs including the World He&itiganization, U.S. Center for Disease Cor
U.S. Agency for International Development, foregpvernments and their agencies, mmvernmental organizations, and HIV service orgaions. [If we
are unsuccessful in our efforts to participatehese programs, our operating results could be rabyenarmed.
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Although we were profitable in 2009, 2010, 2011 ar2D12, we cannot be certain that we will be able ®&ustain profitability in 2013.

From the inception of Chembio Diagnostic Systems, In 1985 through the period ended December 828, 2we incurred net losses and we have
become profitable during the last four years. Maezan 2013 we expect to make substantial experaditfor regulatory submissions, product develop
and other purposes which may impact profitabili@ur ability to continue profitability in the futerwill primarily depend on our ability to increasales ¢
our products, reduce production and other costd, tansuccessfully introduce new products and ergdnersions of our existing products into
marketplace. If we are unable to increase ourmaeee at a rate that is sufficient to achieve pabfiity, or adequately control and reduce our ofxegecosts
our operating results would be materially harmed.

To the extent that we are unable to obtain sufficiet product liability insurance or that we incur pro duct liability exposure that is not covered by ou
product liability insurance, our operating results could be materially harmed.

We may be held liable if any of our products, oy anoduct which is made with the use or incorporaif any of the technologies belonging to us, eg
injury of any type or is found otherwise unsuitablgring product testing, manufacturing, marketisgle or usage. We have obtained product lia
insurance even though we have never received augrdidbility claim, and have generally not seendurct liability claims for screening tests that
accompanied by appropriate disclaimers. Nevershela the event there is a claim, this insuranag not fully cover our potential liabilities. Irddition,
as we attempt to bring new products to market, \ag need to increase our product liability coverafpch could be a significant additional expense
we may not be able to afford. If we are unableltain sufficient insurance coverage at an accéptadst to protect us, we may be forced to aba
efforts to commercialize our products or thosewf sirategic partners, which would reduce our reesn

Risks related to our Common Stor
Our Common Stock continues to be illiquid, so invasrs may not be able to sell as much stock as thesant at prevailing market prices.

The average daily trading volume of our Common Stmt the NASDAQ market was 44,000 share per day theethree months ended March 1, 201
compared to less than 4,375 shares per day @ft@unting for the 1 for 8 reverse split that wiiisotuated on May 30, 2012) over the three montiuee
March 6, 2012. Therefore, there has been a sigmifiincrease in the liquidity of our stock basedtiois comparison, and our stock began tradin
NASDAQ in early June, 2012. However, continued riayements in the liquidity of our stock dependsseneral factors, including but not limited to
financial results of the Company and overall madagtditions, so there can be no assurance thantpi®vement will continue, or even be maintained.

Decreased trading volume in our stock would makmadte difficult for investors to sell their sharesthe public market at any given time at prevag
prices.

Our management and larger stockholders exercise sigicant control over our Company.

As of March 6, 2013, our named executive officatisectors and 5% stockholders beneficially ownegragimately 16.4% of our voting power.
addition, we have one large institutional invedtmat beneficially owned 8.3% of the stock. For theeseeable future, and assuming these owne
percentages continue to pertain, to the extentttieste parties vote similarly, they may be ablexercise significant control over many matters néow
approval by the board of directors or our stockbdd As a result, they may be able to:

e control the composition of our board of directprs

e control our management and policies;

e determine the outcome of significant corporatagetions, including changes in control that mapémeficial to stockholders; and

e act in each of their own interests, which may Boimvith, or be different from, the interests afah other or the interests of the other stockhslder
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our administrative offices and research facilittee located in Medford, New York. We lease apprately 30,600 square feet of industrial spact
$20,530 per month. The space is utilized for neteand development activities (approximately 4,$60are feet), offices (approximately 4,640 sq
feet) and production (approximately 21,800 squast)f The lease term expires on April 30, 201Fhe monthly rent for the year ending April 30, 2
will increase by the lower of (i) the change in tomsumer price index, or (i) five percent; anyitfee monthly rent for years three through fivelaf leas
will increase each year by the lower of (i) theradpin the consumer price index, or (ii) two ane &alf percent. Additional space may be requiede
expand our production and research and developactinities. We do not foresee any significantidiffties in obtaining any required additional féas.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we may be involved in litigatioelating to claims arising out of our operationstiie normal course of business. We know ¢
material, existing or pending legal proceedingsragais, nor are we involved as a plaintiff in angterial proceeding or pending litigation. There ac
proceedings in which any of our directors, officersffiliates, or any registered or beneficialrgtlder, is an adverse party or has a materiatént that i
adverse to our interest.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not Applicable.
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PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our stock is quoted on the NASDAQ, under the synmiB&MI.” Prior to June 8, 2012, our stock was quoted orfOfR€QB and prior to February 24, 2(
on the OTC Bulletin Board. On May 30, 2012, a reeesplit was effected at a ratio of 8 for 1. Tall¢ below sets forth the high and low bid pricet
share of our common stock for each quarter of warrmost recently completed fiscal years, quarteis po June 2012 were adjusted for the split. esk
prices represent inter-dealer quotations withotailrenarkup, markdown, or commission and may naessarily represent actual transactions.

Fiscal Year 2012 High Bid Low Bid

First Quarter $ 4.0t $ 3.1z
Second Quarter $ 49€ $ 3.52
Third Quarter $ 53C $ 4.11
Fourth Quarter $ 5.8C $ 3.61
Fiscal Year 2011 High Bid Low Bid

First Quarte $ 40C $ 3.1z
Second Quarte $ 464 % 3.2¢
Third Quartel $ 3.8 $ 3.2¢
Fourth Quarte $ 384 $ 2.8¢

On May 30, 2012, the Company undertook an 8ifoeverse stock split in order to have a stockepsigfficient to qualify for listing on NASDAQ, whi
occurred on June 7, 2012.

Holders
As of March 1, 2013, there were approximately 1,88rd owners of our common stock.
Dividends

The Company has never paid cash dividends oniitsrem stock and has no plans to do so in the foat$eéuture.
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securitie

During 2012, we issued unregistered securitfedyding 3,752 unregistered shares of our commarksind options to purchase 3,750 unregistered
shares of our common stock to The Benchmark Compdny (“Benchmark”). The shares were issued todenark in four installments under the below
terms. The options granted to Benchmark the tiglpurchase up to 3,750 unregistered shares afamumon stock at the purchase price of $4.00 peesha
on or before March 19, 2015. One-quarter of thigoap granted vested on each of the dates setifottte chart below. These securities were issoed
Benchmark in consideration for services providetheoCompany and were not subject to any undengrifiscounts or commissions.

Unregistered Shares Issued to Benchmark

Market Price Per Share

Consideration

Date Number of Shares
March 19, 201: 93¢
June 19, 201 93¢
September 19, 201 93¢
December 19, 201 93¢

@a B P LH

3.84
4.8C
4.31
4.5¢

& &BH P B

3,601.9:
4,502.4(
4,042.7t
4,296.0:

The issuance of these securities was not regstander the Securities Act of 1933, as amended'&bt”). These securities were issued in reliaone
an exemption from registration under Section 3¢3ection 4(2) of the Act, and Rule 506 promulgatader the Act, based on the fact that Benchmark is

an “accredited investor” as such term is defineRuie 501 of Regulation D.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Presented in this table are selected financial fdatthe past five years ended December 31, 2012.
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Statement of Operations Dati

TOTAL REVENUES

GROSS MARGIN

OPERATING COSTS:

Research and developme
expense:

Selling, general an
administrative expenses

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA

December 31, 201

As of and For the Years Endec

December 31, 201

December 31, 201 December 31,200 December 31, 200

INCOME (LOSS) FROM
OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME
(EXPENSES):

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
INCOME TAXES

Income tax (benefit) provisior
NET INCOME (LOSS)
Basic income (loss) per shar

Diluted income (loss) pel
share

Weighted average number o
shares outstanding, basic

Weighted average number o
shares outstanding, diluted

25,610,59 $ 19,388,03 $ 16,704,70 $ 13,834,24 $ 11,049,57
10,789,99 42% 9,390,30: 48% 8,100,69' 48% 5,860,40! 42% 3,851,72. 35%
4,486,30. 18% 4,878,11' 25% 2,586,300 15% 2,883,691 21% 2,605,34: 24%
4,851,58 1% 3,424,29° 18% 2,940,72. 18% 2,659,38. 19% 3,317,041 30%
9,337,88! 8,302,41 5,527,02" 5,543,07; 5,922,38!
1,452,10: 1,087,88 2,573,671 317,32 (2,070,66))
(1,584) (12,325 (14,50%) (8,267) 121,89¢
1,450,511 6% 1,075,56. 6% 2,559,16" 15% 309,060 2%  (1,948,77) 18%
509,23" (5,133,22)) 45 82: - -
941,28: $  6,208,79 $  2,559,16 $ 309,06( $  (1,948,77) 18%
0.1¢ $ 0.7¢ $ 0.3 $ 0.04 $ (0.25)
0.11 $ 0.7¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.0: $ (0.25)
7,986,03 7,874,80 7,762,85: 7,743,30. 7,658,36!
8,614,94. 8,556,28. 8,865,11. 9,380,24; 7,658,36!
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

This discussion and analysis should be read inuoatipn with the accompanying Consolidated Findriatements and related notes. Our discussio
analysis of our financial condition and resultsopkrations are based upon our consolidated finbsigitements, which have been prepared in accoe
with accounting principles generally accepted i thited States. The preparation of financial stategts in conformity with accounting principles geaiky
accepted in the United States of America requise®umake estimates and assumptions that affecefiieted amounts of assets and liabilities, d&gie o
any contingent liabilities at the financial statermndate and reported amounts of revenue and expelusimg the reporting period. On an ongoing bage
review our estimates and assumptions. Our estinaaéebased on our historical experience and ottgmaptions that we believe to be reasonable uhd
circumstances. Actual results are likely to difiexm those estimates under different assumptiormonditions, but we do not believe such differeneék
materially affect our financial position or resuttSoperations. Our critical accounting policidse policies we believe are most important to tlesentatio
of our financial statements and require the md§icdlt, subjective and complex judgments, are ioetil below in “Critical Accounting Policies,and hav
not changed significantly.

In addition, certain statements made in this repaaly constitute “forward-looking statements”. Tédsrwardiooking statements involve known
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors i@y cause the actual results, performance oraamients of the Company to be materially differeain
any future results, performance or achievementsesspd or implied by the forwaldeking statements. These factors include, amohgrst 1) our abilit
to obtain necessary regulatory approvals for oadpets; and 2) our ability to increase revenuesap@tating income, which is dependent upon ouitg
to develop and sell our products, general econaanclitions, demand for our products, and otherofactYou can identify forwaréboking statements |
terminology such as “may,” “could”, “will,” “should “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “anticipates,” ‘#ieves,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,”
“continues” or the negative of these terms or otmmparable terminology. Although we believe tha expectations reflected in the forwdodking
statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee fasults, levels of activity, performance or agbiments.

[T »ow now [T ” o

Except as may be required by applicable law, waataindertake or intend to update or revise owdodlooking statements, and we assume no oblig
to update any forwartboking statements contained in this report assaltef new information or future events or devetmmts. Thus, you should |
assume that our silence over time means that agteals are bearing out as expressed or impliedéh forwardooking statements. You should caref
review and consider the various disclosures we nvakieis report and our other reports filed witle tRecurities and Exchange Commission that attes
advise interested parties of the risks, uncertsrdind other factors that may affect our business.

All of the Company’s future products that are cathgbeing developed are based on its patented Patid Platform (DPP®)yhich is a unique diagnos
point-of-care platform that has certain advantages ovemalaiew technology. The Company has completedettigyment of several products that em|
the DPP® technology, two of which will be marketettler Chembio’s label (DPP® HIV 1/2 Screening Asaagl DPPE&Syphilis Screen & Confirm) ai
several others that have been developed spegffictited to private label agreements with The Qdw&ruz Foundation (“FIOCRUZ™or the Braziliai
public health market, as explained below.

All of the Company’s products other than its latdlaw tests (see PRODUCTS and Our Rapid Test Teldyies) are based on the Companpatente
Dual Path Platform (DPP®&gchnology. The Company has had very active rebesmrd development programs and has significantlseased its spendi
on research and development during the last theaesy Thirdparty funding from research and development cotsrand grants have offset a signific
portion of these increased research and developexpenses. Externally funded R&D programs weréquéarly instrumental in helping the Compan
avoid raising capital during 200810, which was a very difficult period for fundsig. Moreover these collaborations have restittesignificant thirc
party validations of our DPP® technology and améasing capability to develop, manufacture, vaéidahd improve current and future DPP®ducts an
product features.

The Company has a number of additional producteuddvelopment that employ the DPR®hnology. These product development activitresfarthe
described below.

Multiplex Influenza Immunity Test — In July 2012 we entered into a follow-on, milestormsed development agreement of up to $480,000 lww
Chembio’s previous successful initial developmema onultiplex rapid point-of-care (“POCThfluenza immunity test utilizing our patented Diratt
Platform (DPP®) technology. The agreement contatepla period of approximately six months in whieh follow-on development activity is to
completed.

Chembio entered this agreement with a private eetitrg organization that is engaged to enter implement and provide technical oversigh
agreements relating to pandemic preparedness atf loélits client, the United States Centers fosézise Control and Prevention (“CDC").
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As a result of pandemic planning activities, thetéth States Department of Health and Human Seryit#dS”) and CDC identified POC and high-
throughput testing as a gap in influenza diagnssRapid responses in the field, such as the vatiom prophylactic treatment, or isolation of pats
require POC diagnostic tests for influenza infattend immunity. Ideally, these tests should be, fpsttable, self-contained, and ntaghnical
Development of these tests is especially criticalrilitary forces, as evidenced by previous infiz@ outbreaks that spread rapidly through de
populated barracks and have killed thousands dfessl

The previous development work for this product veasnpleted by Chembio in 2011 pursuant to an ini#800,000 contract with this sa
organization. The objective of this folloan project is to further develop a rapid influenzanunity test which can be administered in thedfitd
determine a persosrinfluenza immunity status or in an outpatientisgtincorporating certain additional subunits ofluenza virus proteins. Wc
commenced on this follown development project during the third quarteceterated during the fourth quarter, and will benpeted during the fir
quarter of 2013.

DPP® Hepatitis-C (HCV) Test —Development work on our DPP® HCV point-cére rapid test continues. In June, we reported filatn a stud
evaluating performance characteristics (sensitiaityl specificity) of our first generation test, atidata was published in the Journal of Clir
Virology. The study authors concluded that the Chienblood rapid assay demonstrated acceptabletséysand specificity, and was comparable
conventional assays currently in use. The studylteeshowed that the Chembio DPP® HCYV fingtck blood test had a sensitivity of 92.8% agaa
laboratorybased enzyme immunoassay (EIA) screening assagmetewhile it demonstrated 97.1% sensitivity aglaithe Centers for Disease Cor
and Prevention (CDC) reference method algorithmctvhitilizes a third generation recombinant immunblalssay (RIBA). The DPP® fingstick
blood test achieved 99.0% specificity on both mafiee methods.

During the third quarter of 2012 we completed asifaiity study on proprietary materials which wdibee will enable us to develop an HCV rapid
that is equivalent to the only directly competitipeduct; however we were waiting to receive add#i proprietary materials that we believe c
enable us to improve performance and featureseofetst as compared to the competitive product. hée recently received these materials whic
enabling us to continue our development activitiith respect to the improved performance featufeese objectives are achieved, we will proc
with a full development program, and we could caetpldevelopment and commence clinical trials betfoeeend of 2013.

In July 2012, the U.S. Centers for Disease Cofiitnalized the recommendations for testing alividuals in the United States between the age$
and 65 for HCV, which age cohort represents a ankist portion of the estimated over three milliadividuals in the United States that are infe
with HCV infection but unaware. With a humber ofananti+etroviral therapies approved, and even more pgndpproval in the years ahead by
FDA, we believe that over time these new recommimaga will be implemented. However, it is uncléaw much of these recommendations wil
funded by public health programs or under the Afédnle Care Act. Regardless if these recommendatiom implemented, we believe that they
take time to be funded.

DPP® Syphilis/HIV Combination Test— We have developed a combination Syphilis and HBY &énd we are considering various opportunitiet
respect to this product for the international magdeleast. This is an example of the multiplexaagabilities that we expect to drive the Company’
revenues and growth. We will manufacture this pob@is a Chembibranded product and as a component for final adgembther markets where \
are considering collaborations. We believe theeeopportunities for this product in donor-funded-patal testing programs aimed at the preventi
mother-to-child transmission, and the United Statewell.

DPP® Tuberculosis -In February 2011, we were awarded a thyear $2.9 million, Small Business Innovative ResedSBIR) Phase Il grant frc

the United States National Institutes of HealthHNto continue our successful Phase | grant workléeelop a simple, rapid, accurate, and cost-
effective serological test for active tuberculdsiat can be utilized in resourtitited settings. During 2012, we continued thesvelopment work wit

our DPP® technology. Several additional antigensgeHaeen identified recently to enhance antibodgat&n by the DPP®&est prototype designed

our Phase | studies. In addition, new detectiohrielogies are being evaluated to further increasasisvity.

Other Potential Products and Collaborations- We are currently completing development of certhrer products for single parameter and multi
tests, utilizing our patented DPP®/e also are discussing exclusive collaborationgtfese products or proprietary components thereitti certair
potential international partners that, if consunedatwould provide us with local assembly and distibn, a co-branded DPP@roduct in th
designated market, and a more meaningful stakeeisuccess of the distribution program.
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In general, we are considering certain new DPP®&dycb opportunities, either as OEM development ptsjeand/or as Chembiarande:
products. These products are being identified dag®n our assessment of opportunities in the nahe upon whether they can be addressec
our proprietary technology, along with our devel@mnand manufacturing capabilities and experiewte are also identifying and assessing addit
technologies that we believe could provide us aidHitional products and capabilities, and thereloyide additional revenue streams, although tts
no assurance that we will be able to obtain oizetiiny of them profitably.

Requlatory Activities

CE Mark for FDA-approved HIV tests — We were audited by our notified body in Septemlyet aur technical file is being reviewed. We expa
decision on CE Marking of these products soon.

FDA Approval for DPP® HIV 1/2 Screening Assay for e with oral fluid or blood samples “We received FDA approval of our Pkéarketing
Application (PMA) for this product on December 2812 as we announced. We are now working towar@dklA waiver with the expectation tha
will be granted before the end of 2013. Our curpan is to initiate the CLIA study in March 2018&ve the submission into FDA by July, and he
CLIA waiver during the fourth quarter.

DPP® Syphilis Screen & Confirm - During the fourth quarter of 2012 we receivetbdaat we had been pursuing that we believe stijggde Nov(
FDA 510(K) clearance regulatory pathway for thedouret. As a result we submitted this data and oiifermation to the FDA so that we could re-
initiate clinical trials and submit our 510(k) ajgaition by the middle of 2013. In addition to aesdific journal publication in December 2012 ot
results of a large study that was conducted with ghoduct in 201@®011 in China, we have received additional datenfather studies of this prodi
that we believe will also be useful in supporting cegulatory file. There is no point-a&re test for Syphilis that differentiates betwaetive and pas
previously treated cases, and there continues todubstantial interest in this product by pubkelth groups in the United States and abroad. M
confident that our DPP®yphilis Screen & Confirm test detects primary atiiens more accurately than the legacy laboratesy known as Rag
Plasma Reagin (“RPR").

In late February we received a response from th& #@&t will enable us to pursue the regulatory path that we outlined in our submission. Howe
there were some questions that we have concerhimg=DA response and we intend to have those @drifn a meeting being scheduled
month. While we confirm our intended study apploaith FDA, we are completing our protocol, haveritified three clinical sites and their contre
with the expectation that we will commence the &sidh May, submit the 510(k) application to FDA ttwe end of the third quarter, and have an
clearance by mid-2014.

DPP® HIV-Syphilis — We have submitted this product for evaluation iy @DC and the WHO has accepted this product ferpedification in thei
global procurement scheme. Other internationaktedions are pending. We have not yet submitemlidance request to the FDA for determi
the pathways for getting this multiplex combinatijproduct approved/cleared by the FDA, but plandons However we still plan to initiate -
syphilis studies (the HIV component of this tesali®ady approved pursuant to the PMA approvaliveden December 2012), in May, submit the 510
(k) application to FDA by the end of the third qiesy and have an FDA clearance by mid-2014.

SURE CHECK® HIV OTC Study - We completed the self-testing study to meetdiggiirements for submitting an IDE (“InvestigatibBevice
Exemption”) application in order to commence clalitrials for this product in 2013. The IDE apglion can be filed nhow and we plan to do this
soon. Thereafter, assuming the IDE is grantedPtiese Il observed user clinical trials could bmmenced during 2013 and the pivotal trial could be
completed during 2014. This would enable a PMArapal by late-2015.

There have been very significant recent developsneriated to this market opportunity, as the fiegtid HIV test for home use was recommende
approval by the FDA'’s Blood Products Advisory Corttee (“BPAC”)in a unanimous vote, and the test was in fact aggordy the FDA in early Ju
with widespread media attention. The manufactafehis product, OraSure Technologies, Inc. (“Onm&S)y launched this product in retail drug stc
during October.

OraSure’s final clinical trial for the homese version enrolled 5,798 subjects from 17 higtvglence sites and three low prevalence sites sathe
country. OraSure gave subjects the test to takeehenmd perform themselves, but also collected b&aodples to compare to the results of the home
based testing. The specificity of the test remaingdtively high, 99.98% (95% CI: 99.90-100%), eaisbve BPACS recommended threshc
However, sensitivity dropped in comparison to pssfenal use of the kit to 92.98% from 99.3%.
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Given this low performance threshold, we believeane very well positioned with our SURE CHECK® HIV2 blood test as well as our other FDA-
approved products. However we believe that theldpugent of this market will take time, and thatdesvelopment will likely require OraSure to in\
significantly in its development, as it is now. aure’s firstthree month period results for this product, whieas in the fourth quarter of 20:
reported in February 2013 did nothing to change éipectation. Although we still believe that Chésrib the only other company that for all pract
purposes has a product, let alone multiple progdubtst can participate in this new market, we hageous reservations about the size ol
opportunity, particularly in relation to the sigiodint investment of funds required in order to aghiregulatory approval and then commercializ
product. Nevertheless, because OraSupebduct was approved with lower sensitivity thaas previously expected by the FDA, this provida
opportunity for Chembio’s product(s) to achieve immped performance either with its blood and/or oral fluid HIV testéle believe it is critical to ¢

to this market with a substantially improved sewisjt and comparable specificity to OraSwggiroduct, and a lower price (which would includevéi
packaging and distribution costs as compared witts@e), and our current efforts are focused mdirection.

There can be no assurance that any of the aforeorestt Research & Development and/or Regulatorydpets or activities will result in any prodt
approvals or commercialization, nor that any of theisting research and development activities, oy aew potential development programs
collaborations will materialize or that they willeat regulatory or any other technical requiremeantsl specifications, and/or that if continued, wébult ir
completed products, or that such products, if #@ysuccessfully completed, can or will be sucodgsfommercialized.

Recent Events

The Company entered into an employment agreeméattiek March 5, 2013 (the "Employment Agreementi)th Mr. Esfandiari to continue as |
Company's Senior Vice President of Research anélbewment for an additional term of three yearsugtoMarch 5, 2016. See Item 11 for more details.

In accordance with the terms of the Compang008 Stock Incentive Plan, on February 26, 28i8,Company granted, to certain employees @
Company, options to purchase an aggregate of 1&B&fes of the Comparsytommon stock. The exercise price for these ngtivas to be equal to 1
last traded price for the Compasy¢common stock on February 26, 2013, which wa$ &tHper share. The options become exercisahtlesoaffective dai
of the grant. Each option granted will expire dedninate, if not exercised sooner, upon the eattieoccur of (a) 30 days after termination of
employees employment with the Company or (b) the fifth aensary of the effective date of the grant. Thfang table identifies the portions of the
options issued to officers of the Company.

Name of Executive Officer Number of Shares of Common Stock Option
Richard Bruce- Vice President of Operatiol 1,520
Javan Esfandia— Executive Vice President of R& 4,765
Tom Ippolito- Vice President of Regulatory Affairs, QA & G 1,775
Richard J. Larkir— Chief Financial Office 1,670
Lawrence A. Sieber~ Chief Executive Office 5,215
Michael Steele Vice President of Sales and Market 785
Sharon Klugewic— Vice President of QA/Q( 630

On May 30, 2012, the Company effected a 1&aeverse split of its common stock. This was dmonallow the Company to move to the NASDAQ tra
market from the OTCQB market, which occurred oneJ@n2012. As a result of the reverse stock dpié, 63,967,265 outstanding common shares
reduced to 7,995,918 outstanding common sharesayn3d, 2012.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AS COMPARED WITH THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2011

Income :

Income before income taxes for the year ended Dieeedil, 2012 increased to $1,451,000 from $1,006{00the year ended December 31, 2011.
Income decreased from $6.2 million for 2011 to $@#ion for 2012 despite the increase in incoméobe taxes. The decrease in net income is prig
attributable to a $5.1 million benefit resultingrin the partial elimination of the deferred tax assduation allowance in 2011. In 2012, as a testik
39.6% increase in Net Product sales and a 34.7%ase in noproduct revenues, the Company had a $1,400,0001.6%6, increase in its gross margir
$10,790,000. This increased gross margin fundect@sed operating expenses, the most significamhath was an increase in commission expens
$606,000, due to the increased sales in Brazil.

Revenues:
Selected Product Categories For the years endec
December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ Change % Change

Lateral Flow HIV Tests and

Components $ 13,505,84 $ 12,865,54 $ 640,30t 4.98%
DPP Tests and Component 10,086,45 4,255,03: 5,831,42 137.0%%
Other 735,04 301,73t 433,30¢ 143.6(%
Net Product Sales 24,327,35 17,422,31 6,905,04. 39.6%%
License and royalty revenue - 140,32: (140,32) -100.0%
R&D, milestone and grant revenue 1,283,241 1,825,40. (542,16 -29.7(%
Total Revenues $ 25,610,59 $ 19,388,03 $ 6,222,55! 32.09%

Revenues for our lateral flow HIV tests and relatechponents during the year ended December 31, 2@i€ased by $640,000 over the same peri
2011. This was primarily attributable to increasates in the U.S., through Alere, of $515,000, iacceased sales in Africa of $329,000; and watgm
offset by decreased sales in other regions. Adtbnthese increases were increased other saleshwidreased by 144%, or $433,000, primarily f
increased sales of Chagas. Sales of our Dp@@ucts in 2012 increased by $5,831,000, or 13&¥pared to levels in 2011 as Brazil began rampj
their programs in 2012 for the five ANVISA-approvB®P®products. The decrease in R&D, milestone and gesr@nue was primarily due to a decre
in grants and other development projects of $54240ng with a decrease in royalty income of $1@0,0R&D revenues in 2012 include funds, recogr
on an “as expenses are incurredsis, from a Phase Il NIH grant for Leptospirogibjch was effective as of June 1, 2009, and froRhase Il grant f(
Tuberculosis which was effective March 1, 2011.e Tdecrease in R&D, milestone and grant revenue duasto revenue from milestones and ce
development projects in 2011, which were not reggbaticense and royalty revenue in 2011 is frowyalties from Brazil under our 2004 technoli
transfer and license agreement, which ended pridatuary 1, 2012.

Gross Margin:

Gross Margin related to Net Product

Sales: For the years endec
December 31, 201. December 31, 201. $ Change % Change

Gross Margin per Statement of
Operations $ 10,789,99 $ 9,390,30: $ 1,399,68: 14.91%
Less: R&D, milestone, grant, licenst

and royalties 1,283,241 1,965,72! (682,48 -34.7%
Gross Margin from Net Product Sales $ 9,506,75 $ 7,424,557 $ 2,082,17. 28.0%%
Product Gross Margin % 39.08% 42.62%

The gross margin dollar increase of $1.40 millinclided a 28% increase in gross margin from prosalets, thereby more than offsetting a 35% dec
in nonproduct revenues. The 3.5% decrease in our pragoss margin percentage was primarily due to irseréaverhead items, especially in the fc
quarter. In the fourth quarter we went to a tisinift, increased overtime and had to hire tempoeanployees (all who needed training) in order télffthe
large back orders we had going into the quarteraddition, during 2012 we incurred more scrap tegmected and we have taken steps to correctrid
many other issues to reduce costs in the futufeP@sales represented approximately 41% of sales iyahe ended December 31, 2012 as compal
approximately 24% in the year ended December 311.20
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Research and Development:

This category includes costs incurred for prodasearch and development, regulatory approvalspiealsupport, evaluations and registrations.

Selected expense line: For the years endec

December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ Change % Change
Clinical and Regulatory Affairs:
Wages and related cost $ 436,66¢ $ 465,68¢ $ (29,020 -6.25%
Consulting 61,66 7,671 53,98" 703.2%
Stock-based compensatiol 28,27¢ 18,85¢ 9,42( 49,950
Clinical trials 820,08 1,244,23! (424,151 -34.0%%
Other 46,21 58,19: (11,979 -20.56%
Total Regulatory 1,392,91/ 1,794,65: (401,74 -22.3%%
R&D Other than Regulatory:
Wages and related cost 1,956,53! 2,145,37 (188,84) -8.8(%
Consulting 137,78¢ 68,79: 68,99¢ 100.3(%
Stock-based compensatiol 41,83¢ 36,76¢ 5,07: 13.8(%
Materials and supplies 646,27 552,45¢ 93,81*¢ 16.9¢%
Other 310,95¢ 280,07 30,88: 11.02%
Total other than Regulatory 3,093,39; 3,083,46! 9,92¢ 0.32%
Total Research and Developmer $ 4.486,30. $ 4.878,11' $ (391,81) -8.05%

Expenses for Clinical & Regulatory Affairs for tlgear ended December 31, 2012 decreased by $402s08@mpared to the same period in 2011. Thit
primarily due to the higher expenses we incurre2dibl for clinical trials conducted for our DPP@&WHSEcreen Assay.

R&D expenses other than Clinical & Regulatory Affaincreased by $10,000 in the year ended DeceBhe2012 as compared with the same perit
2011 and were primarily related to an increasenimsalting, material and supply and other expensasially offset by decreases in personnel costs.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense:

Selected expense line: For the years endec
December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ Change % Change

Wages and related cost $ 1,534,441 $ 1,249,90 $ 284,53: 22.7¢%
Consulting 261,05: 199,65¢ 61,39¢ 30.75%
Commissions 1,208,941 603,37" 605,56¢ 100.3¢%
Stock-based compensatiol 174,46 115,47¢ 58,98t 51.08%
Marketing materials 65,24¢ 50,90( 14,34¢ 28.1%
Investor relations/investment bankers 282,05¢ 176,29 105,76: 59.9%
Legal, accounting and complianct 559,56¢ 448,67¢ 110,89: 24. 7%
Travel, entertainment and trade

shows 163,70: 67,50« 96,20( 142.5%
Bad debt allowance (recovery 28,00( (5,000 33,00( -660.0(%
Other 574,10! 517,50: 56,60: 10.9%%
Total S, G &A $ 485158 $ 3,42429 $ 1,427,291 41.68%

Selling, general and administrative expenses ftar ended December 31, 2012 increased by 41stnapared with the same period in 2011. This
primarily due to increases in commission expenseb@d6,000 primarily on sales to Brazil, wages asthted expenses of $285,000, stbelse
compensation of $59,000, consulting expenses of0P61 professional fees of $111,000 and investtatee expenses, including NASDAQ fees
$106,000.
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Other Income and Expense:

For the years endec

December 31, 201 December 31, 201. $ Change % Change
Interest income $ 7911 % 6,29¢ $ 1,612 25.61%
Interest expense (9,495 (18,627 9,12¢ -49.01%
Total Other Income and (Expense.  $ (1,589 $ (12,325 $ 10,74: -87.15%

Other expense for the year ended December 31, @8dr2ased approximately $10,700 to $1,600 as cadpaith $12,300 for the same period in 2!
primarily as a result of decreased interest expeh$8,100 due to the term loan with HSBC and anease in interest income of $1,600.

Income tax (benefit) provision:

Prior to 2011 and through September 30, 2011, tnmapgany had a full valuation allowance recorded regjaileferred tax assets. In the fourth quart
2011, based on our sustained profitable operaterfppnance over the past three years and our pesitutiook for taxable income in the future,
Company reevaluated its deferred tax asset. Bgsaul the guidance under ASC 740, we concluded theds more likely than not that the Company w:
realize the benefit of such deferred tax assets,Gbmpany reversed $5,156,000 of the valuatiorwalhee previously recorded against its deferre:
assets, which resulted in a tax benefit increasetancome of that amount. It also increasedGbmpanys book value by that amount. The deferrec
asset will be amortized against future income tgxease that would be payable in the absence afigheperating loss carryfoward. For the yearee
December 31, 2012 the Company charged $509,00@&:¢onie tax expense and reduced the deferred tats d5s8471,085. The Company still maintail
full valuation allowance on research and develogrtencredits.

MATERIAL CHANGES IN FINANCIAL CONDITION

Selected Changes in Financie
Condition As of
December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ Change % Change
Cash and cash equivalel $ 2,951,85 $ 3,010,95 $ (59,099 -1.96%
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts of $58,000 an
$30,000 at December 31, 2012 anc

December 31, 2011, respectiv: 4,821,35 2,998,44! 1,822,90:i 60.8(%
Inventories 2,488,07. 2,300,28! 187,78! 8.16%
Fixed assets, net of accumula

depreciatior 1,427,641 1,062,271 365,37( 34.4(%
Deferred tax asset, net of valuat

allowance 4,233,19. 4,749,622 (516,429 -10.81%
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 3,303,92: 2,789,501 514,42: 18.4%%

Cash decreased by $59,000 from December 31, 2@itiandy due to the increase in accounts receivaide of allowance change which increased
by $1,823,000 along with an increase in inventod€$188,000, partially offset by an increase imamts payable and accrued liabilities of
$514,000 and utilization of the long-term defertad asset of $516,000 (short-term change of $45r336 to $471,000 overall change), (see
liquidity section for more details). Net fixed assincreased primarily due to increases in maturfiag equipment and improvements.

The increase in accounts receivable was primatitjbatable to a larger amount of credit sales ec®mber of 2012 compared to December 2011.

increase in accounts payable and in inventorieg Wweth primarily due to a larger amount of matsri@idered and manufactured for orders due to &
the first quarter of 2013.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

For the years endec

December 31, 201 December 31, 201 $ Change % Change

Net cash provided by operatinc

activities $ 761,08: $ 2,268,400 $ (1,507,32) -66.4%%
Net cash used in investing activitie (872,44 (726,68() (145,76)) 20.06%
Net cash provided by (used in

financing activities 52,26 (667,12}) 719,38¢ -107.8%
(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ (59,099 $ 874,60. $ (933,699 -106.7¢%

The Company had a decrease in cash for the yeadddelcember 31, 2012 as compared to a cash indretseyear ended December 31, 2011. The
from operations in 2012 was primarily attributabdenet income from operations of $941,000. Iditoh, other operating activities contributing ttte
increase in cash from operating activities in 20d@duded an increase in accruals and payables ©#,880 and an increase in customer depos
$23,000. These increases were partially offseafyncrease in inventories of $188,000, an incréag@epaid expenses of $20,000 and an incre:
accounts receivable of $1,851,000, as well as msh-@xpenses totaling $1,340,000. The cash expenses consisted of $423,000 from depm@n
expense, $318,000 in stobksed compensation expense, $100,000 in the aatatizof licenses, utilization of $471,000 in deéer tax assets and
increase in allowance for doubtful accounts of 828, Investing activities represent the Compsirigvestment in fixed assets. The cash provid
financing activities is primarily due to the exeseiof options of $120,000 and partially offset g payment of debt of $68,000.

Fixed Asset Commitments

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had paid dspms various pieces of equipment aggregating 823 which is reflected in Other Assets
on the balance sheet. The Company is further ctieninio additional equipment-purchase obligatio$&f,071 as various milestones are achieved
by the various vendors.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS AND CHEMBIO'S PLAN OF OPERATION S FOR THE NEXT TWELVE MONTHS

Having received in December 2012 FDA approval af Bre-Marketing Application for our DPPBIV 1/2 Assay for use with oral fluid or blood saleg
we are now focused on completing the requirementa Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act (CLIA) wair for this product in order to enable the pro
to be sold in the point-afare market segments where these tests are pginnaell. We anticipate this process to be complieted13. We believe ti
availability of an alternative oral fluid HIV rapigst, which test also performs very well on atidd matrices, will enable Chembio to participateniarke
segments not currently addressed by the blood P@@aducts sold through Alere.

We will address the public health market for thePDIFIV product through a small direct sales orgaivoraand the hospital and physician office ma
through distribution relationships. We are inchegly optimistic that this sales organization valso be able to market, by mid-2014, our DP&®hilis
Screen & Confirm test and DPP® HIV-Syphilis mulégltest, and, in 2015, our HepatitG-(HCV) test. However each of these products biéastantic
development or regulatory steps ahead before thaybe commercialized, even though significant pregris being made. Nevertheless, we are m
significant progress toward commercializing thesmlpcts.

We believe the quality, ease of use and reliabdftpur FDA approved products, together with thegist competitiveness, has enabled us to gain edd
market share opportunities globally in 2012. Hoereaithough we gained some significant new intéonat accounts, other accounts had lower saless
is primarily due to lower amounts of funding foetlcreening programs in such countries. Budgetsitange dramatically from one period to the nex
this can significantly impact our revenues. Algiven the nature of these large screening progiandgveloping world countries, large swings in @s
from quarter to quarter can occur based on thes sif@rders, as evidenced in the third and fouttargrs of 2012. Our supply, technology transfed
license program to FIOCRUZ in Brazil for five difést products produced over $10 million revenueste Company, though it is not anticipated that3
sales to FIOCRUZ will recur at the 2012 level. Wieve we will have strong sales growth of ourA-Bpproved products sold by Alere in the Un
States, and we look forward to introducing our DPRI® 1/2 Assay, which has outstanding performancetbmatrices including oral fluid samples,
soon as it is CLIA waived, which we anticipate hg £nd of 2013 , although there is no assurance .
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The Company has a number of new product and teshypabpportunities in addition to the aforementioradl fluid HIV test, including two Syphil
multiplex tests. We are completing in the next thar two the application to the FDA for an Invgstional Device Exemption for our Sure Check HIYZ
for home use so that we can begin clinical trialpdrsue FDA approval for home use if and when gterthine the investment is warranted.

We are working on a number of other projects basedand/or that complement, our patented DPP® gaficare technology, and in some cases wi
now conducting feasibility studies in order to mdhese opportunities forward. These include paeptoducts with application to the areas of wotsen
health, veterinary diagnostics, and blood viruassyell as technologies that improve the detediinits of our technology platform. We believe thaés:
projects can ultimately result in potential newenewe streams in future periods, although theréeam assurance of this.

In addition to the core development programs thathave in place that we believe will drive lomegm growth and shareholder value, we have
developed new distribution and OEM collaborations éxisting products which, if successful, will pelo produce additional revenue opportunitie
markets where we already have an established re€autcess, including but not limited to Africasié, and South America.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in confty with accounting principles generally accepie the United States of America requires managg
to make estimates and assumptions that affect theuets reported in the financial statements andrapanying notes. Actual results could di
materially from those estimates.

We believe that there are several accounting mslithat are critical to understanding our histdrézad future performance, as these policies afties
reported amounts of revenue and the more signifi@aras involving managemesnjudgments and estimates. These significant aticaupolicies relate -
revenue recognition, research and development,oadtsation of inventory, valuation of long-livedsets and income taxe$hese policies, and the rela
procedures, are described in detail below.

Revenue Recogniti—

We recognize revenue for product sales in accomarih ASC 605, revenue is recognized when thepeisuasive evidence of an arrangement, de
has occurred or services have been rendered, ld®eméce is determinable, and collectability iagenably assured. Revenue typically is recograzeidne
of shipment. Sales are recorded net of discouglhgtes and returns.

For certain contracts, we recognize revenue fromDRé&nilestone and grant revenues when earned. &rame invoiced after expenses
incurred. Revenues from projects or grants furideivance are deferred until earned.

For certain collaborative research projects, wegaize revenue by defining milestones at the inoamf the agreement and applying the milestonéhot
of revenue recognition for relevant contracts.

Stock-Based Compensation —

We recognize the fair value of equitgsed awards as compensation expense in our statefreperations. The fair value of our stock optawards we
estimated using a Black-Scholes option valuatiordehoThis valuation moded’ computations incorporate highly subjective asgiong, such as tl
expected stock price volatility and the estimatéaldf each award. The fair value of the optiorfsgraconsidering the effect of expected forfeityrieshet
amortized, generally on a straighte basis, over the related vesting period ofapton. The fair value of our restricted sharebdsed on the market va
of the shares at the date of grant and is recodminea straight-line basis over the related vegigripd of the award.

Research & Development Co—

Research and development activities consist priynafinew product development, continuing enginegffior existing products, regulatory and cliniaél
costs. Costs related to research and developrffertseon existing or potential products are exgehas incurred.

Valuation of Inventories —
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or miansing the first-in, firsbut method (FIFO) to determine cost. Our policyoigeriodically evaluate tl

market value of the inventory and the stage of pebdife cycle, and record a reserve for any ineentonsidered slow moving or obsolete. For exat
each additional 1% of obsolete inventory would edsuch inventory by approximately $25,000.
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Allowance for doubtful accoun—

Our policy is to review our accounts receivableaoperiodic basis, no less than monthly. On a gudsgrbasis an analysis is made of the adequacyx
allowance for doubtful accounts and adjustmentsnaade accordingly. The current allowance is axprately 1% of accounts receivable. For exar
each additional 1% of accounts receivable thatimesouncollectible would reduce such balance of attsareceivable by approximately $48,000.

Income Taxe—

Income taxes are accounted for under ASC 740 dtative guidance (“Guidancetyhich requires the asset and liability method afoamting for deferre
income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities determined based on the difference betweerfinbacial statement and tax bases of asset:
liabilities. Deferred tax assets or liabilitiestla¢ end of each period are determined using theate expected to be in effect when taxes arealfigtpaid o
recovered.

The Guidance also requires that a valuation alleedre established when it is more likely than hat &ll or a portion of a deferred tax asset wall be
realized. A review of all available positive anegative evidence needs to be considered, inclualiogmpanys current and past performance, the mi
environment in which the company operates, lengttaayback and carryforward periods and existingtracts that will result in future profits. Prito
2011 and through September 30, 2011, the Compathy fiddl valuation allowance recorded against defétax assets since it was not more likely thet
that the Company would realize the benefits of sieflerred tax assets. During 2011, the Companyrdeted based upon the guidance under ASC 74
it was more likely than not that it would realizeetbenefit of such deferred tax assets. As reidtCompany reversed the valuation allowance posly
recorded against the deferred tax assets. The Gongbd maintains a full valuation allowance orsearch and development tax credits

The Guidance also prescribes a comprehensive nfodetécognizing, measuring, presenting and disotpsh the consolidated financial statements
positions taken or expected to be taken on a taxreincluding a decision whether to file or neffite in a particular jurisdiction.

The above listing is not intended to be a comprsivenlist of all of our accounting policies. In macases, the accounting treatment of a parti
transaction is specifically dictated by accountiminciples, generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica, with no need for managemsrjtidgment i
their application. There are also areas in whicdmagemens judgment in selecting any viable alternative wonbt produce a materially differe
result. See our audited financial statements amdsnthereto which contain accounting policies atiter disclosures required by accounting princ
generally accepted in the United States of America.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Consolidated Financial Statements and schethd¢sonstitute Item 8 are attached at the entlisfAnnual Report on Form 1K- An index to thes
Financial Statements and schedules is also incladgzhge F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
Not Applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(@) Disclosure Controls and Procedukdsder the supervision and with the participatioroof senior management, consisting of our chietetec
officer and our chief financial officer, we condedtan evaluation of the effectiveness of the deaighoperation of our disclosure controls and piooe
(as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) utlderSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended“Bkchange Act”)as of the end of the peri
covered by this report (the "Evaluation Date").s&@h on that evaluation, the Companynhanagement, including our chief executive offiaad chie
financial officer, concluded that as of the EvailoatDate our disclosure controls and procedures weéfiective to ensure that information requiredé
disclosed by us in the reports that we file untlerExchange Act is recorded, processed, summaaizédeported within the time periods specified BEC
rules and forms. Our disclosure controls and pores include, without limitation, controls and gedures designed to ensure that information redjt@
be disclosed by us in our Exchange Act reportsc@uaulated and communicated to our managemenydimg our chief executive officer and ct
financial officer, as appropriate to allow timelgaisions regarding required disclosure.
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Management's Annual Report on Internal Control (Qrieancial Reporting. The Company's managememasigonsible for establishing and maintainin
adequate system of internal control over finan@albrting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 134f). Our internal control over financial repag is ¢
process, under the supervision of our chief exeeudfficer and chief financial officer, designedpimvide reasonable assurance regarding the rlyadsi
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting principles inUhéec
States. These internal controls over financiabriéypg processes include policies and procedurats th

a. Pertain to the maintenance of records that in regtsde detail accurately and fairly reflect the sartions and dispositions of the assets ¢
Company;

b. Provide reasonable assurance that transactione@eded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiahstatements in accordance with gene
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts expenditures of the Company are being made imngccordance with authorizations
management and directors of the Company;

c. Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, wsedisposition of the Company's assets
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or détenisstatements. Therefore, even those sy
determined to be effective can provide only reabtmassurance of achieving their control objectives

In evaluating the effectiveness of our internaltominover financial reporting, our management ugesl criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsg
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOhpiarnal Control Integrated Framework. Based on this evaluation,Ghief Executive and Chi
Financial Officers concluded that our internal cohover financial reporting was effective as ofd@mber 31, 2012.

This annual report does not include an attestaiport of our registered public accounting firmaedjng internal control over financial reporting.

Management's report was not subject to attestatjoour registered public accounting firm pursuanthte rules of the Securities and Exchange Comai
that permit the Company to provide only managemseaport in this annual report.

(b) Changes in Internal Control over Ficial Reporting. There were no changes in ourri@econtrol over financial reporting identified
connection with the evaluation required by paralgréf) of Rule 13a-15 or Rule 15d-15 under the ErgleaAct that occurred during the Companias
fiscal quarter of the period covered by this reploat have materially affected, or are reasonakéhy to materially affect, our internal control @vfinancia
reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE
Directors and Executive Officers

Lawrence A. Siebert (56),President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairmarr. Biebert was appointed President of Chembio Riafics, Inc. and
member of our board of directors upon consummatibthe merger in 2004. Mr. Siebert has been Clairmf Chembio Diagnostic Systems Inc.
approximately thirteen years and its Presidentesiay 2002. Mr. Sieber’background is in private equity and venture efpitvesting. From 1982
1991, Mr. Siebert was associated with Stanwich neest Inc, which during that period invested in diéd market manufacturing and distribui
companies. From 1992 to 1999, Mr. Siebert wasaastment consultant and business broker with &i€mpital Corp. and Siebert Associates LLC,
was a principal investor in a privately held testl aneasurement company which was sold in 2002. Sidbert received a JD from Case Western Re
University School of Law in 1981 and a BA with Disttion in Economics from the University of Conrieat in 1978. Mr. Siebert as president and CE
an integral part of the Chembio management teais.ekperience in the rapid test field and finanaimgrkets made him an excellent candidate for sg
on the board and as its chairman.

Richard J. Larkin (56), Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Larkin was appointad Chief Financial Officer of Chembio Diagnostits;. upon consummation
the merger in 2004. Mr. Larkin oversees our finahactivities and information systems. Mr. Larkias been the Chief Financial Officer of Cher
Diagnostic Systems Inc. since September 2003.r Ryripining Chembio Diagnostic Systems Inc., Markin served as CFO at Visual Technology G
from May 2000 to September 2003, and also led #wisultancy program that provided hadisexpertise in all aspects of financial servioejuding the
initial assessment of client financial reportingjugements within an Enterprise Resource Planning (Manufacturing) emvirent through training a
implementation. Prior to joining VTG, he servedGISO at Protex International Corporation from M&87 to January 2000. Mr. Larkin holds a BB/
Accounting from Dowling College and is a membettaf American Institute of Certified Public Accounts

Javan Esfandiari (46),Executive VP of Research and Development. Mr. igl&ai joined Chembio Diagnostic Systems, Inc, @@ Mr. Esfandiari co-
founded, and became a owamer of Sinovus Biotech AB where he served asdbireof Research and Development concerning lafenaltechnology unt
Chembio Diagnostic Systems Inc. acquired SinovugeBh AB in 2000. From 1993 to 1997, Mr. Esfanidieais Director of Research and Developr
with On-Site Biotech/National Veterinary Institute, Uppsabweden, which was working in collaboration witim&us Biotech AB on development
veterinary lateral flow technology. Mr. Esfandiagiceived his B.Sc. in Clinical Chemistry and his $t. in Molecular Biology from Lund Universi
Sweden. He has published articles in various weter journals and has co-authored articles onrtubdesis serology with Dr. Lyashchenko.

Richard Bruce (59), Vice President, Operations. Mr. Bruce was hiredApril 2000 as Director of Operations. He is resplolesfor manufacturing
maintenance, inventory, shipping, receiving, andelvause operations. Prior to joining Chembio Désgic Systems Inc., he held director level posgia
Wyeth Laboratories from 1984 to 1993. From 1993368, he held various management positions in fher&dions Department at Biomerieux. From ]
to 2000, he held a management position at V.l. feldgies. Mr. Bruce has over thirty years of ofieres management experience with Fortune
companies in the field of in-vitro diagnostics didod fractionation. Mr. Bruce received his BManagement from National Louis University in 1997.

Tom Ippolito (50), VP of Regulatory Affairs, QA and QC. Mr. Ippolijoined Chembio in June 2005. He has over twentysyexperience with in vitr
diagnostics for infectious diseases, protein themtips, vaccine development, Process Developmempil&tory Affairs and Quality Management. Over
years, Mr. Ippolito has held Vice President levekifons at Biospecific Technologies, Corp. from0@Q0- 2005, Director level positions in Qual
Assurance, Quality Control, Process DevelopmentRegulatory Affairs at United Biomedical, Inc. frob®87 -2000. Mr. Ippolito is the Course Direc
for “drug development process” and “FDA RegulatBrpcess’for the BioScience Certificate Program at the NesvkyState University of Stony Brook
program he has been a part of since its incepti@903.

Dr. Gary Meller M.D. (62), Director. Dr. Meller was elected to our Board afdators in March 15, 2005, and currently servesttenBoards Audit,
Compensation and Nominating And Corporate Govem&@mmmittees, including as Chairman of the Compars&ommittee. Dr. Meller also servec
Chairman of the Board’Special Committee for handling certain strategiportunities. Dr. Meller has been the presidér@@mmSense Inc., a healthc
business development company, since 2001. ComraSers works with clients in Europe, Asia, North Arita, and the Middle East on med
information technology, medical records, pharmacalproduct development and financing, health isess/operations and strategy, and new produc
new market development. From 1999 until 2001 Dellét was the executive vice president, North Acerof NextEd Ltd., a leading internet educati
services company in the Asia Pacific region. Dellbt also was a limited partner and a member efAtvisory Board of Crestview Capital Master LI
which at one time was our largest stockholder. Nbeller is a graduate of the University of New Mexi€chool of Medicine and has an MBA from
Harvard Business School. Dr. Mellgéxperience in the medical field both domestic faneign (especially his experience with CommSednsd as well a
his financing experience made him an excellent ickatel for serving on the board.

35




Kathy Davis (56), Director. Ms. Davis was elected to the Companytai@l of Directors in May 2007, and currently sereesthe Board of Directos’
Audit, Compensation and Nominating And Corporatevé@pance Committees, including as Chairman of @it¢he Audit Committee and the Nominat
And Corporate Governance Committee. Ms. Davis s¢swed on the Boarsl'Special Committee for handling certain strategiportunities. Since Janui
2007, Ms. Davis has been the owner of Davis DeSigsup LLC, a company that provides analytical aistial tools for public policy design. Previou:
from February 2005 to December 2006, she serveitheashief Executive Officer of Global Access Poiatstartup company with products for d.
transport, data processing, and data storage nletamal hub facilities. From October 2003 to Jan28§5, Ms. Davis was Lieutenant Governor of thee
of Indiana, and from January 2000 to October 2088 @ontroller of the City of Indianapolis. From88%o 2003, Ms. Davis held leadership position$
agencies and programs in the State of Indiana diralu State Budget Director, Secretary of Family &ci@l Services Administration, and Dep
Commissioner of Transportation. From 1982 to 1989 BMavis held increasingly senior positions withm@uins Engine, where she managed purche
manufacturing, engineering, and assembly of cegagine product lines. Ms. Davis also led thetspaof and initial investments by a $50 million lank
state technology fund, serves on the notgimfit boards of Noble of Indiana, University of &wville Institute of Global Enterprise, Purdue IE€gé o
Science Dean’s Leadership Council and Indiana UsityeSchool of Public and Environmental Affairs &es Advisory Council. She has a Master
Business Administration from Harvard Business Sthamd a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engimgerfirom the Massachusetts Institute
Technology. Ms. Davis has varied experience inrass, political and financial areas made her @eléent candidate for serving on the board.

Dr. Barbara DeBuono M.D., M.P.H., (57),Director. Dr. DeBuono, who was elected to the Company's Bo&idirectors in June 2011, is a renow
expert in public health innovation, health poliegucation and research. Dr. DeBuono currently seageSenior Vice President for Market Developmé
TREO Solutions, a data analytics and health systansformation company based in New York. Previpssie held the post of President and CE
ORBIS International, which is dedicated to saviightsand eliminating avoidable blindness worldwiffeom 20092011, Dr. DeBuono was Chief Medi
Officer, Partner and Global Director of Health @akcial Marketing at Porter Novelli, and from 200008 she was Executive Director, Public Health
Government at Pfizer Inc. Dr. DeBuono has serve@a@amissioner of Health for the state of New Yorkl @s Director of Health in Rhode Island and
was honored by the CDC Foundation in 2005 as orfev@fPublic Health Heroes nationwide. She sengadjunct professor at The George Washir
University School of Public Health, and is a co+idar of The MAIA Foundation, a charity dedicatedvomen's health in suBaharan Africa. A Fellow
the American College of Physicians, Dr. DeBuonaiesd her B.A. from the University of Rochesten;, NeD. from the University of Rochester, Schoc
Medicine, and a Masters in Public Health (M.P.Honf Harvard University School of Public Health. DeBuono's experience in and knowledge of,
domestic and international, public health servipedlic health innovations, and the medical fieldka her an excellent candidate for serving on tsed

Dr. Peter Kissinger, Ph.D. (68)Director. Dr. Kissinger, who was elected to the Company’srBax Directors in June 2011is a scientist, entreprent
and academic, with a muli&ceted career in biotechnology and biomedicalneldgies. He is a Professor of Chemistry and Asse®epartment Head
Purdue University, West Lafayette, Indiana, andhis founder of Bioanalytical Systems, Inc. (NASDABASI), which he led from 1972007. Dr
Kissingers academic research has involved the study of mdégrid chromatography techniques, and in vivo hmdblogy for drug metabolism and
neurosciences. Dr. Kissinger has published mae #30 scientific papers and is a Fellow of the Aca@ Association of Pharmaceutical Scientists the
American Association for the Advancement of Science2005, he became the Chairman of Prosoliachviriarkets mass spectrometry innovations fo
science, industrial and homeland security appbeati In 2007, he and Candice Kissinger foundeeéhgitics, Inc., a medical device company focuse
diagnostic information for intensive care medicikie is a columnist for the trade publication Drugddvery News. Dr. Kissinger received a B.S
Chemistry from Union College, Schenectady, N.Y. arfeh.D. in Analytical Chemistry from the Univeysidf North Carolina in Chapel Hill. Dr. Kissing
has knowledge of and experience in biotechnology liiamedical technologies as well as publitgded companies, all of which make him an exct
candidate for serving on the board.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdinces

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 04123 amended (the “Exchange Act”), requires thea@amys directors, executive officers and benef
owners of more than 10% of the Compangbmmon stock to file with the Securities and Exae Commission initial reports of ownership arubrés o
changes in ownership of common stock and othertygatcurities of the Company. The Company belighas during the year ended December 31, -
each person who was an officer, director and beiaéfowner of more than 10% of the Compangbmmon stock complied with all Section 16(anf
requirements .

Code of Ethics

The Company has adopted a code of ethics thatespfaliits principal executive officer, principahdincial officer, principal accounting officer, coiter,
and persons performing similar functions. A copyhe Company’s code of ethics is available onGoenpany’s website at www.chembio.com.
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Identification of Audit Committee; Audit Committee Financial Expert
The Companys board of directors has established an audit ctteeni Katherine L. Davis, Dr. Pete Kissinger and ®ary Meller each serves on the a

committee, with Ms. Davis serving as chairman. Taepanys board of directors has determined that Ms. Diavas audit committee financial expert
is independent.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table summarizes all compensatiororded by the Company in each of the last two cotadléiscal years for our principal executive off
and our two most highly compensated executive effiother than our principal executive officer whasnual compensation exceeded $100,000.

Name / Stock Option Awards All Other

Principal Salary? Bonus? Awards 3 Compensation® Total
Position Year (%) $) (%) (%) (%) ($
Lawrence A. Siebert* 2012 $ 290,00( $ 101,50( $ -$ 28,217 $ 10,40( $ 430,121
CEO 2011 281,34t 101,50( - - 12,60( 395,44¢
Javan Esfandiari 2012 $ 263,07 $ 89,25( $ -$ 2481. $ 7,60¢ 384,74¢
VP-R&D 2011 253,07 89,25( $ - - 8,54( 350,86
Tom Ippolito 2012 $ 196,18 $ 33,600 $ -$ 9,34( $ 4,367 $ 243,49:
VP-Regulatory 2011 190,70: 33,60( - 41,99° 3,95¢ 270,25’

1 Salary is total base salary.

2 Bonuses earned in 2012 and 2011 were partiafigdan reaching certain objectives, which includeenue dollar levels and operating profit
levels, additional amounts earned were discretionar

3 The estimated fair value of any option or comrstmtk granted was determined in accordance with ABE; "Stock-Based Payment".

4 Mr. Siebert also serves as a director on the @owyip board of directors. Mr. Siebert does noeez any compensation for this director role.
5 Other compensation includes an employer matd®14K) contributions and car allowances where applie.

Employment Agreements

Mr. Siebert. Effective, May 11, 2011, the Compensation Coneeitbf the Board of Directors extended the Compamyhployment agreement (
“Employment Agreement”) with Lawrence A. SiebetigetCompany’s President and Chief Executive Offi¢er,an additional ongear term throug
May 11, 2013, with an increase in salary to $290,06r year. Previously, effective May 11, 200% @ompanys Board of Directors had approved
Company’s extension of the June 15, 2006 EmployrAgnéement for an additional thrgear term through May 11, 2012. On June 15, 2006 Sieber
and the Company entered into an Employment Agreereéfiective May 10, 2006, which was to terminateMay 10, 2008, extended in 2008 to May
2009. Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, Mib&it serves as the President and Chief Execuffige©of the Company and received an initial sg
of $240,000 per year, which had been increase@&,$00 per year until Mr. Siebert agreed to a &&¢nt reduction, to $225,000, effective Januar,
2009. Mr. Sieberg salary was restored to $265,000 per annum eféeati July 2009. Mr. Siebert also is eligible ®obonus of up to 50% of his salz
consisting of (i) a bonus of up to 25% of his saldmat is at the complete discretion and deterronadf the board of directors, and (ii) a bonusupfto ai
additional 25% of his salary that will be determinbased upon revenue and earnings performanceiaréstablished each year by the boar
directors. Mr. Siebert is eligible to participateany profit sharing, stock option, retirementrplanedical and/or hospitalization plan, and/or othenefi
plans except for disability and life insurance ttiet Company may from time to time place in effiectthe Companys executives during the term of |
Siebert's employment agreement. If Mr. SieteeEmployment Agreement is terminated by the Compaitlyout cause, or if Mr. Siebert terminates
Employment Agreement for a reasonable basis, asetkin the Employment Agreement, including withi months of a change in control, the Compa
required to pay as severance Mr. Sielsestilary for six months. Mr. Siebert has agreedafperiod of two years after the termination of @mploymer
with the Company not to induce customers, agemtstlter sources of distribution of the Companfpusiness under contract or doing business wd
Company to terminate, reduce, alter, or divert iess with or from the Company. The terms of theereded May 11, 2011, May 11, 2009 and May
2008 Employment Agreements are identical to theeJUf, 2006 Employment Agreement, except that utiderMay 11, 2008 extended Employn
Agreement, Mr. Siebert received additional consitlen in the form of incentive stock options to ghase 31,250 shares of the Comparggmmon stoc
exercisable at $1.04 per share, which was thengqgsiice of the Company's common stock on Juné@38.2 The incentive stock options are immedit
exercisable and they expire on the June 3, 2013.
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Mr. Esfandiari. The Company entered into an employment agreeeféattive March 5, 2013 (the "Employment Agreemgntlith Mr. Esfandiari t
continue as the Company's Senior Vice PresideRestarch and Development for an additional terthree years through March 5, 2016. Mr. Esfand
salary under the Employment Agreement is $300,00¢hE first year, with possible increases forgheond year and /or for the third year. Mr. Esiamds
eligible for a performancbased bonus of up to 50% of his base salary fdr ezgpective year, which is in the same proportamslescribed below unt
“Executive Bonus Plan"The Company also granted Mr. Esfandiari, pursuanthe Company's 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, incenstock options -
purchase 30,000 shares of the Company's commok. Stbe price per share of these options is equéthédair market value of the Company's com
stock as of the close of the market on March 5320dich is the date on which the Agreement wascéffe. Of these stock options, options to purc
10,000 shares vest on each of the first three arsavies of the effective date of the Employmenteggrent. Mr. Esfandiari is eligible to participaieany
profit sharing, stock option, retirement plan, neadliand/or hospitalization plan, and/or other bien@éns except for disability and life insurantett the
Company may from time to time place in effect foe tCompany’s executives during the term of Mr. BEdfari's employment agreement. If |
Esfandiari's employmeragreement is terminated by the Company withoutesawsif Mr. Esfandiari terminates his employmegteeement for a reasona
basis, as defined in the Employment Agreementudinh within 12 months of a change in control, ®empany is required to pay as severance
Esfandiari’s salary for twelve months.

Mr. Ippolito does not have an employment contraithh the Company.
Executive Bonus Plan

The Company has established a bonus plan for ésutives who do not have a contract. For the Ifigear ended December 31, 2012, there were
executives eligible for this bonus plan. Each etge can earn up to 25% of that executivealary in the form of a cash bonus. The Comjiem
Committee determined that 60% of the execusiiEdnus will be quantitative factors, based onhihdget. 40% will be based on other factors artlbe
discretionary. In addition they are eligible f@ock options based on a percentage of the totainpiat bonus earned. The plan, during 2012 for6ibfs
called for a sliding percentage of the execusvsalary, from zero to 7.5% for attaining 85% t®%0of revenue goals, and from zero to 7.5% o
executives salary for attaining 70% to 100% of the desigmhatgerating profit goals. The Company achieved@pmately 94% of its revenue goals
2012, which would result in a bonus of 4.5% of eexdcutives salary, and did not achieve 70% of its operatirudit goal, which would result in a bonus
0% of salary, for a total of 4.5% of salary. Then@pensation Committee determined that the targaisgeere aggressive and considering the greata
30% increase in revenues along with an increaspénating income it approved approximately 17%atéuy in bonuses for the subject executives.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END 2012

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Market
Number of Securities Number of Value of

Securities Underlying Shares of  Shares of

Underlying Unexercised Option Stock That  Stock That

Unexercised Options Exercise Option Have Not Have Not

Options Unexercisable Price Expiration Option Vested Vested Foot-
Name Exercisable (#) (#) ($) Date Vesting Date (#) ($) note

Lawrence A. Siebert 9,062 $ 4.0C 2/16/201 2/16/201. 5
16,667 1.04 5/6/201- 5/6/201. 3
16,667 1.04 5/6/201- 5/7/201: 3
16,667 1.04 5/6/201- 5/6/201( 3
31,25( 1.04 6/3/201: 6/3/200¢ 2
9,37¢ 1.7¢€ 2/15/201. 2/15/200¢ 1
Javan Esfandiari 7,96¢ 4.0C 2/16/201° 2/16/201. 5
12,50( 2.1¢ 3/4/201" 3/5/201 2
12,50( 2.1¢ 3/4/201! 3/5/201. 2
12,50( 2.1¢ 3/4/201" 3/5/201( 2
12,50( 1.04 5/6/201+ 5/6/201. 3
7,50( 1.04 2/15/201. 2/15/200¢ 1
Tom Ippolito 3,00( 4.0C 2/16/201° 2/16/201. 5
7,81% 4.3 5/9/201¢ 5/9/201¢ 4
7,81% 4.3 5/9/201¢ 5/9/201 4
9,37¢ 1.04 5/6/201- 5/6/201. 3
9,37¢ 1.04 5/6/201- 5/7/201: 3
9,37¢ 1.04 5/6/201- 5/6/201( 3
6,25( 1.7¢€ 2/15/201: 2/15/200¢ 1

1 0n February 15, 2008 the Company granted optiodsre 1999 Stock Option Plan.

2 Options issued in connection with an employmentreanh and under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan.

30n May 7, 2009 in accordance with the terms ofGbenpany’s 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, the Compaawptgd certain employees of the Company,
options to purchase an aggregate of 365,625 shitke Company’s common stock. The exercise gacéhese options is equal to $1.04 per share. The
options become exercisable in thirds on the famstond and third anniversaries of the date of thetg Each option granted will expire and termenatnot
exercised sooner, upon the earlier to occur oBQajays after termination of the employee’s empleytwith the Company or (b) the fifth anniversafy o
the date of grant. The fair value of these optisrixeing amortized over the vesting life of théiams.

40n May 3, 2011 and effective May 9, 2011 in accnogawith the terms of the Company’s 2008 Stockritice Plan, the Company granted certain
employees of the Company, options to purchase greggte of 62,500 shares of the Company’s comnumk &xercise price for these options was to be
equal to the VWAP (Volume Weighted Average Pric@yket price for the Company’s common stock on Mag(®1. The options become exercisable
evenly on the second and third anniversaries oéffeetive date of the grant. Each option gramtdbexpire and terminate, if not exercised soongmon

the earlier to occur of (a) 30 days after termorabf the employes’employment with the Company or (b) the fifth amnsary of the effective date of gre

5 On February 16, 2012, the Company granted to ceetaiployees of the Company, options to purchasaggregate of 25,392 shares of the Compmany’
common stock. The exercise price for these optiaasthe last traded market price for the Compmngmmon stock on February 16, 2012, which was
per option. The options become exercisable onffeet&ve date of the grant. Each option granted aipire and terminate, if not exercised sooneonuine
earlier to occur of (a) 30 days after terminatiéthe employee’s employment with the Company ortifle)fifth anniversary of the effective date ofgra
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Director Compensation

All non-employee directors are paid an $18,000 ahnetainer in semannual payments, and once every five years, omldke of the annual meeting
stockholders that directors are elected oeleeted (every 5 years), receive stock optionstpiae, subject to vesting as described below, ZBghares «
the Company's common stock, with an exercise proual to the market price on the date of the gr&bwck options to acquire 9,375 shares be:
exercisable on the date of grant, and options tpiee an additional 9,375 shares become exercisablihe date of each of the four succeeding ai
meetings of stockholders if and to the extent thatnonemployee director is reelected as a director ah sach annual meeting. The audit comm
chairman is paid an annual retainer of $2,500, paithi-annually. In addition, the nemployee directors are paid $1,000 in cash for dmard o
directors' meeting attended, and paid $500 in dasleach telephonic board of directors meetinge Flonemployee directors who are members
committee of the board of directors are paid $506ash for each committee meeting attended, or $768sh for each committee meeting attended t
nonemployee director is the committee chairman. Dimexcalso may be paid for serving ad hoc commitiglethe Board. In fact, when the Bo
established its Special Committee in 2010 to hatitBepossible sale of the Company, the ChairmaheofCommittee was paid $12,000 per month, an
other director-member of the Committee was pai@@8 per month.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Fees Earned or Paid ir

Cash Option Awards Total
Name ($)? ($) 2 ($)
Katherine L. Davis $ 30,25( $ - % 30,25(
Barbara DeBuono 24.,50( - 24.50(
Pete Kissinger 25,50( - 25,50(
Gary Meller 27,50( - 27,50(

1 Fees earned or paid in cash represents a yearintbtees for meeting expenses: (a) Ms. Davisvedein $18,000 annual fee as a member of
the board of directors, a $2,500 annual fee ag aodimittee chairman and $9,750 in meeting feed gaiing 2012; (b) Dr. DeBuono received an
$18,000 annual fee as a member of the board aftdireand $6,500 in meeting fees; (c) Dr. Kissimgeeived an $18,000 annual fee as a member
of the board of directors for and $7,500 in meefewegs; (d) Dr. Meller received an $18,000 annualds a member of the board of directors and
$9,500 in meeting fees.

2Each outside member of the board of directorsastgd, once every five years, options to purch&s&75% shares of the company’s common stock
with an exercise price equal to the market pricett@ date of the grant as part of their annual aaregtion. One-fifth of these options are
exercisable on the date of grant, one-fifth becarercisable on the first anniversary of the dategmint, and additional one-fifths become
exercisable on the second through fourth anniversithe date of grant. The fair value of opti@atsthe date of grant was estimated using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Parttipation

No executive officer of the Company served as a bezrof the Board of any other public company dutimg year ended December 31, 2012. No me
of the Compensation Committee serves as an execafficer of any other public company during theyended December 31, 2012. No interloc
relationship exists between the members of our @Gmsgtion Committee and the Board or compensatiomttiee of any other company. As of Marc
2013, the members of the Compensation Committee Bary Meller (Chairman), Katherine Davis, and BaabDeBuono, all of whom are deemed by
Board of Directors to be independent.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The following table sets forth certain informaticegarding the beneficial ownership of our commartlstby each person or entity known by us to b
beneficial owner of more than 5% of the outstandihgres of common stock, each of our directordy edour “named executive officersind all of ou
directors and executive officers as a group as afckl 6, 2013.

Name and Address o Amount and Nature of
Beneficial Owner Beneficial Ownership Percent of Class

Siebert, Lawrenc(®)

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 1176% 890,95+ 10.89%
Esfandiari, Java®@

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 1176¢ 143,73¢ 1.77%
Larkin, Richarc®

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 1176¢ 69,24¢ .85%
Ippolito, Tom®)

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 1176¢ 38,987 .48%
Bruce, Richard®

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 1176% 49,717 .61%
Steele, Michae®)

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 1176¢ 78t .01%
Klugewicz, Sharoi(?

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 63( .01%



Meller, Gary(®)

3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 1176¢
Davis, Katherine L®)
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 1176¢
DeBuono, Barbar(10)
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 1176¢
Kissinger, Pete1)
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 1176¢

95,62¢

48,92:

20,70-

20,70:

1.18%

.60%

.26%

.26%

GROUP (12)

1,380,00¢

16.36%

Wellington Management Company, LLP

280 Congress Street
Boston, MA 0221(

670,98(

8.30%




Beneficial ownership is determined in accordandh Wie Rule 13@(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asrated, and generally includes vot
or investment power with respect to securitiescdpt as subject to community property laws, whemieable, the person named above has sole votid
investment power with respect to all shares ofammmon stock shown as beneficially owned by him.

The beneficial ownership percent in the table isudated with respect to the number of outstandihgres (8,086,114) of the Company's common
outstanding as of March 6, 2013; and with respeadch stockholder, the denominator is the sunh@fumber of common shares outstanding an
number, if any, of outstanding options includedhat stockholdes beneficial ownership. Each stockholder's ownprihcalculated as the numbet
shares of common stock owned plus the number aésha common stock into which any preferred stedirants, options or other convertible secut
owned by that stockholder can be converted witbinl&ys.

The term “named executive officer&fers to our principal executive officer, our twmst highly compensated executive officers othantthe principe
executive officer who were serving as executivéceff at the end of 2012, and two additional irdiigls for whom disclosure would have been proy
but for the fact that the individuals were not segvas executive officers of the Company at the @i2D12.

(1) Includes 95,529 shares issuable upon exercisetimnspexercisable within 60 day

(2) Includes 50,234 shares issuable upon exercise tainspexercisable within 60 days. Does not incld@500 shares issuable upon exercis
options that are not exercisable within the nexti&gs.

(3) Includes 38,842 shares issuable upon exercise tainspexercisable within 60 days. Does not incld@e750 shares issuable upon exercis
options that are not exercisable within the nexti&gs.

(4) Includes 32,900 shares issuable upon exercise tainspexercisable within 60 days. Does not incld@e624 shares issuable upon exercis
options that are not exercisable within the nexti&gs.

(5) Includes 13,458 shares issuable upon exercise tainspexercisable within 60 days. Does not incld@500 shares issuable upon exercis
options that are not exercisable within the nexti&gs.

(6) Includes 785 shares issuable upon exercise ofrapégercisable within 60 days. Does not includ@@® shares issuable upon exercise of og
that are not exercisable within the next 60 d

(7) Includes 630 shares issuable upon exercise ofrapégercisable within 60 days. Does not includ@@® shares issuable upon exercise of og
that are not exercisable within the next 60 d

(8) Includes 37,500 shares issuable upon exercise tafnspexercisable within 60 days. Does not incl@@75 shares issuable upon exercis
options that are not exercisable within the next&gs.

(9) Includes 37,957 shares issuable upon exercisetimingpexercisable within 60 days. Does not incl@@¥5 shares issuable upon exercise of of
that are not exercisable within the next 60 d

(10) Includes 20,704 shares issuable upon exercise tanspexercisable within 60 days. Does not incl@8gl25 shares issuable upon exercis
options that are not exercisable within the next&gs.

(11) Includes 20,704 shares issuable upon exercise tangpexercisable within 60 days. Does not incl28¢l25 shares issuable upon exercis
options that are not exercisable within the next&gs.

(12) Includes footnotes (-(11)

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Combined Equity Compensation Ple- Information as of December 31, 2C

Number of Securities
Remaining Available fc
Future Issuance under

Number of Securities to Weighted-Average Equity Compensation
be Issued Upon Exerci Exercise Price of Plans (Excluding
of Outstanding Options,  Outstanding Options,  Securities Reflected in
Plan Categor Warrants and Right Warrants and Right Column (a)
(@) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydra
1 731,644 $ 0.21% 68,96
Equity compensation plans not approved by securit
holders - - -
Total 731,64t $ 0.212 68,96

1 The “Number of Securities to be Issued Upon ExeroisOutstanding Warrants and Rightspresents 135,191 from the 1999 Stock Option Bifa
596,455 under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan. 20@8 Stock Incentive Plan was increased by 125,003 at the Annual Stockholder meeting |
September 23, 2011. The “Number of Securities Renm Available for Future Issuance Under Equityn@ensation Plang’epresents shares issu
under the 2008 Stock Incentive Pl
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The executive officers of the Company are as fadlolsawrence A. Siebert, president, chief executiffeer and chairman of the board of directorsta
Company, Richard J. Larkin, chief financial officgfrthe Company, and Javan Esfandiari, executice president of Research and Development ¢
Company.

In accordance with the terms of the Compar008 Plan, on May 9, 2011, the Company grantegri@in employees of the Company options to puse
an aggregate of 62,500 shares of the Comgaogimmon stock. The exercise price for these optiwas to be equal to the VWAP (Volume Weig
Average Price) market price for the Compangommon stock on May 9, 2011. The options becemarcisable evenly on the second and
anniversaries of the effective date of the gr&fdch option granted will expire and terminate,af exercised sooner, upon the earlier to occuajp8(Q day
after termination of the employeeémployment with the Company or (b) the fifth aensary of the effective date of grant. Mr. IppmliMr. Bruce and M
Larkin received options to purchase common stocksp825, 12,500 and 18,750 shares, respectively.

On February 16, 2012, the Company granted optiormitchase the following numbers of shares of thenganys common stock set forth below to
executive officers of the Company named below. @&kercise price for these options was the lasettadarket price for the Compasytommon stock ¢
February 16, 2012, which was $4.00 per option. @p#ons become exercisable on the effective datbeogrant. Each option granted will expire
terminate, if not exercised sooner, upon the eadi@ccur of (a) 30 days after termination of #mployees employment with the Company or (b) the
anniversary of the effective date of grant.

Name of Executive Officer Number of Shares of Common Stock Option
Richard Bruce- Vice President of Operatiol 2,563

Javan Esfandia— Executive Vice President of R& 7,969

Tom Ippolito - Vice President of Regulatory AffaiQA & 3,000

QC

Richard J. Larkir— Chief Financial Office 2,797

Lawrence A. Sieber Chief Executive Office 9,063

On February 25, 2013, the Company granted optioqaitchase the following numbers of shares of tbm@anys common stock set forth below to
executive officers of the Company named below. @kercise price for these options was the lasettadarket price for the Compasytommon stock ¢
February 26, 2013, which was $5.56 per option. @p#ons become exercisable on the effective datbeogrant. Each option granted will expire
terminate, if not exercised sooner, upon the eadi@ccur of (a) 30 days after termination of #mployees employment with the Company or (b) the
anniversary of the effective date of grant.

Name of Executive Officer Number of Shares of Common Stock Option
Richard Bruce- Vice President of Operatiol 1,520

Javan Esfandia— Executive Vice President of R& 4,765

Tom Ippolito- Vice President of Regulatory Affairs, QA 1,775

QC

Richard J. Larkir— Chief Financial Office 1,670

Lawrence A. Sieber Chief Executive Office 5,215

Michael Steele Vice President of Sales and Market 785

Sharon Klugewic— Vice President of QA/Q( 630

The Company entered into an employment agreeméattiee March 5, 2013 (the "Employment Agreementjth Mr. Esfandiari to continue as 1
Company's Senior Vice President of Research anélbement for an additional term of three yearsufgfoMarch 5, 2016. See Item 11 for more details.

Director Independence

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ. Accordinglg are subject to the corporate the governaramedatds of NASDAQ, which require, amc
other things, that the majority of the board ofedtors be independent. We define an “independeingctor in accordance with the NASDAQ Gla
Market's requirements for independent directoradey this definition, we have determined that ezfdiatherine Davis, Barbara DeBuono, Peter Kissij
and Gary Meller currently qualify as independeméctiors. We do not list the “independent” defmitiwve use on our internet website .
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Audit Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201Campany engaged BDO USA, LLP as its independestatting firm to audit the Company’s annual
financial statements and review of financial staata included in the Company’s Forms 10-Q and ¥0rKkhe years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
for $109,000 and $110,000, respectively in fees.

Audit-Related Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201 dhganys independent accounting firm, BDO USA, LLP, did poovide the Company with a
assurance and related services reasonably retatbd performance of the audit or review of the @any’s financial statements that are not reported ¢
under “Audit Fees.”

Tax Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201Cdimpanys independent accounting firm, BDO USA, LLP, bilkbé Company $30,000 and $44,(
respectively for professional services for tax cbamge, tax advice and tax planning.

All Other Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201 dhganys independent accounting firm, BDO USA, LLP, did poovide the Company with a
other matters.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies

The Audit Committee approves in advance all audd aonaudit services performed by the independent acewyrirm. There are no other spec
policies or procedures relating to the pre-approfakervices performed by the independent accogritim.
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS

Number Description

3.1 Articles of Incorporation, as amended.

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws.

4.1* Form of Employee Option Agreement.

4.2 1999 Equity Incentive Plan. (-

4.3 2008 Stock Incentive Plan. (

4.4 Rights Agreement, dated March 8, 2010

4.5 Form of Warrant (to be filed by amendment) [to eeised]

10.1* Employment Agreement dated June 15, 2006 with Lagad\. Siebert. (7

10.2* Employment Agreement dated March 5, 2013 with J&&fandiari.

10.3 HIV Barrel License, Marketing and Distribution Agreent, dated as of September 29, 2006, by and atherRegistrant, Alere ar
StatSure. (8

10.4 HIV Cassette License, Marketing and Distributiorrdgment, dated as of September 29, 2006, betwedRethistrant and Alere. (

10.5 Non-Exclusive License, Marketing and Distribution Agmeent, dated as of September 29, 2006, betweenegbistRant and Alere. (¢

10.6 Joint HIV Barrel Product Commercialization Agreemeatated as of September 29, 2006, between thestRagfi and StatSure. (

10.7 Secured Term Note, dated as of June 14, 2010, dgmong the Registrant, Chembio Diagnostics SystBrosand HSBC Bank, NA (¢

10.8 Secured Revolving Demand Note, dated as of Jun2Qld), by and among the Registrant, Chembio Dia@soSystems, Inc. and HSE

Bank, NA (9)

10.9 »an and Security Agreement, dated as of Junedi),by and among the Registrant, Chembio Diagte§ystems, Inc. and HSBC Ba
NA (9)

10.10 Revolving Term Note, dated as of July 22, 2011abhg among the Registrant, Chembio Diagnostics Bystic. and HSBC Bank, NA
(10)

10.11 Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of July @212by and among the Registrant, Chembio Diagre8ystems, Inc. and HSBC
Bank, NA (10)

14.1 Ethics Policy (11,

21 List of Subsidiarie:

23.1 Consent of BDO USA, LLP, Independent RegisterediPutrcountants

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32 2rtification of Chief Executive Officer and Chigihancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@38S adopted pursuant to Section
of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuir

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Docume

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Docume

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Docurr

1 Incorporated by reference to the Regisf’'s annual report on Form -KSB filed with the Commission on March 31, 20

2 Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s tegfion statement on Form SB-2 (File No. 333-8578&) with the Commission on
August 23, 1999 and the Registrant's For-K filed on May 14, 2004, December 20, 2007 and iX{8i 2008.

3 Incorporated by reference to the Regisf’'s annual report on Form -KSB filed with the Commission on March 12, 20

4 Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A filath the Commission on May 11, 20(

5 Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A filath the Commission on April 14, 200

6 Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's registration statement on For-A filed with the Commission on March 11, 20:

7 Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Current Report on Forn-K filed with the Commission on June 21, 20

8 Incorporated by reference to the Regis's Current Report on Forn-K filed with the Commission on October 5, 20!

9 Incorporated by reference to the Regis's Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the Commission on July 29, 20:

10 Incorporated by reference to the Regis's Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the Commission on November 3, 20

11 Incorporated by reference to the Regist's annual report on Form -KSB filed with the Commission on March 30, 20

*) An asterisk (*) beside an exhibit number indicatesexhibit contains a management contract, congperysplan or arrangement whick

required to be identified in this registration staent.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ErgieaAct, the registrant has caused this reportetsipned on its behalf by the undersig
thereunto duly authorized.

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC.

Date: March 7, 2013 By /s/ Lawrence A. Siebert
Lawrence A. Siebert
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board

In accordance with the requirements of the Exchaxaethis report has been signed below by theWaithg persons on behalf of the registrant
in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature: Title Date
/s/ Lawrence A. Siebert Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairmani®é March 7, 2013
Lawrence A. Siebert Board

(Principal Executive Officer

[s/ Richard J. Larkin Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial & Acanting March 7, 2013
Richard J. Larkir Officer)
[s/ Gary Meller Director March 7, 2013
Dr. Gary Meller
/s/ Katherine L. Davis Director March 7, 2013
Katherine L. Davis
[s/ Pete Kissinge Director March 7, 201:
Pete Kissinge
/s/ Barbara DeBuon Director March 7, 201:

Barbara DeBuon
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chembio Diagnostics, Inc.
Medford, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and Subgiibe “Company”)as of December 31, 2012 ¢
2011 and the related consolidated statements afatipes, changes in stockholders' equity and céshsffor the years then ended. These fina
statements are the responsibility of the Compangisagement. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBlqUnited States). Those standards requir
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabirance about whether the consolidated finastagéments are free of material misstatement.
Company is not required to have, nor were we erjemperform, an audit of its internal control oVieancial reporting. Our audits included consater
of internal control over financial reporting as asls for designing audit procedures that are apjtepin the circumstances, but not for the purpof
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of thm@any's internal control over financial reportilgccordingly, we express no such opinion. An &
also includes examining, on a test basis, evideopporting the amounts and disclosures in the fiishstatements, assessing the accounting prirscie:
and significant estimates made by management, #sawevaluating the overall financial statemerggentation. We believe that our audits provi
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referreé@bove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of Chembio Diasfics

Inc. and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2012 and.,28dd the consolidated results of their operatemd their cash flows for the years then endt
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America.

BDO USA, LLP

/s/IBDO USA, LLP

Melville, New York
March 7, 2013
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF
- ASSETS-
December 31, 201. December 31, 201

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 2,951,85 $ 3,010,95.
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fetounts of $58,000 and $30,0

at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respecti 4,821,35 2,998,44!
Inventories 2,488,07. 2,300,28i
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 747,46: 681,89:
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 11,008,75 8,991,58:
FIXED ASSETS, net of accumulated depreciati 1,427,641 1,062,271
OTHER ASSETS:
Deferred tax asset, net of valuation allowa 4,233,19. 4,749,62;
License agreements, net of current por 400,00( 500,00(
Deposits on manufacturing equipm: 223,58 139,79(
Deposits and other ass: 41,97¢ 42 A7
TOTAL ASSETS $ 17,335,15 $ 15,485,74

- LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY -

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit $ 3,303,92 $ 2,789,501
Current portion of loans payat 51,23¢ 53,55(
Customer deposi 23,22¢ -
Current portion of obligations under capital leases - 14,57¢
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,378,38 2,857,62!
OTHER LIABILITIES:
Loans payable - net of current portion 82,24 133,48«
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,460,63 2,991,111
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stoc— 10,000,000 shares authorized, none outstar -
Common stocl- $.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized, &83&nc

7,921,021 shares issued and outstanding for 20d2@hl, respectivel 80,36: 79,21(
Additional paicin capital 41,116,14 40,678,69
Accumulated defici (27,321,99) (28,263,27)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY 13,874,522 12,494,63
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 17,335,15 $ 15,485,74

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidatehial statement:




CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED

For the years endec

December 31, 201. December 31, 201

REVENUES:
Net product sale $ 2432735 $ 17,422,31
License and royalty reveni - 140,32:
R&D, milestone and grant revenue 1,283,241 1,825,40.
TOTAL REVENUES 25,610,59 19,388,03
Cost of product sale 14,820,60. 9,997,73:
GROSS MARGIN 10,789,99 9,390,30:
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Research and development exper 4,486,30: 4,878,11!
Selling, general and administrative exper 4,851,58 3,424,29

9,337,88! 8,302,41i
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 1,452,10: 1,087,88
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Interest incomt 7,911 6,29¢
Interest expens (9,49%) (18,627)

(1,584) (12,325

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 1,450,51 1,075,56:
Income tax provision (benefit) 509,23 (5,133,22)
NET INCOME $ 941,28. $ 6,208,79.
Basic earnings per share $ 0.1z $ 0.7¢
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.11 $ 0.7:
Weighted average number of shares outstanding, bas 7,986,03! 7,874,80
Weighted average number of shares outstanding, dited 8,614,94. 8,556,28.

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidatethfiial statement:
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Balance at December 31
2010

Warrants and options:
Excercisec
Stock option compensatic

Net income

Balance at December 31
2011

Common Stock:
Consulting Service

Options:

Consulting Service
Excercisec

Stock option compensatic

Net income

Balance at December 31
2012

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Additional Paid in

Accumulated

Common Stock Capital Deficit Total
Shares Amount Amount Amount Amount
7,779,88 $ 77,79¢ $ 40,203,20 $ (34,472,06) $ 5,808,94.
141,13¢ 1,411 286,14 - 287,55:
- - 189,34 - 189,34
- - - 6,208,79 6,208,79.
7,921,02 $ 79,21 $ 40,678,69 $ (28,263,27) $ 12,494,63
3,752 38 16,44 16,47¢
8,01( 8,01(
111,45¢ 1,11¢ 119,27¢ - 120,39(
- - 293,72t - 293,72t
- - = 941,28 941,28:
8,036,23. $ 80,36: $ 41,116,14 $ (27,321,99) $ 13,874,52

See accompanying notes to consolidated financiatesents




CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers and gr:

Cash paid to suppliers and employ

Interest receive

Interest paic

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of and deposits on fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activitie

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from option and warrant exerc
Payment of license obligatic

Payment of loan obligatic

Payment of capital lease obligati

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitie

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalent- end of the period

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED B Y OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Income
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortizatic
Provision for deferred taxe
Provision for doubtful accoun
Share based compensat
Changes in assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Deposits and other assi
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Customer deposits and deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Supplemental disclosures for no-cash investing and financing activities

Deposits on manufacturing equipment transferrdikénl asset:

$ 23,81091 $ 20,335,98
(23,048,24) (18,055,25)

7,911 6,29¢

(9,49Y) (18,629

761,08 2,268,40:

(872,44 (726,68()

(872,44 (726,68()

120,39( 287,55

- (875,00()

(53,557 (54,98()

(14,576 (24,697)

52,26¢ (667,121

(59,095 874,60:

3,010,95. 2,136,35

$ 2,951,85 $ 3,010,95.
$ 941,28 $ 6,208,79
523,27t 437,82t

471,08 (5,155,71)

28,00( (5,000)

318,21! 189,34°

(1,850,90) 952,94¢

(187,78Y) (951,121

(20,227) (70,97¢)

49¢ (6,249

514,42 733,55’

23,22: (65,000

$ 761,08: $ 2,268,40:
$ 229,04 $ -

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidatexhfiial statements
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

1 — DESCRIPTION OF BUSINES:

Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. (the “Company” or “Cheoibiand its subsidiary, Chembio Diagnostic Systeims,, develop,
manufacture, and market rapid diagnostic testsdétact infectious diseases. The Company’s magmdbflow products are three
rapid tests for the detection of HIV antibodieswhole blood, serum and plasma samples, two of whiele approved by the
FDA in 2006; the third is sold for export only. teeal Flow Rapid HIV tests represented nearly 56%he Company’s product
revenues in 2012. The Company’s products basedtsopatented DPP® platform represented approximaté% of the
Company’s product revenues in 2012. The Comparytas other rapid tests that together represep@emately 3% of sales
in 2012. The Company’s products are sold to nedaboratories and hospitals, governmental andiphlealth entities, non-
governmental organizations, medical professionals tail establishments both domestically andriragtonally. Chembio’s
products are sold under the Company’'s STAT-PAK®REUCHECK® or DPP® registered trademarks, or under grivate
labels of its marketing partners, for example tHea€/iew® label owned by Alere, Inc. (“Alere”), wdti is the Company’s
exclusive marketing partner for its rapid HIV latkflow test products in the United States. Thesmlucts employ lateral flow
technologies that are proprietary and/or licensedhe Company. All of the Company’s products thet currently being
developed are based on its patented Dual PathoRtaffDPP®), which is a unique diagnostic point-afe& platform that has
certain advantages over lateral flow technologyDecember 2012, the Company received FDA appifovats DPP® HIV 1/2
Assay for the detection of HIV antibodies in saliwdnole blood, serum and plasma samples.

2 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include twants of the Company, and its wholly owned suasid All intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminatezhsotidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United
States requires management to make assumptiongstingates that affect the reported amounts of sissad liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitieshat dates of the consolidated financial statemantsthe reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting peciodsred thereby. Actual results could differ fradmege estimates. Judgments
and estimates of uncertainties are required inyapgpthe Company’s accounting policies in certaiaa. The following are some
of the areas requiring significant judgments artdredes: determinations of the useful lives of &ssestimates of allowances for
doubtful accounts, inventory reserves, stock-basetpensation and deferred tax assets.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The carrying value for cash and cash equivalentunts receivable and accounts payable, approgifaatvalue because of the
immediate or short-term maturity of these finandr@truments. The Company’s debt relates to bomgwiunder its credit
facilities and term loan (see Note 7), which apprates fair value due to market interest rates.

Statements of Cash Flow:

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, tiragany considers all highly liquid investments watimaturity of three months
or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consisigipally of temporary cash
investments and trade receivables. The Companggitstemporary cash instruments with well-knowarficial institutions and,
at times, may maintain balances in excess of thiCRilsurance limit. The Company monitors the drediings of the financial
institutions to mitigate this risk. Concentratioh credit risk with respect to trade receivableiscipally mitigated by the
Company’s ability to obtain letters of credit frarertain foreign customers, and its diverse custobaese both in number of
customers and geographic locations. We curremtlyat require collateral for accounts receivable.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Inventories:

Inventories, consisting of material, labor and nfaoturing overhead, are stated at the lower of apstarket. Cost is determined
on the first-in, first-out method.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulapedciition. Depreciation is computed using thaight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assetshardange from three to seven years. Leaseholdawements are amortized over
the useful life of the asset or the lease termgchder is shorter. Deposits paid for fixed asastscapitalized and not depreciated
until the related asset is placed in service.

License Agreement

In February 2008, the Company entered into a sefie agreement for which it had initially recorded asset of
$1,000,000. This asset is being expensed ovestanaed economic life of ten years, based on fpeaed lifespan of our then
current HIV products. The current portion of thsset is $100,000 as of December 31, 2012 and &@d is reported in prepaid
expenses and other current assets. The long-temiomp as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 is $400&09 $500,000,
respectively and is reflected in other assets erctinsolidated balance sheet.

Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets and Intangible Asse

Long-lived assets to be held and used are anafgrathpairment whenever events or changes in cistantes indicate that the
related carrying amounts may not be recoverable Tompany evaluates at each balance sheet dathewhevents and
circumstances have occurred that indicate possifgh@irment. If there are indications of impairmethte Company uses future
undiscounted cash flows of the related asset cet ag®uping over the remaining life in measuringethier the assets are
recoverable. In the event such cash flows areerpected to be sufficient to recover the recordesbtavalues, the assets are
written down to their estimated fair value. Weieet that the carrying values of our long-livedgénte and intangible assets
were realizable at December 31, 2012 and 2011ecésply.

Revenue Recognitior

The Company recognizes revenue for product salesdordance with ASC 605, revenue is recognizechwhere is persuasive
evidence of an arrangement, delivery has occurrestivices have been rendered, the sales prigees &nd determinable, and
collectability is reasonably assured. Revenuectjlyi is recognized at time of shipment. Salesremrded net of discounts,
rebates and returns. As of December 31, 2012 ahd, 20h aggregate of $23,000 and none, respectigélgyustomer deposits
were not recognized.

For certain contracts, the Company recognizes tevémmm non-milestone contracts and grant revemdes earned. Grants are
invoiced after expenses are incurred. Revenues fimjects or grants funded in advance are defeurgd earned. As of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, all advanced reveneesaarned.

The Company follows Financial Accounting StandaBdsird (“FASB”) issued authoritative guidance (“gaite”) prospectively
for the recognition of revenue under the milestorethod. The Company applies the milestone metheeva&nue recognition for
certain collaborative research projects defininggstones at the inception of the agreement.

Research and Developmer

Research and development (R&D) costs are experssiedared.

Stock-Based Compensation:

Stock-based compensation expense is calculated tignBlack-Scholes valuation model based on awalttisately expected to
vest, reduced for forfeitures, and expensed oreigbt-line basis over the requisite service pedbthe grant.

Income Taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes under arn asddiability approach which recognizes deferteedassets and liabilities
based on the difference between the financial rsi@t¢ carrying amounts and the tax bases of assdtBadilities using enacted
tax rates in effect in the years in which the di#feces are expected to reverse.

The Company follows a more-likely-than-not threshédr financial statement recognition and measurgnoé a tax position
taken, or expected to be taken, in a tax reture. Jiidance relates to, among other things, clasasifin, accounting for interest
and penalties associated with tax positions, asdasure requirements. Any interest and penaltesiad related to uncertain tax
positions will be recorded in tax expense.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
a

Earnings Per Share

On May 30, 2012, the Company effected a 1-for-&rsee split of its common stock. This was donellmaathe Company to
move to the NASDAQ trading market from the OTCQBrked, which occurred on June 7, 2012. As a raduhe stock split, the
outstanding 63,967,263 common shares were redcg®95,918 outstanding common shares on May 3[R.20he effect of
the reverse stock split has been retroactivelgcedd for all periods in these financial statements

The following weighted average shares were usethéocomputation of basic and diluted earningsspare:

For the years endec
December 31, 201. December 31, 201
Basic 7,986,03C 7,874,807

Diluted 8,614,944 8,556,284
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividingeaenings attributable to common stockholders Hey weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding for the pebBddted earnings per share for the year ended iDbee 31, 2012 and 2011
reflects the potential dilution from the exerciseconversion of other securities into common stock.

The following securities, presented on a commomeshgquivalent basis, have been used in the dihgedhare computations:

For the years endec
December 31, 201. December 31, 201
1999 and 2008 Plan Stock Option 628,914 681,477

There were 161,464 and 182,343 options and warmngtanding as of December 31, 2012 and 2011ecésply, which were
not included in the calculation of diluted incomer ghare for the years ended because their effadtivihave been anti-dilutive.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Affecting the Caang:
New accounting pronouncements are issued by tha@nEial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) or otls¢sindards setting
bodies that we adopt according to the various fibles the FASB specifies. The Company does notoexpe adoption of

recently issued accounting pronouncements to haigniicant impact on the Company’s results ofragiens, financial position
or cash flow.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

3 — INVENTORIES:

Inventories consist of the following at:

December 31, 201.

December 31, 201

Raw materials $ 1,418,07. $ 1,340,17
Work in process 561,53( 390,16:
Finished goods 508,47( 569,94

$ 2,488,07. $ 2,300,28!

4 — FIXED ASSETS:

Fixed assets consist of the following at:

December 31, 201,

December 31, 201

Machinery and equipme $ 2,439,59 $ 1,982,92
Furniture and fixture 287,41: 221,29¢
Computer and telephone equipm 151,73 460,84
Leasehold improvemen 798,04¢ 595,409:
Automobiles 29,22¢ 29,22¢
3,706,02, 3,289,78

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,278,371 (2,227,51)
$ 1,427,64 $ 1,062,27

There were no capital leases at the end of DecerBbger2012. Included in fixed assets is $24,00Q, afeaccumulated
depreciation of assets held under capital leasesf &3ecember 31, 2011. Fixed assets at Decembel®l2 also include
$323,000 in equipment, which has been delivered satelp but is undergoing validation and as sucbuisently not being
depreciated. Depreciation expense for the 2082841 years aggregated $423,000 and $338,00@atsgy.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company hdl geposits on various pieces of equipment agtirep&223,584 and

$139,790, respectively. The Company is further mitted to an additional obligation of $61,071 asimas milestones are
achieved by the various vendors.

5 — ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ANDACCRUED LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consigheffollowing at:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Accounts payable- suppliers $ 1,686,43 $ 1,258,46!
Accrued commissions 238,15 205,58t
Accrued royalties / license fee 583,92: 480,29
Accrued payroll 262,43¢ 174,39¢
Accrued vacation 181,63 156,88-
Accrued bonuses 155,66: 284,37"
Accrued expense- other 195,68: 229,49:
TOTAL $ 3,303,92 % 2,789,501
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

6 — DEFERRED RESEARCH ANIDEVELOPMENT REVENUE:

The Company recognizes income from R&D milestonéewthose milestones are reached and non-mileswmmeacts and
grants when earned. Grants are invoiced afterresqeeare incurred. Any projects or grants fundealivance are deferred until
earned. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, there meunearned advanced revenues.

7— TERM NOTE, REVOLVING DEMAND NOTE, VEHICLE FINANCING  AND LICENSE FEE PAYABLE:

In June 2010, the Company entered into three agmesnwith HSBC Bank, NA (“HSBC”"). The three agresis were: 1) a
secured term note (“Term Note”) of $250,000 to bpaid over sixty months; 2) a secured revolving asinnote (“Demand
Note”) up to $250,000; and 3) a loan and secugtgament (“Security Agreement”).

The Term Note is payable at $4,775 per month ieaas: The payment was calculated by amortizings#%,000 note over 60
months at an interest rate of 5.5% per annum. TETen Note matures June 2015 and is secured uneéetims of the Security
Agreement. In January 2013, the Company repagdTieim Note in full without penalty.

The Demand Note allows the Company to draw on ife from time to time an amount up to an aggregsdt&250,000
outstanding at any one time. The accrued inteneshe Demand Note is payable monthly at an inteete equal to one-quarter
percent above prime per annum. The Company cayrapy or all of the principal balance outstandigny time. This is a
demand note and is subject to annual reviews, dswa 30-day clean-up, during which there candamounts outstanding.

The Security Agreement contains covenants thaeplastrictions on the Company’s operations, incigdiovenants relating to
mergers, debt restrictions, capital expenditurasgible net worth, net profit, leverage, fixed dercoverage, employee loan
restrictions, distribution restrictions (commoncitand preferred stock), dividend restrictionsfrieions on lease payments to
affiliates, restrictions on changes in businessetasale restrictions, restrictions on acquisitiand intercompany transactions,
restrictions on fundamental changes. The Secigteement also requires that the Company maintaimnémum tangible net
worth at all times of greater than $3,000,000 aB#TBA to CMLTD plus interest cannot be less thaf5Lto 1.00 for any fiscal
year. (EBITDA is earnings before interest, taxesprdciation and amortization; CMLTD is defined fas,any one-year period,
the current scheduled principal payments requindaetpaid for the applicable period.). The Compagag in compliance with all
required financial covenants at December 31, 2012.

In July 2011, the Company entered into additiorsreaments with HSBC Bank, NA (“HSBC”). The agreatsewere: 1) a
secured revolving demand note for equipment (“Epaipt Note™) up to $500,000, convertible to a termtenafter one year; and
2) a loan and security agreement (“Security Agredihe

The Equipment Note allows the Company to draw anlihe from time to time an amount up to an aggeegd $500,000
outstanding at any one time. The accrued intayesthe Equipment Note is payable monthly at anrésterate equal to one-
quarter percent above prime per annum. The Comgamyepay any or all of the principal balance taumding at any time. The
Equipment Note will be converted into a 60-montimteote at the end of one year. As the Compadydt draw down on this
line the Demand Note and the Equipment Note expiredly of 2012.

The Security Agreement contains covenants thaeplastrictions on the Company’s operations, ineclgdiovenants relating to
mergers, debt restrictions, capital expenditurasgible net worth, net profit, leverage, fixed dercoverage, employee loan
restrictions, distribution restrictions (commonakt@nd preferred stock), dividend restrictionstrieions on lease payments to
affiliates, restrictions on changes in businesseiasale restrictions, restrictions on acquisitiand intercompany transactions,
restrictions on fundamental changes. The Compeay in compliance with all required financial cosats when the notes
expired.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

The Company currently maintains its operating, pthyand primary cash accounts at HSBC. The baahe on the Term Note
as of December 31, 2012 was $133,000.

Future minimum payments under the Term Note, exctuchterest, as of December 31, 2012 is not shasithe balance was
paid in full on January 17, 2013 in the amount ti2%349.

In June 2009, the Company purchased a vehicle derby the CEO and obtained financing in the amadir$29,000. The
financing is for a period of 3 years, is securedhgyvehicle and is guaranteed by the CEO. Thantimg agreement provides for
monthly principal and interest payments of $849 eadies an interest rate of 2.9% per annum. Tiaeno balance due on this
loan as of December 31, 2012.

8 — INCOME TAXES:

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for thargeended December 31, 2012 and 2011, is compfdee following:

201z 2011
Current

Federa $ 33,05: $ 22,08:
State 5,09¢ 40z
Total current provisio 38,15 22,48«

Deferred
Federa 464,00! (5,155,71)
State 7,08( -
Total deferred provision 471,08! (5,155,71)
Total provision $ 509,23 $ (5,133,22)

The Company had an ownership change as describettmal Revenue Code Sec. 382 during 2004 (“20@¢hge”). As a result,
the Company'’s net operating losses prior to thet2fitange of $5,832,516 are subject to an annuahtion of $150,608 and for
the first five (5) years are entitled to a BIG (BUm-Gains) of $488,207 per year. These net ojregalbsses expire in 2018
through 2024.

The Company had a second ownership change durid@ €006 change”). The net operating losses imclitretween the 2004
change and the 2006 change of $8,586,861 are subjen annual limitation of $1,111,831 and for fhst five (5) years are
entitled to a BIG of $1,756,842 per year. Theseopetrating losses expire in 2018 through 2028.

After applying the above limitations, at Decembér 3012, the Company has post-change net operatisgcarry-forwards of
approximately $12,274,761 which expire between 28260 2028. In addition the Company has researdhdamelopment tax
credit carryforwards of approximately $711,000tfoe year ended December 31, 2012, which expiredet 2025 and 2032.

Prior to 2011 and through September 30, 2011, tragany had a full valuation allowance recorded resgaieferred tax assets.

In the fourth quarter of 2011, based on the Comisasyystained profitable operating performance derpast three years and its
positive outlook for taxable income in the fututlee Company reevaluated its deferred tax assetedapon the guidance under
ASC 740 that it was more likely than not that ther®any would realize the benefit of such defereeddssets, the Company
reversed $5,156,000 of the valuation allowanceiptesly recorded against its deferred tax assets.démpany still maintains a

full valuation allowance on research and develogrtencredits.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Deferred tax assets consist of at December 31,

201z 2011
Current assets
Inventory reserve $ 22469: $ 260,66!
Accrued expenses 226,74( 145,42¢
Net current deferred ass $ 451,43 $ 406,09:
Noncurrent assets
Net operating loss ca-forwards $ 4,236,000 $ 4,837,46!
Research and development cr 711,44. 581,57¢
Other credit: 97,23 -
Other 99,09" 132,73«
Gross noncurrent deferred tax as: 5,143,78: 5,551,77!
Depreciation (199,14 (220,57))
Noncurrent deferred tax ass 4,944,633 5,331,19
Less valuation allowances (711,44:) (581,579)
Net noncurrent deferred tax ass $ 4,233,19. $ 4,749,62,

A reconciliation of the Federal statutory ratette effective rate applicable to income (loss) eefocome taxes is as follows:

Year Ending December 3

201z 2011
Federal income tax at statutory ra 34% 34%
State income taxes, net of federal ber 1% 0%
Nondeductible expens: 5.4% 6.4%
Change in valuation allowan: 8.9% (514.3)%
Tax credits (8.9Y% -
Change in tax rate (5.2)% -
Other 2% (.7)%
Income tax (benefit 35.1% (474.6)%

Interest and penalties, if any, related to incoeeliabilities are included in income tax expenges of December 31, 2012, the
Company does not have a liability for uncertainpasitions.

The Company files Federal and New York state incdeereturns. Tax years for fiscal 2009 througi2@re open and
potentially subject to examination by the federad alew York state taxing authorities.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

9 — STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUIY:

Common Stock

During 2012, options to purchase 111,459 sharéseo€Company’s common stock were exercised at eseepmices ranging
from of $1.04 to $1.76.

In March 2012, June 2012, September 2012 and Deme2ld2, the Company issued 938 shares of comnook sh each
date to a consultant as part of the consultantispemsation.

During 2011, options to purchase 76,927 shareh@fCOompany’s common stock were exercised at exepgises ranging
from of $1.04 to $1.76.

(b) Preferred Stoclk

The Company has 10,000,000 shares of preferre# atsthorized and none outstanding. These sharebaome issuable
upon an approved resolution by the board of direcod the filing of a Certificate of Designatioitiwthe state of Nevada.

(c) Options

On February 16, 2012, the Company issued 25,398rspto purchase common stock to executives ofCiimpany as part
of their 2011 bonus. The options are exercisaflmediately at $4.00 per share, which was the tastetl price of the
common stock on that day, and they expire five yé@am date of issue.

In March 2012, the Company issued 3,750 optionmitchase shares of the Company’s common at anisegnice of $4.00
per share to a consultant as part of the considtaampensation. On each of March 19, 2012, J@nQ12, September 19,
2012 and December 19, 2012, 938 of these optiostede These options were valued using a Black{8shmodel at
$8,010, all of which was expensed in the year erldedember 31, 2012. The options are being accduoteunder the
variable method as per ASC 505 and $50 of the esgoeras reduced attributable to this method.

During the third quarter of 2012, the Company islsi®,000 options to purchase common stock to nénved vice-
presidents of the Company. The options are exablgsn three equal annual installments on thevansary of the issuance
starting one year from date of issue. An allotnadr86,000 options issued to one of the new viasigients have an exercise
price of $5.11 per share, and the 36,000 optibaswere issued to the other new vice presiden¢ lam exercise price of
$4.45 per share, which in each case was theréatd price of the common stock on the day isséed options expire five
years from date of issue.

Warrants

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had no warautstanding to purchase shares of common stock.

On April 26, 2011, warrants to purchase 513,698eshaf common stock were exercised at $.40 pereshBne Company
received $205,479 for this exercise.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had warrauttstanding to purchase 33,381 shares of commok stoa price of
$.81. On February 5, 2012 these warrants to paechhares of common stock expired.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

10 — RIGHTS AGREEMENT:

In March 2010, the Company entered into a RighteeAment (the "Rights Agreement") between the Comjpad Action Stock
Transfer Corp., as Rights Agent. Pursuant to thght® Agreement, the Company declared a dividersdridution of one
preferred share purchase right (a "Right") for eaafstanding share of Common Stock, $0.01 par W@hes"Common Stock"), of
the Company. The Board of Directors set the payrdat# for the distribution of the Rights as Mar¢l2®@10, and the Rights were
distributed to the Company’s shareholders of reamrdhat date. The description and terms of thghRiare set forth in the
Rights Agreement.

Rights Initially Not Exercisable. The Rights are not exercisable until a DistribmtDate. Until a Right is exercised, the holder
thereof, as such, will have no rights as a shadenaf the Company, including, without limitatichg right to vote or to receive
dividends.

Separation and Distribution of Rights. The Rights will be evidenced by the certificafim@sshares of Common Stock registered
in the names of the holders thereof, and not byrseg rights certificates until the earlier to acofi(i) the close of business on
the tenth business day following a public annourergrthat an Acquiring Person (as defined in thenRig\greement) acquired a
Combined Ownership (as defined in the Rights Agegtinof 15% or more of the outstanding shares @fGbmmon Stock (the
"Shares Acquisition Date") or (ii) the later of (#)e close of business on the tenth business dagug@h later date as may be
determined by action of the Board of Directors ptio such time as any person or group of affiliatedassociated persons
becomes an Acquiring Person) after the date thabder or exchange offer or intention to commentender or exchange offer
by any person is first published, announced, segiven within the meaning of Rule 14d-4(A) undee Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended, the consummation of whichdvasgult in any person having Combined Ownership58% or more of the
outstanding shares of the Common Stock, or (Blichsa tender or exchange offer has been publigtrethunced, sent or given
before the date of the Rights Agreement, then kbhgecof business on the tenth business day afeddte the Rights Agreement
was entered into (or such later date as may bemieted by action of the Board of Directors priorsiach time as any person
becomes an Acquiring Person); (the earlier of siaties referred to in (i) and (i), which date maglide any such date that is
after the date of the Rights Agreement but pridhtissuance of the Rights, being called the Ybistion Date").

11 — EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN:

The Company has a 1999 Stock Option Plan (“SORirally covering 187,500 shares of Common Stockdéf the terms of
the SOP, the Compensation Committee of the Compayard is authorized to grant incentive optionkelp employees and to
grant non-qualified options to key employees ang ikéividuals. The options become exercisable ahgimes and under such
conditions as determined by the Compensation Com@eitThe SOP was amended at the Company’s 20@khsiders’
meeting. The number of options under the SOP nagased to cover 375,000 shares of common stogkas also amended to
allow independent directors to be eligible for dsannder the portion of the SOP concerning nonifigeloptions. As of
December 31, 2012, there were 135,191 outstangitigns under this SOP. No additional options meayssued under the SOP
more than 10 years after its adoption

Effective June 3, 2008, the Company’s stockholdeted to approve the 2008 Stock Incentive PlanR"Blwith 625,000 shares
of Common Stock available to be issued. At theuahiStockholder meeting on September 22, 2011 tmp@ny’s stockholders
voted to approve an increase to the shares of Con8tuxk issuable under the SIP by 125,000 to 780,&hder the terms of the
SIP, the Compensation Committee of the Companyar@das the discretion to select the persons tanwawards are to be
granted. Awards can be stock options, restrictedksand/or restricted stock units. The awards beceested at such times and
under such conditions as determined by the Compiens@ommittee. As of December 31, 2012, thereew®4,584 options
exercised, 596,455 options outstanding and 68,p@a&rts still available to be issued under the SIP.
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NOTE

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

The Company's results for the years ended DeceBiheR012 and 2011 include stock-based compensatipense totaling

$294,000 and $189,000, respectively. Such amdwaws been included in the Consolidated Statemér@perations within cost
of goods sold ($49,000 and $18,000, respectiveggearch and development ($71,000 and $56,000eategly) and selling,

general and administrative expenses ($174,000 448,800, respectively). In accordance with ASC #18 Company has not
recorded a deferred tax asset related to the reratipg losses resulting from the exercise of dififjing stock options in the
accompanying financial statements. The cumulatimeumnt of unrecognized tax benefits at December2812 was immaterial,
and if the Company is able to utilize this benefithe future it would result in a credit to addital paid-in capital.

Stock option compensation expense in the yearsdebdeember 31, 2012 and 2011 represents the estrfait value of options
outstanding which is being amortized on a straligie-basis over the requisite vesting period ofghere award.

The weighted average estimated fair value of stgtlons granted in the years ended December 32, 20d 2011 was $3.27 and
$1.76 per share, respectively. The fair valuepifoms at the date of grant was estimated usindthek-Scholes option pricing

model. The expected volatility is based upon histébvolatility of our stock and other contributifigctors. The expected term is
based on the Company'’s historical experience visitlilar type options.

The weighted-average assumptions made in calcgltianfair values of options are as follows:

For the years endec
December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Expected term (in years) 4-5 3.75
Expected volatility 99.¢-115.77% 92.13-117.9%
Expected dividend yield n/a n/a
Risk-free interest rate .33-37% .57-1.39%

The Company granted 97,392 and 3,750 new optioriagithe year ended December 31, 2012 to emplogedsa consultant
(non-plan options), respectively at an averageaseprice of $4.58 and $4.00, respectively peresha

The following table provides stock options actividy the year ended December 31, 2012 :

Weighted Averagr ~ Weighted Averag:
Exercise Price per Remaining Contractui Aggregate Intrin

Stock Options Number of Share Share Term Value
Outstanding at December 31, 201 765,90. $ 1.6¢ 2.61 years $ 1,339,€
Grantec 97,39: $ 4.5¢

Exercisec (111459 $ 1.0¢

Forfeited/expired/cancelle (20,190 $ 3.8¢

Outstanding at December 31, 201 731,64t $ 2.2¢ 2.19 years $ 3,460,¢
Exercisable at December 31, 201 511,82 $ 1.4 1.57 years $ 2,438,¢€

The following table summarizes information abowot&toptions outstanding at December 31, 2012:

Stock Options Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable
Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Range of Exercise Contract Life Average Aggregate Average Aggregate
Prices Shares (Year) Exercise Price Intrinsic Value Shares Exercise Price Intrinsic Valt
$ 0to1.5C 397,33 12¢ $ 1.0 $ 1,466,15! 378,58 $ 1.0¢ $ 1,396,
1.5001 to 41,44 0.1: 1.7¢ 123,08( 41,44: 1.7¢€ 123,
2.0001 to 3.5 131,25( 3.2¢ 2.62 277,31t 62,50( 2.5¢ 136,
3.5001 to 4.5 125,62: 3.8¢ 4.2¢€ 59,04: 29,30( 3.9t 22,
4.5001 to 36,00( 4.6C 5.11 - - -
Total 731,64¢ 2.1t $ 212 $ 1,925,59 511,82: $ 145 $ 1,679,

As of December 31, 2012, there was $305,000 ofineicognized compensation cost related to stodkrapthat are not vested,
which is expected to be recognized over a weighteztage period of approximately .81 years. Thal tigiir value of shares
vested during the years ended December 31, 2012Giid was $144,000 and $149,000, respectively.

12 — GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION:

FASB Guidance establishes standards for the waly thainess enterprises report information aboutaijpg segments in
financial statements and requires that those etdemp report selected information. It also estalebs standards for related
disclosures about product and services, geograpbas, and major customers.

The Company produces only one group of similar pet&lknown collectively as “rapid medical tests"amhgement believes that
it operates in a single business segment. Net bglgsographic area are as follows:

For the years endec




December 31, 201. December 31, 201

Africa $ 2,669,141 $ 2,340,6%
Asia 658,83 1,784,81
Europe 54,28( 57,20
North America 8,630,95! 8,522,87
South America 12,314,14 4,716,77

$ 2432735 $ 17,422,31

Sales to Africa increased in 2012 primarily dueiroreased sales in Uganda by approximately $1064D Nigeria by
approximately $298,000. Sales in Asia decreasenh fsales in the Middle East by $1.22 million. Saile 2012 and 2011 to
North America were primarily from sales in the WiSapproximately $7.72 million and $7.21 milliorespectively and sales in
2012 and 2011 to South America were primarily freales in Brazil of approximately $10.30 million afd.66 million,
respectively.
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NOTE

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

13 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
Employment Contracts:
The Company has contracts with two key employdds contracts call for salaries presently aggrage#590,000 per year. One

contract expires in May 2013 and one contract esgin March 2016. The following table is a schedflfuture minimum salary
commitments:

2013 $ 422,50(
2014 300,00(
2015 300,00(
2016 50,00(

Pension Plan:

The Company has a 401(k) plan established fomifgl@yees. Effective January 1, 2011 the Compaegtedl to match 40% of
the first 5% (or 2% of salary) that an employeetibutes to their 401(k) plan. Expenses relatethi® matching contribution
aggregated $64,604 and $61,628 for the years dbeeeimber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Obligations Under Operating Leases:

The Company leases industrial space used for off®D and manufacturing facilities, currently with monthly rent of

$20,530. The current leases expire on April 3A420The monthly rent for the year will increasethg lower of (i) the change in
the consumer price index, or (ii) two and one palfcent.

The following is a schedule of future minimum rdm@mmitments (assuming no increases):

Years ending December 31,

2013 $ 246,36(
2014 82,12(
$ 328,48(

Rent expense was $231,700 and $177,200 for the geded December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Economic Dependency:

The following table delineates sales the Compamytbaustomers in excess of 10% of total salesh®iperiods indicated:

Accounts
For the years endec Receivable As of
December 31, 201. December 31, 201. December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Sales % of Sales Sales % of Sales
Customer $ 7,778,68! 32 % 7,208,71. 41 $ 879,08¢ $ 782,30(
Customer - 10,299,21 42 4,662,60 27 1,668,15! 685,69:
Customer & * * 1,713,39I 10 59¢ 450,00(

In the table above the asterisk (*) indicates s to the customer did not exceed 10% for thegedicated.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

The following table delineates purchases the Compgad with vendors in excess of 10% of total puselsafor the periods
indicated.

Accounts
For the years endec Payable As of
December 31, 201. December 31, 201 December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Purchases % of Purc. Purchases % of Purc.
Vendor 1 $ 817,29: 13 * * $ 114,89: $ 3,38(
Vendor 2 778,79: 12 * * 76,93: 23,327

In the table above the asterisk (*) indicates thathases from the vendor did not exceed 10% #périod indicated.

The Company currently buys materials which are lpased under intellectual property rights agreemant$ are important
components in its products. Management believasdther suppliers could provide similar materiats comparable terms. A
change in suppliers, however, could cause a delaganufacturing and a possible loss of sales, whichld affect operating
results adversely.

14 — COLLABORATIVE RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS:

In 2012 and 2011, the Company earned $1.3 millimh 1.8 million, respectively, from research revenand milestones. The Company
is now involved in additional feasibility and dewpment contracts related to its DPP® technologlye ®tal expended on R&D in 2012
and 2011, was approximately $3.1 million and $3illian, respectively.

a. Oswaldo Cruz Foundation/Fiocruz

During 2008, the Company signed four Agreement$ wie Bio-Manguinhos unit of the Oswaldo Cruz Faatiah of Brazil
(“FIOCRUZ") for the supply, license and transfer oértain products and related technologies from @wmpany to
FIOCRUZ. The agreements are for the following daggist products: i) DPP® HIV 1/2 Screen, ii) DPP®/H./2 Confirmatory,
iii) DPP® Leptospirosis and iv) DPP® Leishmaniadibese Agreements provide for a staged technol@psfer collaboration
pursuant to which FIOCRUZ will ultimately be able fully manufacture the applicable product for dypp Brazil provided
certain minimum purchases of products and relabdegponents have occurred.

In 2011, FIOCRUZ informed the Company that ANVISAhg Brazilian regulatory agency) had approved theP®
Leishmaniasis, Syphilis Screen and Leptospirosayasfor use in Brazil. This approval triggeredestone events of $305,000,
$100,000 and $100,000, respectively. In accordamite guidance, management has concluded that tRCRUZ events
recorded in 2011 met the definition of milestonergs. The Company earned an aggregate of noneX00H0 in milestone
revenues from FIOCRUZ for the years ended Decer®bge2012 and 2011, respectively.

Under these contracts, there are additional rastind purchase commitments due to the Companytloeveemaining life of the
Agreement.

National Institutes of Health (NIH) Grant:

In June 2009, the Company received a $3 millioreettyear grant from the United States Nationaititsts of Health to complete
development of a test for Leptospirosis. Grantsiavoiced after expenses are incurred. The Camparned, for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, $270,000 and@RERGespectively from this grant. The Company émsied an aggregate
of $2, 756,000 from this grant from inception thygauDecember 31, 2012, of which $898,000 was pasiibecontractors.

F-17




CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

In March 2011, the Company received a $2.4 millibmee-year grant from the United States Nationatitutes of Health to

complete development of a test for Tuberculosisan@ are invoiced after expenses are incurre@ Admpany earned, for the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, $682,00006350,000, respectively from this grant. The Comyphas earned

$1,377,000 from this grant from inception througtcBmber 31, 2012, of which $345,000 was paid tecsulractors.

c. Battelle/CDC DPI® Influenza Immunity Test:

In July 2012, the Company entered into a follow-arilestone-based development agreement of up t®,8@8 based on
Chembio’s previous successful initial developméra multiplex rapid point-of-care (“POC”) influenzamunity test utilizing its
patented Dual Path Platform (DPP®) technology. @ageement contemplates a period of approximatelg months in which
the follow-on development activity is to be complit As of December 31, 2012 the Company has e&2i#8000.

Governmental Regulation:

All of the Company’s existing and proposed diagitgstoducts are regulated by the United States FowtdDrug Administration
(FDA), United States Department of Agriculture,taar state and local agencies, and/or comparablglatry bodies in other
countries. Most aspects of development, productod marketing, including product testing, autkations to market, labeling,
promotion, manufacturing, and record keeping atgest to review. After marketing approval has begeanted, Chembio must
continue to comply with governmental regulatiofsilure to comply with these regulations can reisustignificant penalties.
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Exhibit 10.2
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) is eatkinto as of the 5th day of March, 2013 (the &gffve Date”) by and between Chemk
Diagnostics, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Conyfig and Javan Esfandiari (“‘Employee”). Employeal the Company are sometimes referred to
individually as a “Party” and collectively as thedrties”.

In consideration of the mutual covenants, promisabagreements herein contained, the Company aptbfzee hereby covenant, promise and
agree to and with each other as follows:

1. Employment The Company shall employ Employee and Employe# perform services for and on behalf of the Campupon the terms a
conditions set forth in this Agreement.

2. Positions and Duties of EmploymenEmployee shall be required to devote his fulrgl, skill and best efforts as required to théhferance ¢
his managerial duties with the Company as the Cogip&enior Vice President of Research and DevedopinWhile serving in such capacities, Employee
shall have the responsibilities, duties, obligatiaights, benefits and requisite authority asust@mary for his position and as may be determimethe
Company'’s Board of Directors (the “Board”).

Employee understands that his employment as S¥idgerPresident of Research and Development of ey involves a high
degree of trust and confidence, that he is emplégethe purpose of furthering the Company’s repataand improving the Company’s operations and
profitability, and that in executing this Agreeméet undertakes the obligations set forth hereactmmplish such objectives. Employee agrees thahak
serve the Company fully, diligently, competentlydda the best of his ability. Employee certifieatthe fully understands his right to discuss thyse®mer
with his attorney, that he has availed himselhis tight to the extent that he desires, that lsedaaefully read and fully understands this emigeeement,
and that he is voluntarily entering into this Agresnt.

3. Duties Employee shall perform the following servicestfoe Company:

@) Employee $kalve as Senior Vice President of Research anedlBement of the Company, or in such other posiéien
determined by the Board, and in those capacitiat wiork with the Company to pursue the Companyamp as directed by the Board.

(b) Employee shall perform duties witle functions of an officer of the Company, subjedhe direction of the Board.




(c) During the Term (as defined in Sec# below) of this Agreement, Employee shall destbstantially all of Employee’s
business time to the performance of Employee’sduthder this Agreement. Without limiting the faragg, Employee shall perform services on behalf of
the Company for at least forty hours per week, amgployee shall be reasonably available at the stqfehe Company at other times, including weekend
and holidays, to meet the needs and requests @fdhgany’s customers.

(d) During the Term, Employee will netgage in any other activities or undertake anyratbenmitments that conflict with or take
priority over Employee’s responsibilities and ohbligns to the Company and the Company’s custormelsiding without limitation those responsibilities
and obligations incurred pursuant to this Agreement

4. Term Unless terminated earlier as provided for is thgreement, the term of this Agreement shall béHiee years, commencing on the
Effective Date and ending on the third anniversdrihe Effective Date (the “Term”)f the employment relationship is terminated byeitParty, Employe
agrees to cooperate with the Company and with tmapgany’s new management with respect to the tiangsif the new management in the operations
previously performed by Employee. Upon Employeetsiination, Employee agrees to return to the ComppdrCompany documents (and all copies
thereof), any other Company property in Employg@e@ssession or control, and any materials of ang #iat contain or embody any proprietary or
confidential material of the Company.

5. Base SalanAs compensation for the services to be perforbyeEmployee during the Term, Company shall pay Eyge a base salary
payable in accordance with the Company’s custorpayyoll practices (the “Base Salary”), at the faliog annual rates:

@) For the first contract year perio@¢htract Year One”) from the Effective Date to finst anniversary of the Effective Date (the
“First Anniversary”), $300,000.00 per year (“Comtr& ear One Base Salary”).

(b) For the second contract year peri@itract Year Two”) from the First Anniversary thie Effective Date to the second
anniversary of the Effective Date (the “Second Amrrsary”), $300,00.00 per year, plus the annuatebbving increase as offered to the Companylsent
executive officers (“Contract Year Two Base Salary”

(c) For the third contract year perio@d¢htract Year Three”) from the Second Anniversdrihe Effective Date to the third
anniversary of the Effective Date (the “Third Anergary”), the Contract Year Two Base Salary, phesannual cost-of-living increase as offered to the
Company’s other executive officers per year (“Cactryear Three Base Salary”).

6. Performance BonudsA performance-based bonus (the “Performance B9 up to 50% of the Base Salary, to be complrisethe
same components in the same ratios as for the Quorigpather executive officers.




7. Stock Option Grant

(@) Grant of Stock Optiondn recognition of Employee’s importance and eafo the Company and as an additional inducement
for Employee to enter into this Agreement, but eabjn all respects to the terms and conditionthisf Agreement, including, without limitation, tkiesting
schedule set forth below, and the Company’s 2068ksand Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) and the Compmfgrm of Stock Option Agreement annexed
hereto as Exhibit C, the Company hereby grantaiipl&yee on the later of the Effective Date or thtedhat this Agreement has been signed by the
Employee and the Company (for purposes of thisi@eét the “Stock Option Grant Date”), stock opsdn purchase 30,000 shares (the “Options”) of the
Company’s common stock, $0.01 par value per slitheg‘Common Stock”), which are intended to be inivenstock options under the Plan and within the
meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue @fd®86, as amended. The price per share of i@ shall be equal to the Fair Market Value (as
such term is defined below) of the Common StockhenStock Option Grant Date. For purposes ofAlgieement, the term “Fair Market Value” shall
mean the closing price of the Common Stock on thekSOption Grant Date on the National Associatd®Securities Dealers Automated Quotation Sy
(“NASDAQ"). Subject to the terms and conditionstlis Agreement, ten thousand (10,000) of the @pt&hall vest on each of the first, second, and
third anniversaries of the Stock Option Grant Date

(b) No Proportionate or Partial Vestinghere shall be no proportionate or partial vestf the Options between the vesting dates
set forth in subparagraph 7(a) above.

(c) Restrictions on TransfeEmployee shall not exercise, sell, transferdgée hypothecate, assign or otherwise encumber or
dispose of the Options, except as set forth inAlgieement. Any attempted exercise, sale, trangfedge, hypothecation, assignment or other disposbf
the Options in violation of this Agreement shallméd and of no effect. The provisions of this &t 7(c) shall cease to apply to the Options endhte
such Options become vested hereunder.

(d) Forfeiture; Immediate Vestingf Employee’s employment is terminated by Emglewt any time other than during the six (6)
month period immediately following a Change of Gohfas such term is hereinafter defined) or byGleenpany for Cause (as such term is hereinafter
defined), then Employee will forfeit, without compsation, any and all Options that are unvested tealate of termination of Employee’s
employment. In the event of a Change of Controhdhe event the Company terminates Employee’d@mpent hereunder without his consent for a
reason other than Cause, then all of the Optioalt wbst immediately.

8. Certain Additional Provisions Relatito Compensation and
Other Employee Benefits

(@) If Employee is eligible, the Compahall include Employee in any profit sharing plerecutive stock option plan, pension
plan, retirement plan, medical and/or hospital@alan, and/or any and all other benefit plansgpkfor disability and life insurance, which may flacec
in effect by the Company for the benefit of the Q@amy’s executive officers during the Term. Exceptthe fact that the Company at all times shalijot®
Employee with all or at least a portion of Emplogemedical and/or hospitalization insurance, whgbhll not be less than that afforded to the Comigany
other executive officers, nothing in this Agreemstmall limit (i) the Company’s ability to exercitiee discretion provided to it under any such berndin,
or (ii) the Company’s discretion to adopt, not agl@mend or terminate any such benefit plan attiamg.




(b) Employee shall be entitled to fi& veeks vacation leave for each year of the Taswell as sick leave, medical insurance
coverage and any other benefits consistent witlfCtthrapany’s plans and policies in effect for the @amy’s executives from time to time. The Company
may modify in its sole and absolute discretion soehefits from time to time as it considers neagssaappropriate.

(c) During the Term, Employee shall benbursed for reasonable expenses that are awgbdrizthe Company and that are
incurred by Employee for the benefit of the Compamgiccordance with the standard reimbursementipescof the Company. Any direct payment or
reimbursement of expenses shall be made only umseptation of an itemized accounting conforminfpim and content to standards prescribed by the
Internal Revenue Service relative to the substimtiadf the deductibility of business expenses.

(d) During the Term, the Company shathiaurse Employee for all expenses Employee incuc®nnection with his use of a
cellular telephone or smart-phone as providedltotaér executive officers of the Company.

(e) During the Term, the Company shadve Employee $400.00 per month, as compensatioBriiployees$ cost of ownership
leasing of a vehicle to be used for Company purpose

® Any payments which the Company shadlke to Employee pursuant to this Agreement skeateduced by standard withholding
and other applicable payroll deductions, includinghout limitation, federal, state or local incoreother taxes, social security and medicare {astate
unemployment insurance deductions, state disafnilétyrance deductions, and any other applicabletaeduction (collectively, any withheld taxes and
deductions, “Deductions”).

9. Confidentiality

(@) Employee hereby warrants, covenamisagrees that, without the prior express writ@msent of the Company, and unless
required by law, court order or similar process piyee shall hold in the strictest confidence, ahnall not disclose to any person, firm, corporatioothel
entity, any and all of the Company’s informatiam;luding, for example, and without limitation, athgta related to (i) drawings, sketches, plans logrot
documents concerning the Company’s business ollaf@went plans, customers or suppliers, and researdtievelopment efforts; (ii) the Company’s
development, design, construction or sales and etiackmethods or techniques; or (iii) the Compansdsie secrets and other “know-how” or information
not of a public nature, regardless of how suchrmfdion came to the custody of Employee (colledyiveubsections (i), (ii) and (iii) of this Sectidi(a),
“Information”). For purposes of this Agreement, lsunformation shall include, but not be limited &my information regarding a formula, pattern,
compilation, program, device, method, techniquprocess that (A) derives independent economic yalgsent or potential, not being generally known t
and not being readily ascertainable by proper mbginsether persons who can obtain economic vala its disclosure or use, and (B) is the subject of
Company efforts.




(b) In the event Employee is requiredawy, court order or similar process to disclosg kfiormation, Employee shall provide
immediate notice of such obligatory disclosure ptiosuch disclosure, so that the Company, abits @gption, may attempt to seek a protective ooder
other appropriate remedy to preclude such disabosur

(c) The warrantiegvenants and agreements set forth in this Setficshall not expire, shall survive this Agreemant shall be
binding upon Employee without regard to the passddene or any other event.

10. Compans Right To Inventions and Discoveries

@) “Inventions” means all improvementiscoveries, inventions, works of authorship, maskks, computer programs, source and
object codes, writings, formulas, ideas, procedsebniques, know-how and data, made or conceivegldniced to practice or developed by Employee,
either alone or jointly with others as a resuleofployment at the Company. “Proprietary Rightsansall trade secret, patent, copyright, tradentealle
name, service mark, and other intellectual propegtyts throughout the world. Inventions and Prefany Rights do not include inventions that the
Employee developed entirely on Employee’s own tmitout using the Company's equipment, supplieslifies, or Information except for those
inventions that either relate to the Compamgctual or anticipated business, research or dewednt or that result from work performed by thegoyee fo
the Company.

(b) Employee hereby assigns and agreassign in the future to the Company all of Emp&geight, title and interest in and to ¢
and all Inventions and all Proprietary Rights, wieetor not subject to protection under the pawsyyright, trademark or industrial design laws, mad
conceived or reduced to practice or learned by Bymd (solely or jointly with others) during Empl@yg employment with the Company (including,
without limitation such employment prior to the &tfive Date) and for a one-year period after Empdty termination of employment with the Company
(collectively “Assigned Intellectual Property”).niployee further agrees that all Assigned IntellakcRroperty is the sole property of the Company.

(c) Employee agrees to promptly notifg &mlly disclose to the Company all Assigned Irgetlial Property, and will take such st
as are deemed necessary to maintain complete amhtrecords of same. Employee will, at the Camyfsarequest and expense, whether during or after
employment, take such steps as are reasonablysaggds assist the Company in securing, maintajrdefending or enforcing any title and right to
Assigned Intellectual Property.




11. Ne@ompete Employee acknowledges and recognizes the higihpetitive nature of the Company’s business andBh#ployee’s
duties hereunder justify restricting Employee’dtier employment following any termination of emptognt. Employee further acknowledges and
understands that the Company recognizes Emplojrap@rtance and value to the Company and thus tsdad Employee with the overall compensation
package described hereunder in order to induce &raplto enter into this Agreement. Accordingly,doyee agrees that so long as Employee is emp
by the Company, and (i) for a period of two (2) ngefmllowing the termination of this Agreement, Hoyee shall not induce or attempt to induce any
employee of the Company to leave the employ ofXbmpany, or in any way interfere with the relatitipsbetween the Company and any other employee;
(ii) for a period of one (1) year following the teination of this Agreement, Employee, except wheting at the request of the Company on behalf dbor
the benefit of the Company, shall not induce cust@magents or other sources of distribution ofGhepany’s business under contract or doing busines
with the Company to terminate, reduce, alter oeditusiness with or from the Company; and (iif)dgeriod of one (1) year following the terminatiof
this Agreement, Employee shall not, directly oriiadtly, either as a principal, agent, employeepleyer, consultant, partner, member or manager of a
limited liability company, shareholder of a compdhgt does not have securities registered undeBelerities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “1934 Aatia
shareholder in excess of one (1%) percent of a eomphat has securities registered under the 1284cArporate officer or director, or in any other
individual or representative capacity, engage betise participate in any manner or fashion in lisiness that directly competes with the business
activities of the Company in or about any markewfich the Company is, or has publicly announcetha for doing business. Employee further coves
and agrees that the restrictive covenants set iiotthis paragraph are reasonable as to duragomst and geographical area and that the samectw the
legitimate interests of the Company, imposes naiarfthrdship on Employee, and is not injurious éophblic. The covenant set forth under (iii) above
shall not apply if Employee’s employment is term@thwithin twelve (12) months of a Change in Cont©®wnership by Employee, for investment
purposes only, of less than one (1%) percent ofcéass of securities of a corporation if said siiesrare listed on a national securities exchage
registered under the 1934 Act shall not constiguieeach of the covenant set forth under (iii) @okmployee acknowledges and understands that, by
virtue of his position with the Company, he wilMeaexposure to various entities with which the Campdoes business or is in discussions to do
business. Accordingly, Employee hereby covenamisagrees that, so long as he is employed by thep@oy, he will not, except with the prior written
consent of the Company, solicit or enter into aisgussions for a position of employment with anghsantities. It is the desire and intent of thetiPa thal
the provisions of this paragraph be enforced tdulest extent permissible under the laws and ipytlicies applied in each jurisdiction in which
enforcement is sought. Accordingly, if any pardeiportion of this paragraph shall be adjudicdtede invalid or enforceable, this paragraph sbell
deemed amended to apply in the broadest allowablmer and to delete therefrom the portion adjuditsr be invalid or unenforceable, such amendment
and deletion to apply only with respect to the afien of this paragraph in the particular jurisidintin which that adjudication is made.




12. Internal Reven@»de Section 409A'409A") Matters. This Agreement is intended to comply with 4094 ambiguous provisions
will be construed in a manner that is compliantivait exempt from the application of 409A. If ayigion of the Agreement would result in the impiasit
of an applicable tax under 409A, the parties atratsuch provision shall be reformed to avoid isifian of the applicable tax, with such reformation
effected in a manner that has the most favoralsigtreo Employee.

(@)  For purposes of 409A, each payment or amduwetunder this Agreement shall be considered aaepgayment, and Employee’s
entitlement to a series of payments under this é&mgemnt is to be treated as an entitlement to assefigeparate payments.

(b)  If (x) Employee is a “specified employee,”saagh term is defined in 409A and determined asrde=d below in this Paragraph 6
(i), and (y) any payment due under this Agreemesubject to 409A and is required to be delaye@uad9A because Employee is a specified employee,
that payment shall be payable on the earlier ofti@)first business day that is six months aftepyee’s separation from service, as such ternefismed
in 409A, (B) the date of Employee’s death, or (@ tate that otherwise complies with the requiremeh409A. This Paragraph 6(i) shall be appligd b
accumulating all payments that otherwise would Haeen paid within six months of Employee’s separeéind paying such accumulated amounts on the
earliest business day which complies with the megoénts of 409A. For purposes of determining desiity of specified employees, the Board may
establish procedures as it deems appropriate ord&cce with 409A.

13. Termination

@) If Employe@mployment is terminated by the Company withoutgeaor if Employee terminates his employment feasdnable
Basis (as defined below), then the Company sha#ixchange for Employeskxecution of a general release and waiver angl@gainst the Company as
the termination date in a form reasonably acceptabthe Company, continue to pay as severancedyegis Base Salary for a period of twelve (12)
months following the date such general releasenaider of claims is executed. Such payments sleathhde in accordance with the Company’s customary
payroll practices, and shall be subject to all e Deductions. In the event of any such tertianaset forth in this Section 13(a), Employee wilit be
entitled to any additional cash compensation oefitnbeyond what is provided in the first senteotthis Section 13(a); providedhowever, that in the
event any termination set forth in this Sectiona)3hall occur during either 2013, 2014, or 201&pByee shall continue to be entitled to receive a
Performance Bonus, as described in Section 6 albavihe year of termination (in accordance wita talculation and timing of payment procedureste
Performance Bonus which Performance Bonus, if ahgll be prorated based upon the length of timel&mp was employed by the Company during the
year of termination in the following manner: (wEMmployee was employed by the Company throughrideoéthe Company’s third fiscal quarter, the
Company shall pay Employee the full PerformancewBoif any, for such year; (x) if Employee was eoygld by the Company through the end of the
Company’s second fiscal quarter, but Employee’sleympent with the Company terminated prior to thd ehthe Company’s third fiscal quarter, the
Company shall pay Employee ninety (90%) percetih@fPerformance Bonus, if any, for such year;f(imployee was employed by the Company through
the end of the Company’s first fiscal quarter, Batployee’'s employment with the Company terminatés po the end of the Company’s second fiscal
quarter, the Company shall pay Employee sixty (6p&trent of the Performance Bonus, if any, for suedr; and (z) if Employee’s employment with the
Company terminates prior to the end of the Compafisst fiscal quarter, the Company shall pay Empothirty (30%) of Performance Bonus, if any, for
such year.




0] For purposes of this Agreement, “€glushall mean that the Board, acting in good faéked upon the information then known
to the Company, determines that Employee has edgage committed any of the following: (A) willfuhisconduct, gross negligence, theft, fr:
or other illegal conduct; (B) refusal or unwillingss to perform Employee’s duties; (C) performanc&mmployee of Employee’s duties determined
by the Board to be inadequate in a material resfrtreach of any applicable non-competition [s@n, confidentiality provision or other
proprietary information or inventions agreementisstn Employee and the Company; (E) inappropriatéicbof interest; (F) insubordination; ('
failure to follow the directions of the Board oryacommittee thereof; (H) any other material breatthis Agreement. In addition, an indictment
conviction of any felony, or any entry of a pleanolo contendre, under the laws of the United Stateany State shall be considered “Cause”
hereunder. “Cause” shall be specified in a notfdemnination to be delivered by the Company to Eypge no later than the date as of which
termination is effective.

(i) For purposes of this Agreement, &Renable Basis” shall mean (A) a material breachisfAgreement by the Company,
provided, however, that Employee shall provide teritnotice to the Company of any alleged mater@hth, and any alleged material breach will
only be considered a material breach if the Comgaifgyto cure such breach within thirty days afexreiving notice of such breach; (B)
termination of Employee’s employment by the Compaithiout Cause during the term hereof; (C) a reidndn Employee’s salary, except to the
extent that a majority of the other executive @ffcof the Company incur reductions of salary #va@rage no less than the percentage reduction
incurred by Employee; or (D) termination of Empleisemployment by Employee within six (6) month&aé “Change of Control,” which is
defined as any of the following:

Q) any consolidation or merger of ttmpany in which the Company is not the continuingwviving
corporation, other than a merger of the Comparwtich the holders of the Company’s voting commartlksimmediately prior
to the merger own a majority of the voting commtorck of the surviving corporation immediately aftee merger;

2) any sale, lease, exchange or othester (in one transaction or a series of relagatsactions) of all or
substantially all the assets of the Company;

3) any approval by the stockholderthef Company of any plan or proposal for the ligtiataor dissolution of
the Company;




4) the acquisition by any person oitgnor any group of persons and/or entities ofaarity of the stock
entitled to elect a majority of the directors of tBompany; or

5) subject to applicable law, in a Clead 1 bankruptcy proceeding, the appointmenttofistee or the
conversion of a case involving the Company to & casler a Chapter 7 bankruptcy proceeding.

(b) In the evélmit Employee’s employment with the Company is teated for Cause, by reason of Emplogegéath or disability,
due to Employee’s resignation or voluntary termora{other than for a Reasonable Basis), thenaafipensation (including, without limitation, any Bas
Salary, and the right to receive a Performance Bpand benefits, and the vesting of any unvestaitrigied Options, will cease as of the effectiveedz
such termination, and Employee shall receive nersace benefits, or any other compensation; pravidat Employee shall be entitled to receive all
compensation earned and all benefits and reimbumstsndue through the effective date of termination.

(c) Employee agrees that the paymeniteaaplated by this Agreement shall constitute #@usive and sole remedy for any
termination of employment, and Employee covenaatsmassert or pursue any other remedies, at tawequity, with respect to any termination of
employment.

(d) Any Partyrtenating this Agreement shall give prompt writtestioe to the other Party hereto advising such dfaety of the
termination of this Agreement stating in reasonalei&il the basis for such termination (the “Noti¢d ermination”). The Notice of Termination shall
indicate whether termination is being made for @glifthe Company has terminated the Agreemenfyron Reasonable Basis (if Employee has terminated
the Agreement).

14. Remediedf there is a breach or threatened breach ofpaayision of Section 9, 10, 11, or 13 of this Agmeent, the Company will
suffer irreparable harm and shall be entitled tinfumction restraining Employee from such breadbthing herein shall be construed as prohibitirgy th
Company from pursuing any other remedies for suehadh or threatened breach.

15. Severabilitylt is the clear intention of the Parties to tAgreement that no term, provision or clause of fgreement shall be deemed
to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any edp unless such term, provision or clause canaatiterwise construed, interpreted, or modifiegite
effect to the intent of the Parties and to be vaddidal or enforceable. The Parties specificallgrge the trier of fact to give effect to the intehthe Parties,
even if in doing so, invalidation of a specific pision of this Agreement is required to make theeggnent consistent with the foregoing stated interthe
event that a term, provision, or clause cannotbeosistrued, interpreted or modified, the validiggality and enforceability of the remaining prEions
contained herein and other application(s) therbafl ot in any way be affected or impaired therahy shall remain in full force and effect.




16. Waiver of BreaciThe waiver by the Company or Employee of thebineof any provision of this Agreement by the otRarty shall nc
operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsefteach by that Party.

17. Entire Agreementhis document contains the entire agreementdmivthe Parties and supersedes all prior oralitewiagreements,
any, concerning the subject matter hereof or otlsenaoncerning Employee’s employment by the Comgargept with respect to shares, and options to
purchase shares, of the Company’s Common Stockou®y granted to Employee). This Agreement mayb®thanged orally, but only by a written
agreement signed by both Parties.

18. Governing LawThis Agreement, its validity, interpretation agmforcement, shall be governed by the laws oBtiage of New York,
excluding conflict of laws principles. Employee &y expressly consents to personal jurisdicticénstate and federal courts located in Suffolkr@pu
NY for any lawsuit filed there against him by therfipany arising from or relating to this Agreemt

19. Notices Any notice pursuant to this Agreement shall bkdly given or served if that notice is made iritimg and delivered personal
or sent by certified mail or registered, returreiptrequested, postage prepaid, to the followiddresses:

If to Company: CheimDiagnostics, Inc.
3661 Horseblock Road, Suite A
Medford, NY 11763
Attention: President

If to Employee: o The address for Employee set forth below his
signature.

All notices so given shall be deemed effective upersonal delivery or, if sent by certified or igired mail, five business days after date
of mailing or, if sent by overnight courier, onesmess day after dispatch. Either Party, by natcgiven, may change the address to which his duftire
notices shall be sent.

20. Assignment and Binding EffecThis Agreement shall be binding upon Employee the Company and shall benefit the Company and
its successors and assigns. This Agreement shabenassignable by Employee.

21. HeadingsThe headings in this Agreement are for convar@emly; they form no part of this Agreement andllstot affect its
interpretation.

22. ConstructiorEmployee represents he has (a) read and cofypletgerstands this Agreement and (b) had an oppitytto consult with

such legal and other advisers as he has desihirection with this Agreement. This Agreementlshal be construed against any one of the Parties.
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23. Directotsand Officer$ Insurance The Company is to maintain directors’ and offi¢énsurance in an amount reasonably determined
by the Board.

24. Key Man InsuranceThe Company has purchased, or may purchaseranere “key man” insurance policies on Employdiéés each
of which will be payable to and owned by the Compaifhe Company, in its sole discretion, may sdleetamount and type of key man life insurance
purchased, and Employee will have no interest jnsarch policies. Employee will cooperate with @@mpany in securing and maintaining this key man
insurance by submitting to all required medicalreixations, supplying all information and executalgdocuments required in order for the Company to
secure and maintain the insurance.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Parties have caused this Agreement to besedon the day and year set forth below to bectdke as of March
5, 2013.

Employee: Company:
Chembio Diagnostics, Inc.
By:
Javan Esfandiari, Individually Lawrence A. Siebert, President

1 Bowen Place
Stonybrook, NY 11790
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Exhibit 21

List of Subsidiaries

Chembio Diagnostic Systems, Inc. (Delaware)




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Chembio Diagnostics, Inc.
Medford, New York

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtiee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-@2460, No. 333-141555 and No. 333-151785) and
on Form S-3 No. 333-185932 as amended of our rejaoed March 7, 2013, relating to the consolidé&dnce sheets of Chembio Diagnostics Inc. and
Subsidiary as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 ancbtheed consolidated statements of operationsigd®in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the
years then ended appearing in this Form 10-K.

/s BDO USA, LLP
BDO USA, LLP
Melville, New York

March 7, 2013




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Lawrence A. Siebert, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Form 10-K of Chembio Diastics, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notato any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeer which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégas presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsioleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15€)) f
the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedarbe designed under our supervisio
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarimssmade known to us by others within those ent
particularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financigparting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for externappses i
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipies;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeamlisclosure controls and procedures and presentekis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proceg] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registranthost rece:
fiscal quarter (the registrastfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has materially affected, or is reasopéikély to materially affect, tr
registrant’s internal control over financial repog; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dal have disclosed, based on our most recent aatuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitac@mmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbwotrer financial reporting which are reason:
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finantiatmation; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrant's internal cor
over financial reporting.

Date: March 7, 2013 [ Liawrence A. Siebert
Lawrence A. Siebert, Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Richard J. Larkin, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Form 10-K of Chembio Diastics, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notato any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesmunwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects th
financial condition, results of operations and cfeivs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipgesented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dal are responsible for establishing and maintgimiisclosure controls and procedures (as defimed i
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) armdriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedarbe designed under our supervisio
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarimssmade known to us by others within those ent
particularly during the period in which this rep@being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financigparting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for externappses i
accordance with generally accepted accounting ijpies;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeamlisclosure controls and procedures and presentekis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proceeg] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegstgnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registramthost recel
fiscal quarter (the registrastfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has materially affected, or is reasopéikély to materially affect, tr
registrant’s internal control over financial repog; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(sjcal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiiuof internal control over financial reporting,
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committeth@ registrant’s board of directors (or persoadqgrming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are reason:
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finantiatmation; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrant's internal cor
over financial reporting.

Date: March 7, 2013 / Rgchard J. Larkin
Richard J. Larkin, Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10tKe(“Report”) of Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. (the ‘f@pany”)for the year ended December 31, 2
each of the undersigned Lawrence A. Siebert, thief(Executive Officer of the Company, and Richard.drkin, the Chief Financial Officer of t
Company, hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.Cti@ed 350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906enStrbane©xley Act of 2002, that, to the best of
undersigneds’ knowledge and belief:

(1) This Form 1K for the year ended December 31, 2012 fully coagplvith the requirements of section 13(a) or 16{dhe Securities Exchany
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in this Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31, 2012 fairly presentd| material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of Chembio Basdics, Inc. for the periods presented therein.

Dated: March 7, 2013 Lisivrence A. Siebert
Lawrence A. Siebert
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: March 7, 2013 Rgthard J. Larkin
Richard J. Larkin
Chief Financial Officer




